
 

 
 

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to consider some 
business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 
 

 

 

AGENDA 
AUDIT PANEL 

 
 

Date: THURSDAY, 12 SEPTEMBER 2013 at 7.00 pm 

 
Committee Room 3 
Civic Suite 
Lewisham Town Hall 
London SE6 4RU 
 
Enquiries to:    Olga Cole 
Telephone:       0208 314 8577 (direct line) 
 
COUNCILLORS 
 

 Independent Members 

Councillor Michael Harris (Chair) 
Councillor Philip Peake (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Ami Ibitson 
Councillor Mark Ingleby 
Councillor Dan Whittle 
Councillor Jim Mallory 
 

 Paul Dale 
Richard King 
Mike Robinson 
David Webb 
 

 
Members are summoned to attend this meeting 

 
Barry Quirk 
Chief Executive 
Lewisham Town Hall  
Catford 
London SE6 4RU 
Date: 3 September 2013 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 ORDER OF BUSINESS – PART 1 AGENDA  

 

Item 
No 

 Page 
No.s 

1. Minutes 
 

1 - 7 

2. Declarations of Interests 
 

8 - 11 

3. Grant Thornton's External Audit Reports on the 2012/13 Accounts 
 

12 - 109 

4. External Auditor's Reports on the 2012/13 Accounts 
 

110 - 112 

5. Internal Audit Update Report 
 

113 - 133 

6. Anti Fraud & Corruption Team (A-FACT) Update 
 

134 - 138 

   



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\9\6\ai00006698\$0voe3krp.doc 

 

LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM 

 

Minutes 

 
MINUTES of a meeting of the AUDIT PANEL, which was open to the press and public, 
held on TUESDAY 18 JUNE 2013 at LEWISHAM TOWN HALL, CATFORD, SE6 4RU 
at 7:00p.m. 
 

Present 

 
Councillor Peake (in the Chair), Councillors Ingleby and Mallory. 
 
Independent Members 
 
Paul Dale 
Mike Robinson 
David Webb  
 
Grant Thornton 
 
Jamie Bewick   Manager Public Sector Assurance 
Darren Wells    Director for Assurance 
 
Chris Harris     RSM Tenon 
 
Officers 
 
David Austin     Interim Head of Audit & Risk. (not present for Item 3) 
Andreas Ghosh   Head of Personnel & Development 
Richard Lambeth   Group Finance Manager- Accounting and Capital 
Janet Senior    Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration 
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Harris, Ibitson and Richard King. 
 

Minute No.  Action 
 

1. 
 

MINUTES  
 

 
 

 RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held 
on 27 March 2013, which was open to the press 
and public, be confirmed and signed as a true 
record of the proceedings. 
 

 

2. 
 

  2.1 

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 
Paul Dale declared a non prejudicial personal interest in Item 3 
as an Interim consultant at the London Borough of Merton. 
 

 

3. PAY ARRANGEMENTS FOR CONSULTANTS AND SENIOR  

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\9\6\ai00006698\$0voe3krp.doc 

Minute No.  Action 
 

 
 

  3.1 

INTERIMS 
 
The Head of Personnel & Development introduced the report. 
The Chair asked whether the Council was paying interims too 
much. The Head of Personnel & Development stated that the 
Council has a neutral vendor arrangement with Reed, and the 
contract was to ensure that rates drop, and currently the rates 
were in line with the market.  
 

3.2 Councillor Mallory asked why the Council does not have the 
information of whether these interims were being paid by a 
Private Service Company or otherwise. The Head of Personnel 
& Development said that if the interims were employed by an 
agency the Council would not immediately be aware of this. 
Councillor Mallory said that he was concerned that officers do 
not try to ensure they were aware of the facts before the 
appointment. The Head of Personnel & Development said that 
officers could try and get this information although they were not 
technically the employer of the interims. Councillor Mallory said 
this issue should be explored further. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of 
Pers. & 
Dev. 

3.3 Councillor Mallory asked why the Fire Safety Assessment Area 
has an interim without a projected end date, and was told by the 
Head of Personnel & Development that the Fire Safety Adviser 
role was a specialist role and was on a part-time basis and has 
not got an end time because of the nature of the job. He added 
that the role was required, but the Council could not afford it on a  
full-time basis. Councillor Mallory said that Panel Members need 
to know how much each interim was costing the Council. The 
Head of Personnel & Development stated that this information 
could be provided. Councillor Mallory said the key information 
would be the overall cost to the Council. The Head of Personnel 
& Development said that this information would be provided. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Head of 
Pers. & 
Dev. 

3.4 Mike Robinson said that the numbers went down to 24 Interim 
Consultants in April 2012 only to be up to 32 in April 2013, and 
this should be described as a slight increase, he added that the 
increase seemed significant and asked whether this would go 
down or continue to increase. The Head of Personnel & 
Development said that he could not predict this especially with 
the constant restructuring of the organisation. He added that the 
Council have been able to maintain a low figure, peaking at 55 
and the lowest being 24. He said that he thought the fluctuation 
would continue. He informed Panel Members that if the numbers 
were in danger of reaching the same levels as in 2011, he would 
expect Managers to alert him before this happened. 
 

 

3.5 Councillor Mallory asked whether there was any proof that using  

Page 2



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\9\6\ai00006698\$0voe3krp.doc 

Minute No.  Action 
 

consultants reduce redundancy costs. The Head of Personnel & 
Development stated that the rates the Council pay to consultants 
were not as high as redundancy payments. Councillor Mallory 
said that this would be assuming officers were made redundant, 
as they could have moved to other jobs. The Head of Personnel 
& Development informed Panel Members that most Managers 
would say they were expecting to go through a re-organisation, 
and would not wish to employ staff who would subsequently be 
made redundant.  
 

3.6 Councillor Mallory asked if all BSF related jobs would go soon. 
The Head of Personnel & Development said that there was also 
a capital programme to consider, but officers would be looking at 
the market and making calculations. Councillor Mallory asked if it 
was likely that similar skills would be needed, which could result 
in the Council retaining the same people. The Executive Director 
for Resources & Regeneration said that the skills would not 
necessarily be the same. She said currently with the Capital 
Programme, some of the work with the schools could be similar, 
but with the new PFI’s the skills would be different, and the 
Council would be looking at recruitment at Director level for the 
schools programme, and there would be permanent jobs.  
 

 

3.7 David Webb said that when they had first looked at a similar 
report in the past Panel Members were told that Interims were a 
necessity because of the grade and calibre of people the Council 
need to attract, he asked if the situation has changed. The 
Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration said that this 
issue was still of concern, but officers would review this. 
Councillor Peake thanked officers for the report. 
 

 

 RESOLVED that the report be noted.  
 

 

4. 
 

4.1 

AUDIT PLAN 2012/13 
 
Darren Wells, Director for Assurance, Grant Thornton introduced 
the report.  
 

 

4.2 Councillor Peake commented that most of the information in the 
report had been covered at the last meeting, and asked how far 
would Grant Thornton’s approach differ from that of the Audit 
Commission. Mr Wells informed the Panel that where the Audit 
Commission focused on controls, Grant Thornton understood 
the control environment, and would do more substantive tests.  
  

 

4.3 Councillor Mallory asked how Grant Thornton would deal with 
some of the risks mentioned in the report, and was told that they 
would work their way through them to understand the way 

 

Page 3



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\9\6\ai00006698\$0voe3krp.doc 

Minute No.  Action 
 

systems in the organisation were designed, Mr Wells added that 
Grant Thornton does not think there would be material error. 
Councillor Mallory asked about the housing revenue, with large 
areas where the transactions have not being recorded. Mr Wells 
said that this would be a potential risk.  
 

4.4 Mike Robinson said that the Audit approach would entail more 
focus on risk inherent in the system, and testing relating to this. 
As there would be a risk that something might happen, and tests 
would be done to ensure it would be alright. Mike Robinson 
stated that he was pleased to see that on looking at page19 the 
inherent risks assessments and the risk misstatements were low 
and this tallied with the other report, which showed there was 
consistency. Mr Wells said his team would be focussing on 
areas with high risk. 
 

 

 RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

 

5. AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT – JUNE 2013 
 

 

5.1 Mr Wells introduced the report and highlighted that they have 
managed to reduce the fees for the Council’s audit by 40%, and 
the fees they were proposing for 2013/14 would be the same as 
that of 2012/13. 
 

 

 RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

 

6. PENSION FUND AUDIT PLAN 
 

 

6.1 Mr Wells introduced the report and informed members that the 
approach Grant Thornton would be taking was similar to that of 
the main audit. He informed the Panel that sample selections 
would be taken for assessment to ensure they were correct and 
complete. 
 

 

 RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

 

7. PRE AUDIT STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS  
 

 

7.1 The Group Finance Manager, Accounting and Capital introduced 
the report.  
 

 
 

7.2 David Webb asked whether there was a correlation between the 
number of full time staff going down and that of Consultants 
going up. The Executive Director for Resources and 
Regeneration stated that there was no direct correlation, there 
was ongoing review of staff at senior level and Interim 
Consultants were being appointed and some were also leaving. 

 

Page 4



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\9\6\ai00006698\$0voe3krp.doc 

Minute No.  Action 
 

She added that the figure of Interim Consultants would continue 
to fluctuate between 24 and 28. David Webb then asked what 
had caused the increase in long term liabilities, and was told by 
the Group Finance Manager, Accounting and Capital that this 
was because the liabilities of new PFI schemes would be added 
on when the assets become operational. Once all the new PFI 
schemes are operational, no more liabilities would be added on.  
  

7.3 It was brought to officers’ attention that Councillor Ingleby’s and 
Councillor Feakes interests, as recorded in the Register, had 
some inaccuracies which needed to be amended. The Group 
Finance Manager, Accounting and Capital apologised for the 
error, and the Executive Director for Resources and 
Regeneration said that the information would be checked and 
amended accordingly. Panel members congratulated officers for 
completing the accounts on time. 
 

 
 
 
 
ED Res. & 
Reg. 

 RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

 

8. 
 

8.1 

ANTI FRAUD & CORRUPTION TEAM UPDATE 
 
The Interim Head of Audit & Risk introduced the report. David 
Webb praised officers for the very good work they were doing, 
especially with reduced resources. 
 

 

 RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

 

9. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE  
 

 

9.1 The Interim Head of Audit & Risk introduced the report. 
 

 
 

9.2 The Chair said he was concerned that there was still difficulty in 
getting information for the IT Strategy, and asked whether this 
was because Management was being unreasonable. He added 
that he was conscious that the Head of IT Services had been to 
the Panel before to deal with Panel Members’ concerns. The 
Interim Head of Audit & Risk stated that the work was delayed  
in part because of other priorities In IMT and that the officer who 
was responsible for that task had now left the Council.  
 

 

9.3 The Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration 
informed Panel Members that there had been a delay because 
the unit had gone through a re-organisation and had lost 20% of 
their staff which was a significant number. She added that a draft 
had now been prepared this would go through the formal review 
process before it was finalised. The Chair asked whether officers 
were confident that the IT Strategy would now be undertaken 
this year and was told it would be done. 

 

Page 5



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\9\6\ai00006698\$0voe3krp.doc 

Minute No.  Action 
 

 
9.4 Councillor Ingleby asked whether the new IT contractual 

arrangements would need a new team to start the process. It 
was noted that a new team would not be necessary as this 
process had been in place for two years with Bromley and it was 
not a new arrangement. The Interim Head of Audit & Risk stated 
that audits would generally be added or taken off the plan, and 
the audits tend to be for activities that were more risky and not 
part of the core financial reviews.  
 

 

9.5 The Executive Director for Resources and Regeneration said 
that the issue around Information Technology was because of 
database security requirements the Council was going through 
changes currently to ensure they are all caught within the 
strategy. 
 

 

9.6 Paul Dale said he was concerned that the issues raised on page 
228 of the report was substantial as he was aware that a lot of 
London Boroughs practice a policy of zero tolerance. The 
Executive Director for Resources & Regeneration stated that the 
Council has to meet the code of connection and reaccreditation 
requirements. She added that there were a number of things the 
Council was putting in place to ensure compliance with the 
controls framework. The Executive Director for Resources stated 
that the Council has a Business Continuity Plan for ICT, but in 
some cases they were misaligned to Service priorities, but 
officers would ensure they align again. This is monitored through 
the agreed internal audit recommendations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Int. Head 
of Audit & 
Risk 
 

9.7 Councillor Ingleby asked whether the work on Adult Social Care 
has been finalised, and was told that out of the seven remaining 
audits there were four still to be completed, and these would be 
reported to the September meeting. 
 

Int. Head 
of Audit & 
Risk 
 

 RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

 

      10. 
 

ANNUAL ASSURANCE REPORT FOR 2012-13  

10.1 The Interim Head of Audit & Risk introduced the report. It was 
noted that this would be the last annual report that would be 
prepared in compliance with the requirements of the CIPFA 
Code. From 1 April 2013 the new Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) would be in place. 
 

 
 

 RESOLVED that the report be noted. 
 

 

11. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 

Page 6



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\8\9\6\ai00006698\$0voe3krp.doc 

Minute No.  Action 
 

 
 RESOLVED  that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local 

Government Act 1972, the press and public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items 
of business on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in paragraphs 3, 4 and 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12(A) of the Act, as amended by the Local 
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Access to 
information) (Amendments) (England) 
Regulations 2006 and the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the information: 
 

 

11.1 The following is a summary of the item considered in the closed 
part of the meeting: 
 

 

 INTERNAL AUDIT PERFORMANCE 
 

 

11.2 Panel members had discussions with the Contractor, and then 
the Executive Director of Resources and Regeneration and the 
Interim Head of Audit & Risk about the performance of the 
current contractor and the options open to the organisation. 
  

 

 The meeting ended at 9.25p.m. 
 
 

 

                                                                                  Chair  
 
 
 

 

Page 7



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\9\6\ai00006699\$xkr5tm2e.doc 

 

AUDIT PANEL 
 

Report Title 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Key Decision 
 

  Item No. 2 
 

Ward 
 

 

Contributors 
 

Chief Executive 

Class 
 

Part 1  Date: 12 September 2013 

 
 
Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the 
agenda. 
 
1 Personal interests 
 

There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member 
Code of Conduct :-  

 
(1)  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
(2)  Other registerable interests 
(3)  Non-registerable interests 
 

 
2 Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:- 
 
(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or 

gain 
 
(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 

by the Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the 
register in respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a 
member or towards your election expenses (including payment or financial 
benefit  from a Trade Union). 

 
(c)  Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they 

are a partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the 
securities of which they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, 
services or works. 

 
(d)  Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 
 
(e)  Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 
 
(f)   Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the 

Council is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a 

Agenda Item 2

Page 8



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\9\6\ai00006699\$xkr5tm2e.doc 

 

partner, a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of 
which they have a beneficial interest.   

 
(g)   Beneficial interest in securities of a body where:- 
 

(a)  that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land 
in the borough; and  

 
 (b)  either 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 

 
 (ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 

nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person* has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued 
share capital of that class. 

 
*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with 
whom they live as spouse or civil partner.  

 
(3)  Other registerable interests 

 
The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register 
the following interests:- 

 
(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which 

you were appointed or nominated by the Council 
 

(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to 
charitable purposes , or whose principal purposes include the influence 
of public opinion or policy, including any political party 

 
(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 

estimated value of at least £25 
 
(4) Non registerable interests 

 
Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be 
likely to affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close 
associate more than it would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area 
generally, but which is not required to be registered in the Register of 
Members’ Interests  (for example a matter concerning the closure of a school 
at which a Member’s child attends).  

 
 
(5)  Declaration and Impact of interest on member’s participation 

 
 (a)  Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are 

present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must 
declare the nature of the interest at the earliest opportunity  and in any 

Page 9



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\9\6\ai00006699\$xkr5tm2e.doc 

 

event before the matter is considered.  The declaration will be recorded 
in the minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable pecuniary 
interest the member must take not part in consideration of the matter 
and withdraw from the room before it is considered.  They must not 
seek improperly to influence the decision in any way. Failure to 
declare such an interest which has not already been entered in the 
Register of Members’ Interests, or participation where such an 
interest exists, is liable to prosecution and on conviction carries a 
fine of up to £5000  
 

 (b)  Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of the 
interest to the meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any event 
before the matter is considered, but they may stay in the room, 
participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it unless 
paragraph (c) below applies. 
 

(c) Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a 
disclosable pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether a 
reasonable member of the public in possession of the facts would think 
that their interest is so significant that it would be likely to impair the 
member’s judgement of the public interest.  If so, the member must 
withdraw  and take no part in consideration of the matter nor seek to 
influence the outcome improperly. 

 
 (d)  If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a 

member, their, family, friend or close associate more than it would 
affect those in the local area generally, then the provisions relating to 
the declarations of interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a 
registerable interest.   

 
(e) Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s 

personal judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek 
the advice of the Monitoring Officer. 

 
(6)   Sensitive information  

 
There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests.  These are 
interests the disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk 
of violence or intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such 
interest need not be registered.  Members with such an interest are referred to 
the Code and advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

  
(7) Exempt categories 
 

There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in 
decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing 
so.  These include:- 

 

Page 10



d:\moderngov\data\agendaitemdocs\9\9\6\ai00006699\$xkr5tm2e.doc 

 

(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the 
matter relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears 
exception) 

(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a 
parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor 
unless the matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or 
of which you are a governor;  

(c)   Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 
(d)  Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  
(e)  Ceremonial honours for members 
(f)   Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception) 

 

Page 11



 

1. PURPOSE 

1.1 The purpose of this cover report is to present to the Audit Panel the 
reports by Grant Thornton on their findings during the external audit of 
the Council’s 2012/13 Main Accounts and Pension Fund Accounts.  
These reports follow on the agenda. 

1.2 The Grant Thornton report on their review of the Council’s 
 arrangements for securing financial resilience is also attached.  

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1 It is recommended that the Audit Panel consider and note the attached 
reports from the Council’s external auditors, Grant Thornton. 

 
 

APPENDICES 
 

1 – Grant Thornton – The Audit Findings for the London Borough of 
Lewisham.  

 
2 - Grant Thornton – The Audit Findings for the London Borough of 

Lewisham Pension Fund. 
 

3  – Grant Thornton – Review of the London Borough of Lewisham’s 
arrangements for securing financial resilience. 

 

 

AUDIT PANEL 

 
 

Report Title 
 

GRANT THORNTON’S EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS ON THE 
2012/13 ACCOUNTS 

 

Key Decision 
 

 

No 
 

Item No. 
 

3 
 

Ward 
 

 

ALL 
 

Contributors 
 

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FOR RESOURCES AND REGENERATION 
 

Class 
 

Part 1 
 

Date:  12 September 2013 

Agenda Item 3

Page 12



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T
T

h
is

 v
er

si
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 

re
p

o
rt

 is
 a

 d
ra

ft
. I

ts
 

co
n

te
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
je

ct
 

m
at

te
r 

re
m

ai
n

 u
n

d
er

 

re
vi

ew
 a

n
d

 it
s 

co
n

te
n

ts
 

m
ay

 c
h

an
g

e 
an

d
 b

e 

ex
p

an
d

ed
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

al
is

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
re

p
o

rt
.

T
h

is
 v

er
si

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

re
p

o
rt

 is
 a

 d
ra

ft
. I

ts
 

co
n

te
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
je

ct
 

m
at

te
r 

re
m

ai
n

 u
n

d
er

 

re
vi

ew
 a

n
d

 it
s 

co
n

te
n

ts
 

m
ay

 c
h

an
g

e 
an

d
 b

e 

ex
p

an
d

ed
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

al
is

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
re

p
o

rt
.

T
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 F

in
d

in
gs

fo
r 

th
e 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u
gh

 o
f 

L
ew

is
h

am
 

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3

D
a
rr

e
n

 W
e
ll

s

D
ir

e
c
to

r

T
0
1
2
9
3
 5

5
4
 1

2
0

E
 

d
a
rr

e
n

.j
.w

e
ll

s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m

J
a
m

ie
 B

e
w

ic
k

M
a
n

a
g

e
r

T
0
1
2
9
3
 5

5
4
 1

3
8

E
 

ja
m

ie
.n

.b
e
w

ic
k
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m

S
te

p
h

e
n

 R
ic

h
a
rd

s

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e

T
0
2
0
7
 7

2
8
 3

3
4
0

E
  
  

s
te

p
h

e
n

.j
.r

ic
h

a
rd

s
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m

A
u

g
u

s
t
2

0
1

3

Page 13



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

2

T
h
e 
co
n
te
n
ts
 o
f 
th
is
 r
ep
o
rt
 r
el
at
e 
o
n
ly
 t
o
 t
h
o
se
 m
at
te
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 c
am
e 
to
 o
u
r 

at
te
n
ti
o
n
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
co
n
d
u
ct
 o
f 
o
u
r 
n
o
rm
al
 a
u
d
it
 p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 

d
es
ig
n
ed
 p
ri
m
ar
ily
 f
o
r 
th
e 
p
u
rp
o
se
 o
f 
ex
p
re
ss
in
g 
o
u
r 
o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 

st
at
em
en
ts
.
O
u
r 
au
d
it
 i
s 
n
o
t 
d
es
ig
n
ed
 t
o
 t
es
t 
al
l i
n
te
rn
al
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 o
r 
id
en
ti
fy
 a
ll 

ar
ea
s 
o
f 
co
n
tr
o
l 
w
ea
kn
es
s.
 H
o
w
ev
er
, 
w
h
er
e,
 a
s 
p
ar
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
te
st
in
g,
 w
e 
id
en
ti
fy
 

an
y 
co
n
tr
o
l 
w
ea
kn
es
se
s,
 w
e 
w
ill
 r
ep
o
rt
 t
h
es
e 
to
 y
o
u
.  
In
 c
o
n
se
q
u
en
ce
, o
u
r 
w
o
rk
 

ca
n
n
o
t 
b
e 
re
lie
d
 u
p
o
n
 t
o
 d
is
cl
o
se
 d
ef
al
ca
ti
o
n
s 
o
r 
o
th
er
 i
rr
eg
u
la
ri
ti
es
, o
r 
to
 

in
cl
u
d
e 
al
l 
p
o
ss
ib
le
 i
m
p
ro
ve
m
en
ts
 i
n
 i
n
te
rn
al
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
th
at
 a
 m
o
re
 e
xt
en
si
ve
 

sp
ec
ia
l e
xa
m
in
at
io
n
 m
ig
h
t 
id
en
ti
fy
.

W
e 
d
o
 n
o
t 
ac
ce
p
t 
an
y 
re
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
an
y 
lo
ss
 o
cc
as
io
n
ed
 t
o
 a
n
y 
th
ir
d
 p
ar
ty
 

ac
ti
n
g,
 o
r 
re
fr
ai
n
in
g 
fr
o
m
 a
ct
in
g 
o
n
 t
h
e 
b
as
is
 o
f 
th
e 
co
n
te
n
t 
o
f 
th
is
 r
ep
o
rt
, 
as
 

th
is
 r
ep
o
rt
 w
as
 n
o
t 
p
re
p
ar
ed
 f
o
r,
 n
o
r 
in
te
n
d
ed
 f
o
r,
 a
n
y 
o
th
er
 p
u
rp
o
se
.

Page 14



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

3

C
o
n
te

n
ts

S
e

c
ti

o
n

P
a

g
e

1.
E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 s
u

m
m

ar
y

4

2.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
gs

7

3.
V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
M

o
n

ey
 

20

4.
F

ee
s,

 n
o

n
 a

u
d

it
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d

 i
n

d
ep

en
d

en
ce

24

5.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
 o

f 
au

d
it

 m
at

te
rs

26

A
p
p
en
d
ic
es

A
 

A
ct

io
n

 p
la

n

B
  

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n

C
  

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
au

d
it

 f
in

d
in

gs

Page 15



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T
S

e
c
ti

o
n

 1
:

E
xe

cu
ti
ve

 s
u
m

m
ar

y

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
g

s

0
3

.
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y

0
4

.
F

e
e

s
, 
n

o
n

 a
u

d
it

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

0
5

.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

 m
a

tt
e

rs

Page 16



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

5

E
xe

cu
ti
ve

 s
u
m

m
ar

y

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

P
u

r
p

o
s
e

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e

p
o

r
t

T
h

is
 r

ep
o

rt
 h

ig
h

lig
h

ts
 t

h
e 

ke
y 

m
at

te
rs

 a
ri

si
n

g 
fr

o
m

 o
u

r 
au

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 
B

o
ro

u
gh

 o
f 

L
ew

is
h

am
 (

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l)

's
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 f
o

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

n
d

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

3.
 I

t 
is

 a
ls

o
 u

se
d

 t
o

 r
ep

o
rt

 o
u

r 
au

d
it

 f
in

d
in

gs
 t

o
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d
 t

h
e 

A
u

d
it

 P
an

el
 i

n
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
 o

n
 

A
u

d
it

in
g 

26
0 

(I
S

A
).

 

U
n

d
er

 t
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
's

 C
o

d
e 

o
f 

A
u

d
it

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
w

e 
ar

e 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 t
o

 r
ep

o
rt

 
w

h
et

h
er

, i
n

 o
u

r 
o

p
in

io
n

, y
o

u
r 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 p

re
se

n
t 

a 
tr

u
e 

an
d

 f
ai

r 
vi

ew
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

, t
h

e 
ex

p
en

d
it

u
re

 a
n

d
 i

n
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 a
n

d
 w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

ey
 

h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 p
ro

p
er

ly
 p

re
p

ar
ed

 i
n

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
IP

F
A

 C
o

d
e 

o
f 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
o

n
 

L
o

ca
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g 

(t
h

e 
C

o
d

e)
. W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 t
o

 r
ea

ch
 a

 f
o

rm
al

 
co

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 o
n

 w
h

et
h

er
 y

o
u

 h
av

e 
p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 t

o
 s

ec
u

re
 

ec
o

n
o

m
y,

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s 
in

 y
o

u
r 

u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

es
 (

th
e 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

).

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

In
 t

h
e 

co
n

d
u

ct
 o

f 
o

u
r 

au
d

it
 w

e 
h

av
e 

n
o

t 
h

ad
 t

o
 a

lt
er

 o
r 

ch
an

ge
 o

u
r 

p
la

n
n

ed
 a

u
d

it
 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
, w

h
ic

h
 w

e 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

ed
 t

o
 y

o
u

 i
n

 o
u

r 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

.  
O

u
r 

au
d

it
 i

s 
su

b
st

an
ti

al
ly

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
lt

h
o

u
gh

 w
e 

ar
e 

fi
n

al
is

in
g 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 in
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

ea
s:

 
•

E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

re
m

u
n

er
at

io
n

•
A

cc
o

u
n

ts
 r

ec
ei

va
b

le
•

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

p
en

si
o

n
s 

d
is

cl
o

su
re

s
•

G
ra

n
ts

 r
ev

en
u

es
•

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

al
 v

er
si

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

•
w

el
fa

re
 b

en
ef

it
s 

te
st

in
g

•
o

b
ta

in
in

g 
an

d
 r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
th

e 
fi

n
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

le
tt

er
 o

f 
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

•
u

p
d

at
in

g 
o

u
r 

p
o

st
 b

al
an

ce
 s

h
ee

t 
ev

en
ts

 r
ev

ie
w

, t
o

 t
h

e 
d

at
e 

o
f 

si
gn

in
g 

th
e 

o
p

in
io

n
•

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
A

cc
o

u
n

ts

W
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 d
ra

ft
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
t 

th
e 

st
ar

t 
o

f 
o

u
r 

au
d

it
, i

n
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

ag
re

ed
 t

im
et

ab
le

.

K
e
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
ri
s
in
g
 f
ro
m
 o
u
r 
a
u
d
it

F
in
a
n
ci
a
l 
st
a
te
m
en
ts
 o
p
in
io
n

S
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g 
o

u
r 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g 

w
o

rk
 w

e 
an

ti
ci

p
at

e 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
an

 
u

n
q

u
al

if
ie

d
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
T

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 w

er
e 

o
ve

ra
ll 

o
f 

a 
go

o
d

 q
u

al
it

y.
 W

e 
h

av
e 

ag
re

ed
 a

 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 t
o

 c
o

rr
ec

t 
er

ro
rs

 in
 d

is
cl

o
su

re
 n

o
te

s 
an

d
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e 
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts
. 

T
h

es
e 

ar
e 

se
t 

o
u

t 
la

te
r 

in
 t

h
is

 r
ep

o
rt
. 

M
o

st
 o

f 
th

e 
n

u
m

er
ic

al
 a

d
ju

st
m

en
ts

 a
re

 c
o

n
ce

rn
ed

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

va
lu

at
io

n
s 

o
f 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 , 

P
la

n
t 

an
d

 E
q

u
ip

m
en

t 
an

d
 t

h
e 

w
ay

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

as
 a

cc
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
th

em
. A

lt
h

o
u

gh
 t

h
er

e 
ar

e 
so

m
e 

la
rg

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 n

o
n

e 
o

f 
th

em
 a

ff
ec

t 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 o

ve
ra

ll 
re

ve
n

u
e 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

.  
O

ve
ra

ll 
th

e 
au

d
it

 h
as

 p
ro

gr
es

se
d

 w
el

l 
an

d
 f

in
an

ce
 s

ta
ff

 h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 h
el

p
fu

l a
n

d
 

p
ro

m
p

t 
in

 r
es

p
o

n
d

in
g 

to
 o

u
r 

q
u

er
ie

s.
 W

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

ee
ti

n
g 

w
it

h
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
to

 
d

is
cu

ss
 a

re
as

 w
h

er
e 

fu
rt

h
er

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
ci

es
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

fo
r 

n
ex

t 
ye

ar
 a

n
d

 w
h

er
e 

th
e 

q
u

al
it

y 
an

d
 r

el
ev

an
ce

 o
f 

su
p

p
o

rt
in

g 
ev

id
en

ce
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e 
fu

rt
h

er
 im

p
ro

ve
d

.  
 

F
u

rt
h

er
 d

et
ai

ls
 a

re
 s

et
 o

u
t 

in
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 2
 o

f 
th

is
 r

ep
o

rt
.

Page 17



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

6

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

V
a
lu
e 
fo
r 
m
o
n
ey
 c
o
n
cl
u
si
o
n

B
as

ed
 o

n
 o

u
r 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
yo

u
r 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 t

o
 s

ec
u

re
 e

co
n

o
m

y,
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 a

n
d

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 y

o
u

r 
u

se
 o

f 
re

so
u

rc
es

, w
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
 t

o
 g

iv
e 

an
 u

n
q

u
al

if
ie

d
 v

al
u

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
 (

V
F

M
) 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
.

F
u

rt
h

er
 d

et
ai

l 
o

f 
o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 o

n
 V

al
u

e 
fo

r 
M

o
n

ey
 i

s 
se

t 
o

u
t 

in
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 3
 o

f 
th

is
 

re
p

o
rt

.

W
h
o
le
 o
f 
G
o
ve
rn
m
en
t 
A
cc
o
u
n
ts
 (
W
G
A
)

W
e 

w
ill

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 i
n

 r
es

p
ec

t 
o

f 
th

e 
W

h
o

le
 o

f 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

 i
n

 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

n
at

io
n

al
 t

im
et

ab
le

.

C
o
n
tr
o
ls

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
is

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ca

ti
o

n
, a

ss
es

sm
en

t,
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

o
f 

ri
sk

, a
n

d
 f

o
r 

d
ev

el
o

p
in

g,
 o

p
er

at
in

g 
an

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g 
th

e 
sy

st
em

 o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l.

O
u

r 
au

d
it

 i
s 

n
o

t 
d

es
ig

n
ed

 t
o

 t
es

t 
al

l 
in

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 o

r 
id

en
ti

fy
 a

ll 
ar

ea
s 

o
f 

co
n

tr
o

l 
w

ea
kn

es
s.

  
H

o
w

ev
er

, w
h

er
e,

 a
s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
o

u
r 

te
st

in
g,

 w
e 

id
en

ti
fy

 a
n

y 
co

n
tr

o
l 

w
ea

kn
es

se
s,

 w
e 

 r
ep

o
rt

 t
h

es
e 

to
 y

o
u

. 

W
e 

d
ra

w
 y

o
u

r 
at

te
n

ti
o

n
 i

n
 p

ar
ti

cu
la

r 
to

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

is
su

es
 id

en
ti

fi
ed

 in
 r

el
at

io
n

 t
o

 
as

se
t 

va
lu

at
io

n
s.

 Y
o

u
 h

ad
 n

o
 v

al
u

at
io

n
s 

ex
p

er
ti

se
 a

va
ila

b
le

 t
o

 y
o

u
 d

u
ri

n
g 

20
12

/
13

 a
n

d
 h

ad
 t

o
 r

ec
ru

it
 a

 t
em

p
o

ra
ry

 v
al

u
er

 a
t 

a 
la

te
 s

ta
ge

 o
f 

th
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

. 
T

h
is

 p
u

t 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
at

 r
is

k 
o

f 
b

ei
n

g 
u

n
ab

le
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

d
e 

re
q

u
ir

em
en

t 
to

 r
ev

al
u

e 
it

s 
as

se
ts

 w
it

h
in

 a
 f

iv
e 

ye
ar

 c
yc

le
. 

S
o

m
e 

as
p

ec
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n
s 

w
er

e 
n

o
t 

fu
lly

 in
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
C

o
d

e 
o

r 
w

er
e 

in
co

rr
ec

tl
y 

ac
co

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r.

F
u

rt
h

er
 d

et
ai

ls
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 w
it

h
in

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 2

 o
f 

th
is

 r
ep

o
rt

.

T
h
e
 w
a
y
 f
o
rw

a
rd

M
at

te
rs

 a
ri

si
n

g 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
u

d
it

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
yo

u
r 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

se
cu

ri
n

g 
ec

o
n

o
m

y,
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
n

es
s 

h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 
d

is
cu

ss
ed

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
h

ie
f 

F
in

an
ce

 O
ff

ic
er

.

W
e 

h
av

e 
m

ad
e 

a 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

re
co

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

as
 s

et
 o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e 

ac
ti

o
n

 p
la

n
 i

n
 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 A
. R

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s 

h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 a

n
d

 a
gr

ee
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
h

ie
f 

F
in

an
ce

 O
ff

ic
er

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ce

 t
ea

m
.

A
c
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
m
e
n
t

W
e 

w
o

u
ld

 li
ke

 t
o

 t
ak

e 
th

is
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y 

to
 r

ec
o

rd
 o

u
r 

ap
p

re
ci

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
e 

as
si

st
an

ce
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ce

 t
ea

m
 a

n
d

 o
th

er
 s

ta
ff

 d
u

ri
n

g 
o

u
r 

au
d

it
.

G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P

S
ep
te
m
b
er
 2
01
3

Page 18



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T
S

e
c
ti

o
n

 2
:

A
u
d
it
 f
in

d
in

gs

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
g

s

0
3

.
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y

0
4

.
F

e
e

s
, 
n

o
n

 a
u

d
it

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

0
5

.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

 m
a

tt
e

rs

Page 19



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

8

A
u
d
it
 f
in

d
in

gs

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

In
 t

h
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 w

e 
p

re
se

n
t 

o
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
gs

 in
 r

es
p

ec
t 

o
f 

m
at

te
rs

 a
n

d
 r

is
ks

 id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
p

la
n

n
in

g 
st

ag
e 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 m

at
te

rs
 t

h
at

 a
ro

se
 d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

co
u

rs
e 

o
f 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

. W
e 

se
t 

o
u

t 
o

n
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
p

ag
es

 t
h

e 
w

o
rk

 w
e 

h
av

e 
p

er
fo

rm
ed

 a
n

d
 f

in
d

in
gs

 a
ri

si
n

g 
fr

o
m

 o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 in
 r

es
p

ec
t 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
 r

is
ks

 w
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 in

 o
u

r 
au

d
it

 p
la

n
, 

p
re

se
n

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 P

an
el

. W
e 

al
so

 s
et

 o
u

t 
th

e 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 f

ro
m

 o
u

r 
au

d
it

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
gs

 in
 r

es
p

ec
t 

o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

.

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

W
e 

h
av

e 
n

o
t 

m
ad

e 
an

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 o
u

r 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 a
s 

p
re

vi
o

u
sl

y 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

ed
 t

o
 y

o
u

 o
n

 1
8 

Ju
n

e.

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n

S
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 s

at
is

fa
ct

o
ry

 c
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

o
u

r 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g 
au

d
it

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
w

e 
an

ti
ci

p
at

e 
th

at
 w

e 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
it

h
 a

n
u

n
q

u
al

if
ie

d
 o

p
in

io
n

. O
u

r 
au

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n
 is

 s
et

 
o

u
t 

in
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 B

.

Page 20



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

9

A
u
d
it
 f
in

d
in

gs
 a

g
ai

n
st

 s
ig

n
if
ic

an
t 
ri
sk

s

R
is

k
s

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 p

la
n

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 g
a

in
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
s

s
u

e
s

 a
ri

s
in

g

1
. 

Im
p

ro
p

e
r

re
v
e

n
u

e
re

c
o

g
n

it
io

n

U
n

d
e

r 
IS

A
 2

4
0

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
re

s
u

m
e

d
 r

is
k
 t
h

a
t 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 

m
a

y
 b

e
 m

is
s
ta

te
d
 d

u
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

p
e

r 
re

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 

�
re

v
ie

w
a

n
d

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 p

o
lic

ie
s

�
te

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a

l r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 s

tr
e

a
m

s

�
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
u

n
u

s
u

a
l s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s

W
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
y
o

u
r 

re
v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 

c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

e
y
 w

e
re

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

W
e
 t
e

s
te

d
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 s

tr
e

a
m

s
 a

n
d

 d
id

 n
o

t 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
n

y
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
, 
o

r 
a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t
u

n
u

s
u

a
l 

it
e

m
s
  

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

  
to

 d
a

te
 h

a
s
 n

o
t
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

in
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
.

2
.

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

o
v
e

rr
id

e
 o

f 
c

o
n

tr
o

ls

U
n

d
e

r 
IS

A
 2

4
0

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 p
re

s
u

m
e

d
 r

is
k
 o

f 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

v
e

r-
ri

d
e

 o
f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

�
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
, 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t

�
te

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
ls

 e
n

tr
ie

s

�
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
u

n
u

s
u

a
l s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
tr

a
n

s
a

c
ti
o

n
s

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o

v
e

rr
id

e
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

. 
In

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
w

e
 

fo
u

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
v
e

r 
jo

u
rn

a
l 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
, 
w

h
ic

h
  
w

e
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

. 

W
e
 n

o
te

 j
o

u
rn

a
ls

 a
re

 n
o

t 
s
e

q
u

e
n

ti
a

lly
 n

u
m

b
e

re
d

, 

w
h

ic
h

 m
a

k
e

s
 i
t 
d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 f
o

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 

d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

 it
 h

a
d

 a
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 r

e
c
o

rd
 o

f 
m

a
n

u
a

l 

a
d

ju
s
tm

e
n

ts
 t
o

 t
h

e
 l
e

d
g

e
r.

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 
a

re
a

 t
o

 e
x
p

lo
re

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
 O

ra
c
le

 

s
y
s
te

m
 i
s
 u

p
g

ra
d

e
d

 l
a

te
r 

in
 2

0
1

3
. 

W
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 

ju
d

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 m
a

d
e

 b
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d

  
d

id
 n

o
t 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
n

y
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

v
e

rr
id

e
.

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

"S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ri

sk
s 

o
ft

en
 r

el
at

e 
to

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
n

o
n

-r
o

u
ti

n
e 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

s 
an

d
 j

u
d

gm
en

ta
l 

m
at

te
rs

. N
o

n
-r

o
u

ti
n

e 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

n
s 

ar
e 

tr
an

sa
ct

io
n

s 
th

at
 a

re
 u

n
u

su
al

, e
it

h
er

 d
u

e 
to

 s
iz

e 
o

r 
n

at
u

re
, a

n
d

 t
h

at
 t

h
er

ef
o

re
 o

cc
u

r 
in

fr
eq

u
en

tl
y.

 J
u

d
gm

en
ta

l m
at

te
rs

 m
ay

 i
n

cl
u

d
e 

th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

o
f 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g 
es

ti
m

at
es

 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 t

h
er

e 
is

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t 

u
n

ce
rt

ai
n

ty
" 

(I
S

A
 3

15
).

 

In
 t

h
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 w

e 
d

et
ai

l 
o

u
r 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

ri
sk

s 
o

f 
m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 i

n
 o

u
r 

A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
.  

W
e 

n
o

te
d

 t
w

o
 p

re
su

m
ed

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ri

sk
s 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 a
p

p
lic

ab
le

 t
o

 a
ll 

au
d

it
s 

u
n

d
er

 a
u

d
it

in
g 

st
an

d
ar

d
s.

Page 21



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

10

A
u
d
it
 f
in

d
in

gs
 a

g
ai

n
st

 o
th

er
 r

is
k
s

T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
 c

y
c

le
D

e
s

c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

ri
s

k
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c

e
 g

a
in

e
d

 &
 i

s
s

u
e

s
 a

ri
s

in
g

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
O

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

te
d

�
W

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

 w
a

lk
th

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 
th

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 

p
a

y
a

b
le

 s
y
s
te

m

�
W

e
 t
e

s
te

d
 a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
6

0
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 f
o

r 

c
o

m
p

le
te

n
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
u

ra
c
y

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 d
a

te
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 

is
s
u

e
s
 in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d

O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
C

re
d

it
o

rs
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
te

d
 o

r 
n

o
t 

re
c
o

rd
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 
p

e
ri

o
d

�
W

e
 t
e

s
te

d
 a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
c
re

d
it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
ru

a
ls

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 d
a

te
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 

is
s
u

e
s
 in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 r

e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
R

e
m

u
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
e

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 n

o
t 

c
o

rr
e

c
t

�
W

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

 w
a

lk
th

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 
th

e
 p

a
y
ro

ll 

s
y
s
te

m
. 

�
W

e
 t
e

s
te

d
 a

 r
a

n
d

o
m

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
6

0
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 f
o

r 

a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 
p

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 v
a

lid
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
u

ra
te

�
W

e
 t
e

s
te

d
 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 r
e

c
o

n
c
ili

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

a
y
ro

ll 
to

 

th
e

 l
e

d
g

e
r 

 

A
w

a
it

in
g

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
8

 s
c

h
o

o
ls

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s

W
e

lf
a

re
 e

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

W
e
lf
a

re
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 im
p

ro
p

e
rl

y

c
o

m
p

u
te

d

�
W

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

 w
a

lk
th

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 
th

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d

 w
e

 a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 c

e
rt

if
y
in

g
 t
h

e
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 

c
la

im
 B

E
N

0
1

R
e

li
a

n
c

e
 t

o
 b

e
 p

la
c

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 t

e
s

ti
n

g
 o

f 
in

it
ia

l 
s

a
m

p
le

s
 

o
f 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 c
la

im
a

n
ts

H
o

u
s

in
g

 r
e

n
t

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s

n
o

t 

re
c
o

rd
e

d
.

�
W

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

 w
a

lk
th

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 
th

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 

re
v
e

n
u

e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 

�
w

e
 t

e
s
te

d
 t
h

e
 d

is
c
lo

s
u
re

s
 in

 t
h

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t 
(H

R
A

)

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 in

 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
, 

p
la

n
t 

&
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

P
P

E
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 n

o
t 
v
a

lid
�

W
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
v
e

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 

P
P

E
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 w

e
 t

e
s
te

d
 a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
a

d
d

it
io

n
s

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 in

 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
, 

p
la

n
t 

&
 

e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t

R
e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 m

e
a

s
u

re
m

e
n

t 
n

o
t

c
o

rr
e

c
t

�
W

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
m

e
n
t

W
e
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
s
 w

e
re

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 s
o

m
e

 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 w
a

s
 n

o
t 

s
tr

ic
tl
y
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
d

e
. 
(a

s
 

e
x
p

la
in

e
d

 u
n

d
e

r 
 'j

u
d

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
')
.

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

In
 t

h
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 w

e 
d

et
ai

l 
o

u
r 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e 

o
th

er
 r

is
ks

 o
f 

m
at

er
ia

l 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 i

n
 t

h
e 

A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
.  

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s,
 t

o
ge

th
er

 w
it

h
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
re

sp
o

n
se

s,
 a

re
 a

tt
ac

h
ed

 a
t 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 A
.  

Page 22



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

11

A
cc

o
u
n
ti
n
g 

p
o
lic

ie
s,
 e

st
im

at
es

 &
 j
u
d
g
em

en
ts

 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
a

re
a

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
o

li
c

y
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
c

o
g

n
it

io
n

�
Y

o
u

 c
o

m
p

lie
d

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 o

n
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 

re
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 a

s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
. 
 

Y
o

u
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 o

n
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 

y
o

u
 c

o
m

p
lie

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
m

�

G
re

e
n

J
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 e
s

ti
m

a
te

s
•

Y
o

u
 m

a
d

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 

-
u

s
e

fu
l 
lif

e
 o

f 
c
a

p
it
a

l 
e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t

−
p

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 

s
e

tt
le

m
e

n
ts

−
re

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s

−
im

p
a

ir
m

e
n

ts

−
P

ro
v
is

io
n

s

W
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 y

o
u

r 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ju

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
. 

W
e
 c

o
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 u

s
e

fu
l l

iv
e

s
 o

f 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
, 
p

la
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 

a
s
s
e

ts
 w

e
re

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
n

d
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 y
o

u
r 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
.

A
t 

th
is

 t
im

e
 w

e
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 

b
y
 y

o
u

r 
a

c
tu

a
ry

.

W
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
e

rt
y
, 
p

la
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t 
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 in

 y
o

u
r 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

e
y
 a

re
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

. 
Y

o
u

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 v
a

lu
e

d
 b

y
 u

p
lif

ti
n

g
 la

s
t 
y
e

a
r'
s
 f

ig
u

re
s
 b

y
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 in

d
e

x
. 
T

h
e

 

C
o

d
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
s
 a

 B
e

a
c
o

n
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

s
 v

a
lu

in
g

 a
 s

a
m

p
le

 

o
f 
h

o
u

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 e
x
tr

a
p

o
la

ti
n

g
 t
h

e
m

 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

h
o

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
d

o
p

te
d

 t
h

e
 i
n

d
e

x
a

ti
o

n
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 b
e

c
a

u
s
e

 o
f 
re

s
o

u
rc

in
g

 p
re

s
s
u

re
s
. 
W

e
 

c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 i
n

d
e

x
 i
s
 s

o
u

n
d

ly
 b

a
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 m

o
v
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
th

e
re

fo
re

 t
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o

 l
e

a
d

 

to
 a

 m
a

te
ri

a
l m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t.

  

W
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ir
m

e
n

ts
 in

 y
o

u
r 

d
ra

ft
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 
W

e
 f
o

u
n

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
s
e

 

w
e

re
 n

o
t 
a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
, 
a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
a

m
e

n
d

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 

c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
 in

 n
o

te
s
 9

 a
n

d
 3

5
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
s
e

 a
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

ts
 d

id
 n

o
t 

a
ff

e
c
t 
th

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

n
e

t 
b

o
o

k
 v

a
lu

e
s
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

a
s
s
e

ts
. 

�

A
m

b
e

r

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

�
M

a
rg

in
a

l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 p
o

lic
y
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 a

tt
ra

c
t 
a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 f
ro

m
 r

e
g

u
la

to
rs

�
A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 b

u
t 
s
c
o

p
e

 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re

�
A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

In
 t
h
is
 s
ec
ti
o
n
 w
e 
re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 o
u
r 
co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
 o
f 
ac
co
u
n
ti
n
g 
p
o
lic
ie
s,
 i
n
 p
ar
ti
cu
la
r 
re
ve
n
u
e 
re
co
gn
it
io
n
 p
o
lic
ie
s,
  
an
d
 k
ey
 e
st
im
at
es
 a
n
d
 j
u
d
ge
m
en
ts
 m
ad
e 
an
d
 i
n
cl
u
d
ed
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 

fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
. 
 

Page 23



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

12

A
cc

o
u
n
ti
n
g 

p
o
lic

ie
s,
 e

st
im

at
es

 &
 j
u
d
g
em

en
ts

 

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
a

re
a

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
o

li
c

y
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

E
s

ti
m

a
te

s
c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
�

B
a

d
 d

e
b

t
p

ro
v
is

io
n

Y
o

u
 m

a
d

e
 a

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 
£

2
4

,6
7

4
K

 f
o

r 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 b

a
d

 d
e

b
ts

. 
In

 r
e

v
ie

w
in

g
 

th
is

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

 w
e

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t
h

e
 a

s
s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

s
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
h

a
d

 m
a

d
e

 w
it
h

 

a
c
tu

a
l 
c
o

u
n

c
il 

ta
x
 r

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 r

a
te

s
, 
b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 h

is
to

ri
c
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

. 

W
e
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
v
e

rs
ta

te
d

  
th

e
 l
ik

e
ly

 a
m

o
u

n
t 
o

f 
b

a
d

 d
e

b
ts

 b
y
 

£
4

.2
 m

ill
io

n
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 
a

 m
a

te
ri

a
l d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

. 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t's

 v
ie

w
 i
s
 t
h

a
t 
it
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
s
 p

ru
d

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
y
 d

o
 n

o
t 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

 t
o

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 t
h

e
ir

 m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 a

t 
th

is
 t
im

e
, 
g

iv
e

n
 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

ta
x
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 
s
y
s
te

m
. 
W

e
 c

o
n

c
u

r 
w

it
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il'

s
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

. 

O
th

e
r 

a
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
li

c
ie

s
�

W
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
y
o

u
r 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 C

IP
F

A
 

C
o

d
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
.

Y
o

u
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
m

. 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 m

o
re

 c
la

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
o

f 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 o

n
 t
h

e
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 s
h

e
e

t.

T
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
in

d
e

m
n

it
y
 f
o

r 
fo

rm
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
 w

h
o

 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 t
o

 L
e

w
is

h
a

m
 H

o
m

e
s
 w

a
s
 a

n
 a

re
a

 o
f 

d
is

a
g

re
e

m
e
n

t 
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 i
ts

 f
o

rm
e

r 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
. 
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

d
is

c
lo

s
e

d
 t
h

e
 

p
e

n
s
io

n
 in

d
e

m
n

it
y
 a

s
 a

 c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
t 
lia

b
ili

ty
 u

n
d

e
r 

IA
S

3
7

. 
Y

o
u

 h
a

v
e

 

c
h

a
n

g
e

d
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r,
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 t
h

e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 c

o
s
t 
in

 n
o

te
 3

9
 

(D
e

fi
n

e
d

 B
e

n
e

fi
t 
S

c
h

e
m

e
s
).

 W
e

 c
o

n
c
u

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 n

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t.

O
u

r 
v
ie

w
 i
s
 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t
re

a
te

d
 a

s
 a

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 u

n
d

e
r 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 I
A

S
8

. 
In

 y
o

u
r 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 y

o
u

 h
a

v
e

 t
re

a
te

d
 t
h

is
 a

s
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
. 
T

h
e

 

e
ff

e
c
t 
o

f 
th

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 
m

a
te

ri
a

l a
n

d
 i
s
 a

 p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
a

l m
a

tt
e

r 
w

h
ic

h
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

a
lt
e

r 
y
o

u
r 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l p
o

s
it
io

n
. 

�

A
m

b
e

r

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

�
M

a
rg

in
a

l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 p
o

lic
y
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 a

tt
ra

c
t 
a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 f
ro

m
 r

e
g

u
la

to
rs

�
A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 b

u
t 
s
c
o

p
e

 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re

�
A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

y
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

In
 t
h
is
 s
ec
ti
o
n
 w
e 
re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 o
u
r 
co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
 o
f 
ac
co
u
n
ti
n
g 
p
o
lic
ie
s,
 i
n
 p
ar
ti
cu
la
r 
re
ve
n
u
e 
re
co
gn
it
io
n
 p
o
lic
ie
s,
  
an
d
 k
ey
 e
st
im
at
es
 a
n
d
 j
u
d
ge
m
en
ts
 m
ad
e 
an
d
 i
n
cl
u
d
ed
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 

fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
. 
 

Page 24



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

13

A
d
ju

st
ed

 m
is

st
at

em
en

ts

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

W
e 
se
t 
a 
tr
iv
ia
lit
y 
th
re
sh
o
ld
 o
f 
£
1,
06
6K
 (
w
h
ic
h
 i
s 
0.
1 
p
er
 c
en
t 
o
f 
gr
o
ss
 r
ev
en
u
e 
ex
p
en
d
it
u
re
).
 W
e 
d
ee
m
 e
rr
o
rs
 b
el
o
w
 t
h
is
 l
ev
el
 t
o
 b
e 
in
co
n
se
q
u
en
ti
al
 t
o
 o
u
r 
o
p
in
io
n
 a
n
d
 w
e 
d
o
 n
o
t 
re
p
o
rt
 

th
em
. 

W
e 
d
id
 n
o
t 
id
en
ti
fy
 a
n
y 
m
is
st
at
em
en
ts
 a
b
o
ve
 t
h
e 
tr
iv
ia
l 
th
re
sh
o
ld
 w
h
ic
h
 a
ff
ec
t 
th
e 
n
et
 e
xp
en
d
it
u
re
 p
o
si
ti
o
n
 o
r 
as
se
t 
va
lu
es
. 

Page 25



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

14

M
is

cl
as

si
fi
ca

ti
o
n
s 

&
 d

is
cl

o
su

re
 c

h
an

g
es

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

A
d
ju
st
m
en
t 
ty
p
e

V
a
lu
e

£
'0
00

A
cc
o
u
n
t 
b
a
la
n
ce

Im
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
h
e 
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l 
st
a
te
m
en
ts

1
M

is
cl

as
si

fi
ca

ti
o

n
25

,6
06

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

d
w

el
lin

gs
 –

n
o

te
 

9b
R

ev
al

u
at

io
n

s 
an

d
 i

m
p

ai
rm

en
ts

 w
er

e 
in

co
rr

ec
tl

y 
cl

as
si

fi
ed

 w
it

h
in

 n
o

te
 9

. T
h

is
 

d
id

 n
o

t 
af

fe
ct

 t
h

e 
o

ve
ra

ll 
n

et
 b

o
o

k 
va

lu
e

o
r 

th
e 

b
al

an
ce

 s
h

ee
t.

 

2
M

is
cl

as
si

fi
ca

ti
o

n
14

1,
94

5
O

th
er

 la
n

d
 a

n
d

 b
u

ild
in

gs
 

–
n

o
te

 9
b

R
ev

al
u

at
io

n
s 

an
d

 i
m

p
ai

rm
en

ts
 w

er
e 

in
co

rr
ec

tl
y 

cl
as

si
fi

ed
 w

it
h

in
 n

o
te

 9
. T

h
is

 
d

id
 n

o
t 

af
fe

ct
 t

h
e 

o
ve

ra
ll 

n
et

 b
o

o
k 

va
lu

e
o

r 
th

e 
b

al
an

ce
 s

h
ee

t.
 

3
D

is
cl

o
su

re
1,

80
8

O
th

er
 la

n
d

an
d

 b
u

ild
in

gs
 

–
n

o
te

 9
a

A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
m

ad
e 

so
th

at
 n

o
te

 9
a 

is
 c

o
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 n

o
te

 9
b

4
D

is
cl

o
su

re
39

,5
72

P
F

I 
as

se
ts

 –
n

o
te

 3
5c

A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
 m

ad
e 

to
 t

h
is

d
is

cl
o

su
re

 n
o

te
 t

o
 i

n
cl

u
d

e 
al

l 
P

F
I 

as
se

ts
 a

n
d

 t
o

 
co

rr
ec

tl
y 

cl
as

si
fy

 v
al

u
at

io
n

s 
an

d
 i

m
p

ai
rm

en
ts

5
D

is
cl

o
su

re
5,

31
2

O
p

er
at

in
g

le
as

es
 –

n
o

te
 

34
 -

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

as
 l

es
so

r
A

m
en

d
m

en
t

to
 t

h
e 

fu
tu

re
 c

o
m

m
it

m
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
as

 le
ss

o
r

6
D

is
cl

o
su

re
3,

01
3

O
p

er
at

in
g 

le
as

es
 –

n
o

te
 

34
 -

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

as
 l

es
se

e
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 t

h
e 

fu
tu

re
 c

o
m

m
it

m
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
as

 le
ss

ee

7
D

is
cl

o
su

re
15

,3
00

R
ev

al
u

at
io

n
 r

es
er

ve
T

h
e 

re
va

lu
at

io
n

 r
es

er
ve

 c
o

n
ta

in
s 

a 
d

eb
it

 b
al

an
ce

 o
f 

15
,3

00
 in

 r
es

p
ec

t 
o

f 
d

ec
en

t 
h

o
m

es
. T

h
is

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e 
ap

p
o

rt
io

n
ed

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
as

se
ts

 it
 r

el
at

es
 t

o
 r

at
h

er
 t

h
an

 a
s 

a 
se

p
ar

at
e 

lin
e 

in
 t

h
e 

re
va

lu
at

io
n

 r
es

er
ve

. 

8
M

is
cl

as
si

fi
ca

ti
o

n
3,

71
4

B
al

an
ce

 s
h

ee
t

L
o

an
 is

 m
is

cl
as

si
fi

ed
as

 l
o

n
g 

te
rm

 b
u

t 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e 
sh

o
rt

 t
er

m
 

9
D

is
cl

o
su

re
6,

93
3

an
d

 
3,

61
9

N
o

te
 1

2a
 –

fi
n

an
ci

al
 

in
st

ru
m

en
ts

F
in

an
ci

al
 i

n
st

ru
m

en
ts

 v
al

u
es

 w
er

e 
in

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

b
al

an
ce

 s
h

ee
t,

 b
ec

au
se

 
o

f 
la

te
 a

d
ju

st
m

en
ts

,  
an

d
 w

er
e 

al
so

 o
ve

rs
ta

te
d

 b
ec

au
se

 t
h

ey
 i

n
cl

u
d

ed
 d

eb
to

rs
 

an
d

 c
re

d
it

o
rs

 w
h

ic
h

 d
id

 n
o

t 
m

ee
t 

th
e 

d
ef

in
it

io
n

 o
f 

a 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 in
st

ru
m

en
t.

 

T
h
e 
ta
b
le
 b
el
o
w
 p
ro
vi
d
es
 d
et
ai
ls
 o
f 
m
is
cl
as
si
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
is
cl
o
su
re
 c
h
an
ge
s 
id
en
ti
fi
ed
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
au
d
it
 w
h
ic
h
 h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 m
ad
e
in
th
e 
fi
n
al
 s
et
 o
f 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
. 

Page 26



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

15

U
n
ad

ju
st

ed
 m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

W
e 
se
t 
a 
tr
iv
ia
lit
y 
th
re
sh
o
ld
 o
f 
£
1,
06
6K
 (
w
h
ic
h
 i
s 
0.
1 
p
er
 c
en
t 
o
f 
gr
o
ss
 r
ev
en
u
e 
ex
p
en
d
it
u
re
).
 W
e 
d
ee
m
 e
rr
o
rs
 b
el
o
w
 t
h
is
 l
ev
el
 t
o
 b
e 
in
co
n
se
q
u
en
ti
al
 t
o
 o
u
r 
o
p
in
io
n
 a
n
d
 w
e 
d
o
 n
o
t 
re
p
o
rt
 

th
em
. 

W
e 
d
id
 n
o
t 
id
en
ti
fy
 a
n
y 
m
is
st
at
em
en
ts
 a
b
o
ve
 t
h
e 
tr
iv
ia
l 
th
re
sh
o
ld
 w
h
ic
h
 M
an
ag
em
en
t 
h
as
 d
ec
lin
ed
 t
o
 a
m
en
d
. 
 

Page 27



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

16

In
te

rn
al

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

T
h

e 
p

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

an
 a

u
d

it
 i

s 
to

 e
xp

re
ss

 a
n

 o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.

O
u

r 
au

d
it

 i
n

cl
u

d
ed

 c
o

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
 o

f 
in

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 r

el
ev

an
t 

to
 t

h
e 

p
re

p
ar

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 i
n

 o
rd

er
 t

o
 d

es
ig

n
au

d
it

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
th

at
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
in

 
th

e 
ci

rc
u

m
st

an
ce

s,
 b

u
t 

n
o

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
p

u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

ex
p

re
ss

in
g 

an
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 t
h

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l. 

T
h

e 
m

at
te

rs
 r

ep
o

rt
ed

 h
er

e 
ar

e 
lim

it
ed

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 d
ef

ic
ie

n
ci

es
 

th
at

 w
e 

h
av

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 d
u

ri
n

g 
th

e 
co

u
rs

e 
o

f 
o

u
r 

au
d

it
 a

n
d

 t
h

at
 w

e 
h

av
e 

co
n

cl
u

d
ed

 a
re

 o
f 

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

im
p

o
rt

an
ce

 t
o

 m
er

it
 b

ei
n

g
re

p
o

rt
ed

 t
o

 y
o

u
 i

n
 a

cc
o

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 
au

d
it

in
g 

st
an

d
ar

d
s.

 T
h

es
e 

an
d

 o
th

er
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s,

 t
o

ge
th

er
 w

it
h

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
sp

o
n

se
s,

 a
re

 i
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 t
h

e 
ac

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 a
tt

ac
h

ed
 a

t 
ap

p
en

d
ix

 A
.

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

Is
s

u
e

 a
n

d
ri

s
k

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

1
.
� R
e

d

�
A

s
a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
a

n
 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
re

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 y

o
u

 h
a

d
 n

o
 i
n

-h
o

u
s
e

 v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 

e
x
p

e
rt

is
e

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
. 
T

h
is

 p
u

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
t 
ri

s
k
 o

f 
b

e
in

g
 u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 

c
o

m
p

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 
a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y
 p

la
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
q

u
ip

m
e

n
t.

�
Y

o
u

 r
e

c
ru

it
e

d
 a

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 v

a
lu

e
r 

a
t 
a

 l
a

te
 s

ta
g

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
, 
w

h
o

 w
a

s
 

a
b

le
 t
o

 c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 
s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
w

o
rk

 t
o

 a
s
s
u

re
 u

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 

w
e

re
 n

o
t 
m

a
te

ri
a

lly
 m

is
s
ta

te
d

. 

�
H

o
w

e
v
e

r 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
im

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 p

re
s
s
u

re
s
  
th

e
 v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 
s
tr

ic
tl
y
 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
  
in

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
re

s
p

e
c
ts

. 

-
th

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 w

a
s
 u

p
lif

te
d

 b
y
 a

n
 i
n

d
e

x
, 

w
h

e
re

a
s
 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

d
e

 i
s
 t
o

 v
a

lu
e

 a
 s

a
m

p
le

 o
f 

a
s
s
e

ts
 a

n
d

 e
x
tr

a
p

o
la

te
 t
o

 

th
e

 f
u

ll 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 u

s
in

g
 a

 b
e

a
c
o

n
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

. 
W

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t
h

e
 i
n

d
ic

e
s
 

u
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

e
y
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 a

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 e
s
ti
m

a
te

. 

-
y
o

u
 o

n
ly

 v
a

lu
e

d
 a

 s
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
th

re
e

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
, 
w

h
e

re
a

s
 t
h

e
 

C
o

d
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

s
 a

 f
u

ll 
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
. 
W

e
 n

o
te

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 o

th
e

r 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 a

re
 

im
m

a
te

ri
a

l i
n

 v
a

lu
e

.

-
y
o

u
 d

id
 n

o
t 
re

v
a

lu
e

 s
u

rp
lu

s
 a

s
s
e

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 a
t 

fa
ir

 v
a

lu
e

.

-
th

e
re

 a
re

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
 o

f 
a

s
s
e

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 v

a
lu

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
iv

e
 

y
e

a
r 

c
y
c
le

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r 
th

e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 i
s
 t
ri

v
ia

l.

•
E

n
s
u
re

 y
o
u
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 e

x
p
e
rt

is
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 

m
e
e
t 
th

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
d
e
 

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t

�
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d
e
fi
c
ie

n
c
y
 –

ri
s
k
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

�
D

e
fi
c
ie

n
c
y
 –

ri
s
k
 o

f 
in

c
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
ti
a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

Page 28



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

17

In
te

rn
al

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 (
co

n
ti
n
u
ed

)

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

Is
s

u
e

 a
n

d
ri

s
k

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s

2
.
�

A
m

b
e

r

�
Y

o
u

r 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 a

u
d

it
o

rs
 c

o
m

m
e

n
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
 y

o
u

r 
a

s
s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r 

d
id

 n
o

t 
re

c
o

n
c
ile

 

to
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

�
D

u
ri

n
g

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 m
a

d
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 in

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
s
s
e

t 

re
g

is
te

r.
 T

h
e

 g
ro

s
s
 b

o
o

k
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d

 n
e

t 
b

o
o

k
 v

a
lu

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

s
s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r 

n
o

w
 

m
a

te
ri

a
lly

 a
g

re
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

�
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 s

c
o

p
e

 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
fu

rt
h

e
r.

 T
h

e
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
is

 n
o

t 
b

e
in

g
 u

s
e

d
 

a
s
 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 t
o

o
l 
to

 p
o

p
u

la
te

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

m
o

s
tl
y
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 a

s
 

a
 y

e
a

r 
e

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 
s
p

re
a

d
s
h

e
e

ts
. 
T

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 in

 h
o

w
 m

o
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 b
e

in
g

 a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

th
e

 r
e

g
is

te
r 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 
  

 

�
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 a
s
s
e

t 
re

g
is

te
r 

a
s
 a

 t
o

o
l 
to

 d
ri

v
e

 

c
a

p
it
a

l a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

3
.
�

A
m

b
e

r

�
W

e
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
b

a
la

n
c
e

s
  
d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 in

 y
o

u
r 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 
T

h
e

s
e

 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 £

1
0

 m
ill

io
n

 w
h

ic
h

 a
c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 b
y
 

L
lo

y
d

s
 T

S
B

. 
W

h
e

n
 w

e
 c

h
e

c
k
e

d
 t
h

is
 t
o

 c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
s
 w

e
 f

o
u

n
d

 i
t 
w

a
s
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 

h
e

ld
 a

t 
B

a
n

k
 o

f 
S

c
o

tl
a

n
d

, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 c

o
rr

e
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 i
ts

 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

h
a

d
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 n
a

m
e

d
 L

lo
y
d

s
 T

S
B

.

�
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 c

la
ri

fi
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
B

a
n

k
 o

f 
S

c
o

tl
a

n
d

 is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 

L
lo

y
d

s
 g

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 is

 a
t 
a

 g
ro

u
p

 l
e

v
e

l,
 n

o
t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

in
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
. 

�
E

n
s
u

re
th

e
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
 is

 a
lw

a
y
s
 s

p
e

c
if
ie

d
, 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 

a
 g

ro
u

p
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip

4
. 
�

A
m

b
e

r

�
O

u
r 

IT
 a

u
d

it
o

rs
c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 
a

n
 I
T

 r
is

k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t,

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 a
d

e
q

u
a

c
y
 

o
f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 I
T

 s
y
s
te

m
. 
W

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 

w
e

a
k
n

e
s
s
e

s
. 
b

u
t 
ra

is
e

d
 s

o
m

e
 p

o
in

ts
 o

f 
b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 s
h

a
re

d
 

w
it
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.
 

�
Y

o
u

 p
la

n
 t
o

 u
p

g
ra

d
e

 y
o

u
r 

O
ra

c
le

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
in

g
 w

it
h

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
w

h
a

t 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
ro

u
n

d
 d

a
ta

 

m
ig

ra
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 u

p
g

ra
d

e
d

 s
y
s
te

m
. 

•
C

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 b
e

s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 p
o

in
ts

 r
a

is
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 I
T

 a
u

d
it
  

m
e

m
o

ra
n

d
u

m

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t

�
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d
e
fi
c
ie

n
c
y
 –

ri
s
k
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

�
D

e
fi
c
ie

n
c
y
 –

ri
s
k
 o

f 
in

c
o
n
s
e
q

u
e
n
ti
a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

Page 29



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

18

O
th

er
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

at
io

n
 r

eq
u
ir
em

en
ts

Is
s

u
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

1
.

M
a

tt
e

rs
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 f
ra

u
d

�
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 P

a
n

e
l.
 W

e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
ll 

in
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
 o

v
e

r 

£
1

0
,0

0
0

 w
h

ic
h

 o
c
c
u

rr
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
. 
N

o
 o

th
e

r 
is

s
u

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
.

2
.

M
a

tt
e

rs
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 l
a

w
s

 a
n

d
 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

�
W

e
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
in

c
id

e
n

c
e
s
 o

f 
n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

w
it
h

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
la

w
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
.

3
.

W
ri

tt
e

n
 r

e
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
�

A
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
le

tt
e

r 
o

f 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

4
.

D
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s

�
W

e
re

v
ie

w
e

d
 n

a
rr

a
ti
v
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
re

v
ie

w
 f

o
u

n
d

 n
o

 m
a

te
ri

a
l o

m
is

s
io

n
s
 in

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

5
.

M
a

tt
e

rs
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 r
e

la
te

d
 

p
a

rt
ie

s

�
W

e
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

n
y
 r

e
la

te
d

 p
a

rt
y
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d

6
.

G
o

in
g

 c
o

n
c

e
rn

�
O

u
r 

w
o

rk
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
a

n
y
 r

e
a

s
o

n
 t
o

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 p
re

p
a

re
 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 a

 g
o

in
g

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
 

b
a

s
is

.

7
. 

A
n

n
u

a
l 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t

�
T

h
e

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
c
o

m
p

lie
s

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 b
y
 C

IP
F

A
. 
W

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fy

 a
n

y
 o

m
is

s
io

n
s
 o

r 
a

n
y
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 i
n

c
o

n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h

 o
u

r 
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
. 

�
A

t 
1

7
 p

a
g

e
s
 i
t
is

 o
n

e
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o

n
g

e
s
t 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 S
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

e
n

 .
 I
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

te
re

s
ts

 o
f
m

a
k
in

g
 y

o
u

r 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 le

s
s
 

c
lu

tt
e

re
d

 a
n

d
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 a
 r

e
a

d
e

r,
 y

o
u

 m
a

y
 w

is
h

 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

h
o

w
 t

h
is

 p
u

b
lic

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 
c
o

u
ld

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
te

 y
o

u
r 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 in
 a

 m
o

re
 s

u
c
c
in

c
t 
w

a
y
. 

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

W
e 
se
t 
o
u
t 
b
el
o
w
 d
et
ai
ls
 o
f 
o
th
er
 m
at
te
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e 
ar
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 b
y 
au
d
it
in
g 
st
an
d
ar
d
s 
to
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
e 
to
 t
h
o
se
 c
h
ar
ge
d
 w
it
h
 g
o
ve
rn
an
ce
.

Page 30



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T
S

e
c
ti

o
n

 3
:

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o
n
ey

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
g

s

0
3

.
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y

0
4

.
F

e
e

s
, 
n

o
n

 a
u

d
it

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

0
5

.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

 m
a

tt
e

rs

Page 31



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

20

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o
n
ey

 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o
n
e
y

V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n

T
h

e 
C

o
d

e 
o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

20
10

 d
es

cr
ib

es
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 t
o

 p
u

t 
in

 
p

la
ce

 p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 t

o
:

•
se

cu
re

 e
co

n
o

m
y,

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s 
in

 i
ts

 u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

es
•

en
su

re
 p

ro
p

er
 s

te
w

ar
d

sh
ip

 a
n

d
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
•

re
vi

ew
 r

eg
u

la
rl

y 
th

e 
ad

eq
u

ac
y 

an
d

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
n

es
s 

o
f 

th
es

e 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

.

W
e 

ar
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 g

iv
e 

o
u

r 
V

F
M

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
tw

o
 c

ri
te

ri
a 

sp
ec

if
ie

d
 b

y 
th

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

u
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 

u
n

d
er

 t
h

e 
C

o
d

e 
o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
ct

ic
e.

 

•
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
a
s 
p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
a
n
g
em

en
ts
 i
n
 p
la
ce
 f
o
r 
se
cu
ri
n
g
 f
in
a
n
ci
a
l 

re
si
li
en
ce
. 

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

as
 r

o
b

u
st

 s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 t
o

 m
an

ag
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 r

is
ks

 a
n

d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s,
 a

n
d

 t
o

 s
ec

u
re

 a
 s

ta
b

le
 f

in
an

ci
al

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

 t
h

at
 

en
ab

le
s 

it
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 o

p
er

at
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

fo
re

se
ea

b
le

 f
u

tu
re

.
•
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
a
s 
p
ro
p
er
 a
rr
a
n
g
em

en
ts
 f
o
r 
ch
a
ll
en
g
in
g
 h
o
w
 i
t 
se
c
u
re
s 

ec
o
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s.
 T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

is
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

si
n

g 
it

s 
re

so
u

rc
es

 w
it

h
in

 t
ig

h
te

r 
b

u
d

ge
ts

, f
o

r 
ex

am
p

le
 b

y 
ac

h
ie

vi
n

g 
co

st
 r

ed
u

ct
io

n
s 

an
d

 
b

y 
im

p
ro

vi
n

g 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 a
n

d
 p

ro
d

u
ct

iv
it

y.

K
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s

S
ec
u
ri
n
g
 f
in
a
n
ci
a
l 
re
si
li
en
ce

W
e 

h
av

e 
u

n
d

er
ta

ke
n

 a
 r

ev
ie

w
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n

si
d

er
ed

 y
o

u
r 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 a

ga
in

st
 t

h
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

re
e 

ex
p

ec
te

d
 c

h
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
s 

o
f 

p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

s 
d

ef
in

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
:

•
F

in
an

ci
al

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

;
•

F
in

an
ci

al
 p

la
n

n
in

g;
 a

n
d

 
•

F
in

an
ci

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

l

W
e 

h
av

e 
re

p
o

rt
ed

 t
h

e 
d

et
ai

le
d

 r
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
o

u
r 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 r
ev

ie
w

 i
n

 a
 

se
p

ar
at

e 
re

p
o

rt
. W

e 
co

n
cl

u
d

ed
 t

h
at

 y
o

u
 h

av
e 

so
u

n
d

 b
u

d
ge

ta
ry

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 in
 p

la
ce

, 
su

p
p

o
rt

ed
 b

y 
ro

b
u

st
 f

in
an

ci
al

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

n
d

 i
n

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
.

O
u

r 
w

o
rk

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
at

 y
o

u
 u

n
d

er
sp

en
t 

ag
ai

n
st

 y
o

u
r 

re
ve

n
u

e 
b

u
d

ge
t 

b
y 

£
 3

.5
 

m
ill

io
n

 in
 2

01
2/

13
. T

h
is

 w
as

 t
h

e 
th

ir
d

 s
u

cc
es

si
ve

 y
ea

r 
o

f 
u

n
d

er
sp

en
d

, 
d

em
o

n
st

ra
ti

n
g 

yo
u

r 
st

ro
n

g 
tr

ac
k 

re
co

rd
 o

f 
ro

b
u

st
 f

in
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t.

 

Y
o

u
 h

av
e 

n
o

t 
h

ad
 t

o
 d

ra
w

 o
n

 r
es

er
ve

s 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e 
re

ve
n

u
e 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

 
w

er
e 

ab
le

 t
o

 i
n

cr
ea

se
 t

h
e 

le
ve

l 
o

f 
u

sa
b

le
 r

es
er

ve
s 

b
y 

£
26

.2
 m

ill
io

n
 in

 2
01

2/
13

. 
T

h
e 

le
ve

l 
o

f 
re

se
rv

es
 is

 b
ro

ad
ly

 i
n

 l
in

e 
w

it
h

 o
th

er
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
gh

s.
 T

h
e 

le
ve

l 
o

f 
yo

u
r 

b
o

rr
o

w
in

gs
 h

as
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
tl

y 
re

d
u

ce
d

 d
u

e 
to

 a
 l

ar
ge

 r
ec

ei
p

t 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

ab
o

lit
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
h

o
u

si
n

g 
su

b
si

d
y 

sy
st

em
 i

n
 2

01
2 

u
se

d
 t

o
 r

ep
ay

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g 
. 

Y
o

u
 r

ec
o

gn
is

e 
th

at
 y

o
u

r 
co

u
n

ci
l 

ta
x 

co
lle

ct
io

n
 r

at
e 

fo
r 

20
12

/
13

 w
as

 b
el

o
w

 
ta

rg
et

. S
ta

ti
st

ic
s 

p
u

b
lis

h
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
an

d
 L

o
ca

l 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

sh
o

w
 a

 r
at

e 
o

f 
94

.2
 p

er
 c

en
t,

 c
o

m
p

ar
ed

 t
o

 a
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

ve
ra

ge
 o

f 
96

.4
 p

er
 c

en
t.

  
A

ll 
co

u
n

ci
ls

 a
re

 f
ac

ed
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
is

su
e 

th
at

 c
o

lle
ct

io
n

 r
at

es
 c

o
u

ld
 

d
et

er
io

ra
te

 f
u

rt
h

er
 in

 2
01

3 
d

u
e 

to
 t

h
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 c

o
u

n
ci

l 
ta

x 
b

en
ef

it
s 

in
tr

o
d

u
ce

d
 

u
n

d
er

 t
h

e 
W

el
fa

re
 R

ef
o

rm
 A

ct
. 

Y
o

u
r 

m
ed

iu
m

 t
er

m
 f

in
an

ci
al

 p
la

n
 (

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

u
rv

ey
) 

co
ve

rs
 t

h
e 

p
er

io
d

 t
o

 
20

16
. Y

o
u

 h
av

e 
se

t 
a 

b
al

an
ce

d
 b

u
d

ge
t 

fo
r 

20
13

/
14

 b
u

t 
st

ill
 n

ee
d

 t
o

 i
d

en
ti

fy
 

fu
rt

h
er

 s
av

in
gs

 f
o

r 
20

15
 o

n
w

ar
d

s.
 

W
e 

co
n

cl
u

d
ed

 y
o

u
 h

av
e 

ad
eq

u
at

e 
ar

ra
n

ge
m

en
ts

 t
o

 s
ec

u
re

 f
in

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

.

Page 32



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

21

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o
n
ey

 

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o
n
e
y

V
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 
M
o
n
e
y
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n

K
e
y
 f
in
d
in
g
s
 (
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
)

C
h
a
ll
en
g
in
g
 e
co
n
o
m
y,
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
cy
 a
n
d
 e
ff
ec
ti
ve
n
es
s

W
e 

h
av

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 w

h
et

h
er

 y
o

u
 h

av
e 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
se

d
 r

es
o

u
rc

es
 t

o
 t

ak
e 

ac
co

u
n

t 
o

f 
th

e 
ti

gh
te

r 
co

n
st

ra
in

ts
 y

o
u

 a
re

 o
p

er
at

in
g 

w
it

h
in

. 

T
h

e 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 g

re
w

 b
y 

ar
o

u
n

d
 a

 m
ill

io
n

 b
et

w
ee

n
 2

00
1 

an
d

 2
01

1 
an

d
 

is
 t

h
e 

fa
st

es
t 

gr
o

w
in

g 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

U
K

, w
it

h
 a

 y
o

u
n

ge
r 

ag
e 

p
ro

fi
le

 t
h

an
 e

ls
ew

h
er

e 
in

 
th

e 
U

K
. T

h
is

 p
re

se
n

ts
 a

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

se
t 

o
f 

ch
al

le
n

ge
s 

ar
o

u
n

d
 a

 g
ro

w
th

 o
f 

d
em

an
d

 
fo

r 
ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
, h

o
u

si
n

g 
an

d
 w

el
fa

re
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 p

ar
ti

cu
la

r.
 T

h
e 

B
o

ro
u

gh
 n

ee
d

ed
 2

3 
n

ew
 r

ec
ep

ti
o

n
 c

la
ss

es
 in

 2
01

2/
13

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 n

ee
d

 a
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 2

5 
cl

as
se

s 
th

is
 y

ea
r.

T
h

e 
ec

o
n

o
m

ic
 e

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

t 
re

m
ai

n
s 

ch
al

le
n

gi
n

g,
 w

it
h

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g 

p
re

ss
u

re
 o

n
 

d
em

an
d

 f
o

r 
se

rv
ic

es
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

b
en

ef
it

s 
an

d
 h

o
m

el
es

sn
es

s.
 A

t 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

ti
m

e 
th

o
se

 
ec

o
n

o
m

ic
 p

re
ss

u
re

s 
cr

ea
te

 d
o

w
n

w
ar

d
 p

re
ss

u
re

 o
n

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 

ta
x 

re
ce

ip
ts

 a
n

d
 o

th
er

 
so

u
rc

es
 o

f 
d

em
an

d
 l

ed
 i

n
co

m
e.

  

R
ec

en
t 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 l

eg
is

la
ti

o
n

 h
av

e 
cr

ea
te

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 p
re

ss
u

re
s 

in
 r

el
at

io
n

 t
o

 
ce

n
tr

al
 G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

fu
n

d
in

g.
 A

s 
a 

co
n

se
q

u
en

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
W

el
fa

re
 R

ef
o

rm
 A

ct
 y

o
u

 
ar

e 
n

o
w

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f 
co

u
n

ci
l 

ta
x 

b
en

ef
it

s,
 w

it
h

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

tl
y 

re
d

u
ce

d
 

fu
n

d
in

g.
 Y

o
u

 a
re

 p
re

p
ar

in
g 

fo
r 

th
e 

u
n

iv
er

sa
l c

re
d

it
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
in

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

 in
 O

ct
o

b
er

 
20

13
 a

n
d

 i
n

 d
o

in
g 

so
 y

o
u

 a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g 
w

it
h

 y
o

u
r 

m
o

st
 v

u
ln

er
ab

le
 c

lie
n

ts
 t

o
 m

it
ig

at
e 

th
e 

im
p

ac
t 

o
f 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
s.

S
in

ce
 2

01
0 

yo
u

 h
av

e 
su

cc
es

sf
u

lly
 im

p
le

m
en

te
d

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
o

f 
sa

vi
n

gs
 r

es
u

lt
in

g 
in

 o
ve

r 
£

56
 m

ill
io

n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

ci
es

. Y
o

u
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

 9
7 

p
er

 c
en

t 
o

f 
p

la
n

n
ed

 s
av

in
gs

 in
 

20
12

/
13

.

In
 D

ec
em

b
er

 2
01

2 
th

e 
S

ec
re

ta
ry

 o
f 

S
ta

te
 a

n
n

o
u

n
ce

d
 f

u
rt

h
er

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n

s 
to

 
R

ev
en

u
e 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 G
ra

n
t,

 r
eq

u
ir

in
g 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

to
 m

ak
e 

an
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 £
53

.5
 

m
ill

io
n

 s
av

in
gs

 b
et

w
ee

n
 2

01
3 

an
d

 2
01

5.
  S

o
m

e 
£

20
.9

 m
ill

io
n

 o
f 

th
o

se
 s

av
in

gs
 

ar
e 

b
u

ilt
 in

to
 t

h
e 

b
u

d
ge

t 
fo

r 
20

12
/

13
.  

A
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 £

32
 m

ill
io

n
 is

 n
ee

d
ed

 f
o

r 
th

e 
20

14
/

15
 b

u
d

ge
t 

o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 a
ro

u
n

d
 £

14
 m

ill
io

n
 is

 s
ti

ll 
to

 b
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
. 

Y
o

u
 h

av
e 

a 
st

ro
n

g 
tr

ac
k 

re
co

rd
 o

f 
m

ak
in

g 
ef

fi
ci

en
ci

es
. T

h
e 

sc
al

e 
o

f 
fu

tu
re

 
sa

vi
n

gs
 r

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

 m
ea

n
 t

h
at

 m
o

re
 r

ad
ic

al
 s

av
in

gs
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 t
o

 
co

n
ti

n
u

e 
th

is
 g

o
o

d
 t

ra
ck

 r
ec

o
rd

.  

T
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 p

u
b

lis
h

es
 v

al
u

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n

ey
 p

ro
fi

le
s 

o
n

 i
ts

 w
eb

si
te

, w
h

ic
h

 
co

m
p

ar
e 

co
u

n
ci

ls
' c

o
st

s 
p

er
 h

ea
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
o

se
 o

f 
si

m
ila

r 
co

u
n

ci
ls

. T
h

es
e 

sh
o

w
 

yo
u

r 
o

ve
ra

ll 
co

st
s 

to
 b

e 
b

ro
ad

ly
 i

n
 li

n
e 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
ee

r 
gr

o
u

p
, b

u
t 

h
ig

h
er

 in
 s

o
m

e 
sp

ec
if

ic
 a

re
as

 m
o

st
 n

o
ta

b
ly

 a
d

u
lt

 s
o

ci
al

 c
ar

e.
  

 

A
t 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
ti

m
e 

as
 m

ak
in

g 
sa

vi
n

gs
, y

o
u

 a
re

 p
ro

gr
es

si
n

g 
w

it
h

 a
m

b
it

io
u

s 
p

la
n

s 
to

 
re

ge
n

er
at

e 
th

e 
B

o
ro

u
gh

 a
s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
yo

u
r 

vi
si

o
n

 t
o

 m
ak

e 
L

ew
is

h
am

 t
h

e 
b

es
t 

p
la

ce
 

to
 l

iv
e,

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 l
ea

rn
 i

n
 L

o
n

d
o

n
.

O
v
e
ra
ll
 V
F
M
 c
o
n
c
lu
s
io
n

O
n

 t
h

e 
b

as
is

 o
f 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

, a
n

d
 h

av
in

g 
re

ga
rd

 t
o

 t
h

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 o

n
 t

h
e 

sp
ec

if
ie

d
 

cr
it

er
ia

 p
u

b
lis

h
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

, w
e 

ar
e 

sa
ti

sf
ie

d
 t

h
at

 i
n

 a
ll 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

re
sp

ec
ts

 t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 t

o
 s

ec
u

re
 

ec
o

n
o

m
y,

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s 
in

 it
s 

u
se

 o
f 

re
so

u
rc

es
 f

o
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
n

d
in

g 
31

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
3.

Page 33



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

22

V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o
n
e
y

R
e

s
id

u
a

l 
R

is
k

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

s
 o

b
ta

in
e

d
C

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 r

e
s

id
u

a
l 
ri

s
k

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
a

y
 n

o
t 
b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
 £

2
0

.9
m

ill
io

n
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 

a
p

p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
3

/1
4

, 
d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

le
v
e

l 
o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 

a
lr

e
a

d
y
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 t
h

re
e

 y
e

a
rs

. 

Y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 a
 g

o
o

d
 t
ra

c
k
 r

e
c
o

rd
 o

f 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 
9

7
 p

e
r 

c
e

n
t 
o

f 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 w

e
re

 r
e

a
lis

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

1
2

/1
3

. 

T
h

e
 l
a

s
t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
fi
n

a
n

c
e

 r
e

p
o

rt
 t
o

 t
h

e
 P

u
b

lic
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 S

e
le

c
t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 f
o

re
c
a

s
ts

 t
h

a
t 
9

3
 

p
e

r 
c
e

n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 2

0
1

3
/1

4
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 

b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

W
h
ile

 t
h

e
 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
2

0
1

3
/1

4
 i
s
 a

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 g

o
o

d
 t
ra

c
k
 r

e
c
o

rd
 a

n
d

 r
o

b
u

s
t
in

-

y
e

a
r 

fo
re

c
a

s
ti
n

g
 in

d
ic

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
a

b
le

.

S
a

v
in

g
s
 p

la
n

s
 f
o

r 
2

0
1

4
/1

5
 a

n
d

 

b
e

y
o

n
d

 m
a

y
 s

tr
u

g
g

le
 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 

th
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 u

s
in

g
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 a

lo
n

e
.

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 S

e
c
re

ta
ry

o
f 
S

ta
te

's
 

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 in

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 G
ra

n
t,

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

 h
a

s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

th
a

t 
£

3
2

 m
ill

io
n

 s
a

v
in

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 i
n

 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

. 
T

o
 d

a
te

 o
v
e

r 
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

a
t 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 
In

re
c
e

n
t 
d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
h

a
v
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

ro
u

n
d

 £
1

4
 

m
ill

io
n

 o
f 

s
a

v
in

g
s
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
o

r 

2
0

1
4

/1
5

. 
 

T
h

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
is

 o
f 
a

 s
im

ila
r 

o
rd

e
r

to
 t
h

a
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

y
e

a
rs

. 
Y

o
u

 h
a

v
e

 a
lr

e
a

d
y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h

e
 

s
c
a

le
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

. 

T
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 
V

fM
 c

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 a

ga
in

st
 t

h
e 

sp
ec

if
ie

d
 c

ri
te

ri
a 

w
e 

p
er

fo
rm

ed
 a

 r
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
ag

ai
n

st
 V

fM
 r

is
k 

in
d

ic
at

o
rs

 s
p

ec
if

ie
d

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g 
co

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 o
f 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 w
e 

n
o

te
d

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

re
si

d
u

al
 r

is
ks

 t
o

 o
u

r 
V

fM
 c

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
:

Page 34



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T
S

e
c
ti

o
n

 4
:

F
ee

s,
 n

o
n
 a

u
d
it
 s

er
v
ic

es
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
ep

en
d
en

ce

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
g

s

0
3

.
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y

0
4

.
F

e
e

s
, 
n

o
n

 a
u

d
it

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

0
5

.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

 m
a

tt
e

rs

Page 35



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

24

F
e

e
s

P
e

r 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n £

A
c

tu
a

l 
fe

e
s

 

£

C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
u

d
it

2
5

5
,0

4
4

2
5

5
,0

4
4

G
ra

n
t 
c
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
7

8
,7

5
0

7
8

,7
5

0

T
o

ta
l 
a

u
d

it
 f

e
e

s
3

3
3

,7
9

4
3

3
3

,7
9

4

F
ee

s,
 n

o
n
 a

u
d
it
 s

er
v
ic

es
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
ep

en
d
en

ce

W
e 

co
n

fi
rm

 b
el

o
w

 o
u

r 
fi

n
al

 f
ee

s 
ch

ar
ge

d
 f

o
r 

th
e 

au
d

it
 a

n
d

 p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 o
f 

n
o

n
-a

u
d

it
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 e
th

ic
s

W
e 

co
n

fi
rm

 t
h

at
 t

h
er

e 
ar

e 
n

o
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

fa
ct

s 
o

r 
m

at
te

rs
 t

h
at

 i
m

p
ac

t 
o

n
 o

u
r 

in
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

s 
au

d
it

o
rs

 
th

at
 w

e 
ar

e 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 o
r 

w
is

h
 t

o
 d

ra
w

 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

at
te

n
ti

o
n

. W
e 

h
av

e 
co

m
p

lie
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

A
u

d
it

in
g 

P
ra

ct
ic

es
 

B
o

ar
d

's
 E

th
ic

al
 S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

an
d

 t
h

er
ef

o
re

 w
e 

co
n

fi
rm

 t
h

at
 w

e 
ar

e 
in

d
ep

en
d

en
t 

an
d

 a
re

 a
b

le
 t

o
 e

xp
re

ss
 a

n
 

o
b

je
ct

iv
e 

o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.

W
e 

co
n

fi
rm

 t
h

at
 w

e 
h

av
e 

im
p

le
m

en
te

d
 p

o
lic

ie
s 

an
d

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
re

q
u

ir
em

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

A
u

d
it

in
g 

P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

o
ar

d
's

 E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s.

F
e

e
s
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

S
e

rv
ic

e
F

e
e

s
 £

A
d

v
is

o
ry

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 P

F
I 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s

7
,0

0
0

F
e
e
s
, 
n
o
n
 a

u
d
it
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e

Page 36



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T
S

e
c
ti

o
n

 5
:

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

at
io

n
 o

f 
au

d
it
 m

at
te

rs

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
g

s

0
3

.
V

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e

y

0
4

.
F

e
e

s
, 
n

o
n

 a
u

d
it

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

0
5

.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

 m
a

tt
e

rs

Page 37



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

26

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

at
io

n
 o

f 
au

d
it
 m

at
te

rs
 t
o
 t
h
o
se

 c
h
ar

g
ed

 w
it
h
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce

O
u

r 
c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 p
la

n

A
u

d
it

 

P
la

n

A
u

d
it

 

F
in

d
in

g
s

R
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t/

th
o

s
e

 

c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

�

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 s

c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 t
im

in
g

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
. 
F

o
rm

, 
ti
m

in
g

 

a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
c
o

n
te

n
t 
o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

s

�

V
ie

w
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

  
o

f 
th

e
 e

n
ti
ty

's
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
, 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
n

d
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 w
ri

tt
e

n
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
o

u
g

h
t

�

C
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y

�
�

A
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
th

a
t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
e

th
ic

a
l 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

, 
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 m

ig
h

t 
 b

e
 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 b
e

a
r 

o
n

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n
c
e

. 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 
n

o
n

-a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 b

y
 G

ra
n

t 
T

h
o

rn
to

n
 U

K
 L

L
P

 a
n

d
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 f
ir

m
s
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

  
fe

e
s
 c

h
a

rg
e

d
 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 
s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
s
 a

p
p

lie
d

 t
o

 t
h

re
a

ts
 t
o

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

�
�

M
a

te
ri

a
l 
w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
�

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
s
u

s
p

ic
io

n
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

/o
r 

o
th

e
rs

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 in

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

�

C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 l
a

w
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s

�

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 a

u
d

it
o

r'
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

�

U
n

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
�

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
ri

s
in

g
 i
n

 c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 r
e

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s

�

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 g
o

in
g

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
�

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 o
n

 A
u

d
it
in

g
 (

IS
A

) 
2

6
0

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

th
e

r 
IS

A
s
, 
p

re
s
c
ri

b
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 w

it
h

 t
h

o
s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 

w
e

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 t
a

b
le

 o
p

p
o

s
it
e

. 
 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 o
u

tl
in

e
d

 o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
, 
w

h
ile

 t
h

is
 A

u
d

it
 

F
in

d
in

g
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 p
re

s
e

n
ts

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 

w
it
h

 a
n

 e
x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
 a

s
 t
o

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

d
.

R
e

s
p

e
c

ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 
o

f 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
o

f 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

(w
w

w
.a

u
d

it
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
).

 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
, 
th

e
 b

o
d

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
a

p
p

o
in

ti
n

g
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

u
b

lic
 b

o
d

ie
s
 

in
 E

n
g

la
n

d
. 
A

s
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
 b

ro
a

d
 r

e
m

it
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
 f
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
. 

O
u

r 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 is

 s
e

t 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 (
'th

e
 

C
o

d
e

')
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 p

re
s
c
ri

b
e

d
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

lly
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 w

o
rk

. 
O

u
r 

w
o

rk
 c

o
n

s
id

e
rs

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 k

e
y
 r

is
k
s
 w

h
e

n
 r

e
a

c
h

in
g

 o
u

r 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 C
o

d
e

. 

It
 i
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 

th
e

 c
o

n
d

u
c
t 
o

f 
it
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
, 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
p

u
b

lic
 m

o
n

e
y
 i
s
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r.
  
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 f
u

lf
ill

in
g

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
.

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 m

a
tt
e
rs

Page 38



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

27

A
p

p
en

d
ic

es

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 39



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

28

A
p
p
en

d
ix

 A
: 
A

ct
io

n
 p

la
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
H

ig
h

-
S

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
e
ff

e
c
t 
o
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
s
y
s
te

m
M

e
d

iu
m

-
E

ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
s
y
s
te

m
L

o
w

-
B

e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

R
e

c

N
o

.
R

e
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

P
ri

o
ri

ty
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

d
a

te
 &

 

re
s

p
o

n
s

ib
il

it
y

E
n
s
u
re

 y
o
u
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
 e

x
p
e
rt

is
e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
d
e
 

H
ig

h
W

e
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
d
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

T
 T

h
o
m

p
s
o
n

F
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 v

a
lu

e
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 u

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 

b
e
a
c
o
n
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
d
e

M
e
d
iu

m
W

e
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
d
e
 

w
ill

 b
e
 m

e
t

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

T
 T

h
o
m

p
s
o
n

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 a

s
s
e
t 
re

g
is

te
r 

a
s
 a

 t
o
o
l 
to

 
d
ri
v
e
 t

h
e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

M
e
d
iu

m
W

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
t 

re
g
is

te
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

R
 L

a
m

b
e
th

F
o
r

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 e

n
s
u
re

 y
o
u
 a

p
p
ly

 t
h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
in

 r
e
s
p
e
c
t 
o
f 
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
s
, 

im
p
a
ir
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 P

F
I 

a
s
s
e
ts

M
e
d
iu

m
W

e
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
o
p
te

d

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

R
 L

a
m

b
e
th

A
p
p
o
rt

io
n
 t
h
e
 £

1
5
.3

 m
ill

io
n
 d

e
c
e
n
t 
h
o
m

e
s
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 

in
 t
h
e

re
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 a

s
s
e
ts

 i
t 
re

la
te

s
 

to

M
e
d
iu

m
T

h
is

 a
p
p
o
rt

io
n
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

p
p
lie

d
 t

o
 t
h
e
 o

p
e
n
in

g
 

b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 a

s
 a

t 
1
s
t 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

R
 L

a
m

b
e
th

R
e
v
ie

w
th

e
 d

is
c
lo

s
u
re

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t,
 w

it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 m

a
k
in

g
 it

 m
o
re

 s
u
c
c
in

c
t 

a
n
d
 r

e
a
d
a
b
le

L
o
w

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4

K
 N

ic
o
ls

o
n

C
o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 p

o
in

ts
ra

is
e
d
 i
n
 o

u
r 

IT
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

m
e
m

o
ra

n
d
u
m

 f
o
r 

b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 I
T

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

L
o
w

T
h
e
s
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 O
ra

c
le

 R
1
2
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
y
s
te

m

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

S
 B

e
rl
in

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 40



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

29

A
p
p
en

d
ix

 B
: 
A

u
d
it
 o

p
in

io
n

W
e
 a

n
ti

c
ip

a
te

 w
e
 w

il
l 
p

ro
v

id
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 w

it
h

 a
n

 u
n

m
o

d
if

ie
d

 a
u

d
it

 r
e
p

o
rt

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 A
U

D
IT

O
R

’S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 T

O
 T

H
E

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
 O

F
 T

H
E

 L
O

N
D

O
N

 B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 O

F
 

L
E

W
IS

H
A

M

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
L
e
w

is
h
a
m

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9
9
8
. 

T
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 M

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t,

 t
h
e
 C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 I

n
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t,

 t
h
e
 B

a
la

n
c
e
 S

h
e
e
t,

 t
h
e
 C

a
s
h
 F

lo
w

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t,

 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t 

In
c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t,

 t
h
e
 M

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 F

u
n
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
la

te
d
 n

o
te

s
. 

T
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
lie

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

p
p
lic

a
b
le

 l
a
w

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 K

in
g
d
o
m

 2
0
1
2
/1

3
.

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 s

o
le

ly
 t
o
 t

h
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
L
e
w

is
h
a
m

  
in

 a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

w
it
h
 P

a
rt

 I
I 
o
f 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9
9
8
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

n
o
 o

th
e
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
, 

a
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 

in
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 

4
8
 o

f 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 A

u
d
it
e
d
 B

o
d
ie

s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 in

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
. 

T
o
 t

h
e
 f

u
lle

s
t 
e
x
te

n
t 

p
e
rm

it
te

d
 b

y
 l
a
w

, 
w

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
e
p
t 
o
r 

a
s
s
u
m

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 a

n
y
o
n
e
 o

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
s
 a

 b
o
d
y
, 

fo
r 

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

, 
fo

r 
th

is
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
o
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 o

p
in

io
n
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 f

o
rm

e
d
.

R
e
s
p

e
c
ti

v
e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 
F

in
a
n

c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
o

r

A
s
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 m

o
re

 f
u
lly

 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 C

h
ie

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r’
s
 R

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
, 
th

e
 

C
h
ie

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

is
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
fo

r 
th

e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

, 
w

h
ic

h
 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

, 
in

 a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

ro
p
e
r 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 a

s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 

in
 t
h
e
 

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 K

in
g
d
o
m

, 
a
n
d
 f

o
r 

b
e
in

g
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 g

iv
e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 f

a
ir
 v

ie
w

. 
O

u
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 i
s
 t
o
 a

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
re

s
s
 a

n
 

o
p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
lic

a
b
le

 l
a
w

 a
n
d
 I

n
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d
it
in

g
 (

U
K

 a
n
d
 I

re
la

n
d
).

 T
h
o
s
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 u

s
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

A
u
d
it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 B

o
a
rd

’s
 E

th
ic

a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

A
u
d
it
o
rs

.

S
c
o

p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

A
n
 a

u
d
it
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
s
 o

b
ta

in
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 a

m
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 d

is
c
lo

s
u
re

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
to

 g
iv

e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 f
re

e
 f

ro
m

 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t,

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

c
a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 f

ra
u
d
 o

r 
e
rr

o
r.

 T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f:

 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

re
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 a

p
p
lie

d
 a

n
d
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
 d

is
c
lo

s
e
d
; 
th

e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r;

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

w
e
 r

e
a
d
 a

ll 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 n

o
n
-f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

e
x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o
rd

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 m
a
te

ri
a
l 
in

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
ie

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
If

 w
e
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

a
n
y
 a

p
p
a
re

n
t 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
r 

in
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
ie

s
 w

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

o
u
r 

re
p
o
rt

.

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

In
 o

u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

:

•
g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 f

a
ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
L
e
w

is
h
a
m

  

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 a

n
d
 o

f 
it
s
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
n
 e

n
d
e
d
; 

a
n
d

•
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 p

re
p
a
re

d
  

in
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

o
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 K

in
g
d
o
m

 2
0
1
2
/1

3
.

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 o

th
e
r 

m
a
tt

e
rs

In
 o

u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
, 

th
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 g

iv
e
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o
rd

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

fo
r 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

M
a
tt

e
rs

 o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 w
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 b
y
 e

x
c
e
p

ti
o

n

W
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 y

o
u
 i
f:

•
in

 o
u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

re
fl
e
c
t 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

‘D
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 G

o
o
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t:

 a
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

’ 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 

C
IP

F
A

/S
O

L
A

C
E

 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
7
;

•
w

e
 i
s
s
u
e
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 i
n
te

re
s
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 8

 o
f 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 

1
9
9
8
;

•
w

e
 d

e
s
ig

n
a
te

 u
n
d
e
r 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

1
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9
9
8
 a

n
y
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

a
s
 o

n
e
 t

h
a
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

to
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

it
 a

t 
a
 p

u
b
lic

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 t

o
 d

e
c
id

e
 w

h
a
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

a
k
e
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
; 

o
r

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 41



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

30

•
w

e
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 a

n
y
 o

th
e
r 

s
p
e
c
ia

l 
p
o
w

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 a

u
d
it
o
r 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9
9
8
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
th

in
g
 t

o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ts

.

C
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 a

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

s
e
c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 

e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

R
e
s
p

e
c
ti

v
e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
o

r

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

p
u
tt

in
g
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 p

ro
p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 e
c
o
n
o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 i
ts

 u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
, 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 p
ro

p
e
r 

s
te

w
a
rd

s
h
ip

 a
n
d
 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 

a
n
d
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 t

h
e
 a

d
e
q
u
a
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

.

W
e
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 5

 o
f 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9
9
8
 t

o
 s

a
ti
s
fy

 o
u
rs

e
lv

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 p

ro
p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
, 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 

it
s
 u

s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 u

s
 t
o
 

re
p
o
rt

 t
o
 y

o
u
 o

u
r 

c
o
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 p

ro
p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
h
a
v
in

g
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

c
ri
te

ri
a
 

s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.

W
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
m

e
 t
o
 o

u
r 

a
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

u
s
 f
ro

m
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 p

ro
p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
, 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 i
ts

 u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
W

e
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r,

 n
o
r 

h
a
v
e
 w

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
, 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

a
ll 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
, 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 i
ts

 u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

.

S
c
o

p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

s
e
c
u

ri
n

g
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
, 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
n

e
s
s
 

in
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

u
r 

a
u
d
it
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
, 
h
a
v
in

g
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 

th
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 c

ri
te

ri
a
, 
p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
, 

a
s
 t

o
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 p

ro
p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r:

•
s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

s
ili

e
n
c
e
; 
a
n
d

•
c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 h

o
w

 i
t 
s
e
c
u
re

s
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
, 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
.

T
h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 h

a
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 t

w
o
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 a

s
 t
h
o
s
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 f
o
r 

u
s
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 s

a
ti
s
fy

in
g
 o

u
rs

e
lv

e
s
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 p

ro
p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
, 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 i
ts

 u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
.

W
e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
d
e
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
B

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 o

u
r 

ri
s
k
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,

 w
e
 u

n
d
e
rt

o
o
k
 s

u
c
h
 w

o
rk

 a
s
 w

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 f

o
rm

 a
 v

ie
w

 o
n
 w

h
e
th

e
r,

 

in
 a

ll 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
re

s
p
e
c
ts

, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
d
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 p

ro
p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 

e
c
o
n
o
m

y
, 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 i
ts

 u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
.

C
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n

O
n
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 o
f 

o
u
r 

w
o
rk

, 
h
a
v
in

g
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 t

h
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 s

p
e
c
if
ie

d
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
, 

w
e
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t,

 i
n
 a

ll 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
re

s
p
e
c
ts

, 
th

e
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
L
e
w

is
h
a
m

 p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 p

ro
p
e
r 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

e
c
u
re

 e
c
o
n
o
m

y
, 
e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 

a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 i
ts

 u
s
e
 o

f 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
.

C
e
rt

if
ic

a
te

W
e
 c

e
rt

if
y
 t
h
a
t 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
h
e
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 

o
f 

L
e
w

is
h
a
m

  
in

 a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9
9
8
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 

C
o
d
e
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.

D
a
rr

e
n
 W

e
lls

 

D
ir
e
c
to

r

fo
r 

a
n
d
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
G

ra
n
t 

T
h
o
rn

to
n
 U

K
 L

L
P

, 
A

p
p
o
in

te
d
 A

u
d
it
o
r

T
h
e
 E

x
p
lo

re
r 

B
u
ild

in
g

F
le

m
in

g
 W

a
y

C
ra

w
le

y

W
e
s
t 
S

u
s
s
e
x

R
H

1
0
 9

G
T

[D
a
te

]

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 42



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

31

A
p
p
en

d
ix

 C
: 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

au
d
it
 f
in

d
in

gs

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

A
cc
o
u
n
t

T
ra
n
sa
ct
io
n
 c
yc
le

M
a
te
ri
a
l 

m
is
st
a
te
m
en
t 
ri
sk
?

D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
ri
sk

C
h
a
n
g
e
to
 t
h
e 

a
u
d
it
 p
la
n

A
u
d
it
 f
in
d
in
g
s

C
o
st
o
f 
se
rv
ic
es
 -

o
p
er
at
in
g 
ex
p
en
se
s

O
p
er
at
in
g 
ex
p
en
se
s

O
th
er

O
p
er
at
in
g
ex
p
en
se
s 
u
n
d
er
st
at
ed

N
o

N
o
n
e

C
o
st
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
es
–

em
p
lo
ye
e 
re
m
u
n
er
at
io
n

E
m
p
lo
ye
e 

re
m
u
n
er
at
io
n

O
th
er

R
em
u
n
er
at
io
n
ex
p
en
se
s 
n
o
t 

co
rr
ec
t

N
o

o
n
go
in
g

C
o
st
s 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
es
–

H
o
u
si
n
g 
&
 c
o
u
n
ci
l t
ax
 

b
en
ef
it

W
el
fa
re
 e
xp
en
d
it
u
re

O
th
er

W
el
fa
re
 b
en
ef
it
s
im
p
ro
p
er
ly
 

co
m
p
u
te
d

N
o

o
n

g
o

in
g

C
o
st
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
es
 –

H
o
u
si
n
g 
re
ve
n
u
e

H
R
A

O
th
er

H
o
u
si
n
g 
re
ve
n
u
e
tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s 
n
o
t 

re
co
rd
ed

N
o

N
o

n
e

C
o
st
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
es
 –
o
th
er
 

re
ve
n
u
es
 (
fe
es
&
 c
h
ar
ge
s)

O
th
er
 r
ev
en
u
es

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

(G
ai
n
s)
/
 L
o
ss
 o
n
 d
is
p
o
sa
l 

o
f
n
o
n
 c
u
rr
en
t 
as
se
ts

P
ro
p
er
ty
, 
P
la
n
t 
an
d
 

E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

P
ay
m
en
ts
to
 H
o
u
si
n
g 

C
ap
it
al
 R
ec
ei
p
ts
 P
o
o
l

P
ro
p
er
ty
,
P
la
n
t 
&
 

E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

P
re
ce
p
ts
an
d
 L
ev
ie
s

C
o
u
n
ci
l
T
ax

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

In
 t

h
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 w

e 
p

re
se

n
t 

o
u

r 
fi

n
d

in
gs

 in
 r

es
p

ec
t 

o
f 

m
at

te
rs

 a
n

d
 r

is
ks

 id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
p

la
n

n
in

g 
st

ag
e 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
 a

n
d

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 m

at
te

rs
 t

h
at

 a
ro

se
 d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

co
u

rs
e 

o
f 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

.

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

W
e 

h
av

e 
n

o
t 

h
ad

 t
o

 c
h

an
ge

 o
u

r 
A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 a
s 

p
re

vi
o

u
sl

y 
co

m
m

u
n

ic
at

ed
 t

o
 y

o
u

 o
n

 1
8 

Ju
n

e 

Page 43



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

32

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

A
cc
o
u
n
t

T
ra
n
sa
ct
io
n
 

cy
cl
e

M
a
te
ri
a
l 

m
is
st
a
te
m
en
t 
ri
sk
?

D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
ri
sk

C
h
a
n
g
e
to
 t
h
e 

a
u
d
it
 p
la
n

A
u
d
it
 f
in
d
in
g
s

In
te
re
st
 p
ay
ab
le
 a
n
d
 s
im
ila
r 

ch
ar
ge
s

B
o
rr
o
w
in
gs

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

P
en
si
o
n
In
te
re
st
 c
o
st

E
m
p
lo
ye
e 

re
m
u
n
er
at
io
n

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

In
te
re
st
  
&
 in
ve
st
m
en
t 

in
co
m
e

In
ve
st
m
en
ts

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o

n
e

R
et
u
rn
 o
n
 P
en
si
o
n
 a
ss
et
s

E
m
p
lo
ye
e 

re
m
u
n
er
at
io
n

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

D
iv
id
en
d
 i
n
co
m
e 
fr
o
m

Jo
in
t 
V
en
tu
re

R
ev
en
u
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

Im
p
ai
rm
en
t
o
f 
in
ve
st
m
en
ts

In
ve
st
m
en
ts

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

In
ve
st
m
en
t
p
ro
p
er
ti
es
: 

In
co
m
e 
ex
p
en
d
it
u
re
, 

va
lu
at
io
n
, 
ch
an
ge
s 
&
 g
ai
n
 

o
n
 d
is
p
o
sa
l

P
ro
p
er
ty
, 
P
la
n
t 
&
 

E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

T
h

e
re

 w
a
s 

o
n

ly
 a

 p
a
rt

 v
a
lu

a
ti

o
n

 

o
f 

in
ve

st
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s 

in
 

2
0
12

/
13

In
co
m
e 
fr
o
m
 c
o
u
n
ci
l t
ax

C
o
u
n
ci
l 
T
ax

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

N
N
D
R
 D
is
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n

N
N
D
R

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

P
F
I 
re
ve
n
u
e 
su
p
p
o
rt
gr
an
t 

an
d
 o
th
er
 G
o
ve
rn
m
en
t 

gr
an
ts

G
ra
n
t 
In
co
m
e9

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

C
ap
it
al
 g
ra
n
ts
 &
 

C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s 
(i
n
cl
u
d
in
g 

th
o
se
re
ce
iv
ed
 in
 a
d
va
n
ce
)

P
ro
p
er
ty
,
P
la
n
t 
&
 

E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

Page 44



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

33

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

A
cc
o
u
n
t

T
ra
n
sa
ct
io
n
 c
yc
le

M
a
te
ri
a
l 

m
is
st
a
te
m
en
t 
ri
sk
?

D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
ri
sk

C
h
a
n
g
e
to
 

th
e 
a
u
d
it
 

p
la
n

A
u
d
it
 f
in
d
in
g
s

(S
u
rp
lu
s)
/
 D
ef
ic
it
 o
n
 

re
va
lu
at
io
n
 o
f 
n
o
n
 c
u
rr
en
t 

as
se
ts

P
ro
p
er
ty
, 
P
la
n
t 
&
 

E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

A
ct
u
ar
ia
l(
ga
in
s)
/
 L
o
ss
es
 o
n
 

p
en
si
o
n
 f
u
n
d
 a
ss
et
s 
&
 

lia
b
ili
ti
es

E
m
p
lo
ye
e 

re
m
u
n
er
at
io
n

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

O
th
er
 c
o
m
p
re
h
en
si
ve
 (
ga
in
s)
/

L
o
ss
es

R
ev
en
u
e/
O
p
er
at
in
g 

ex
p
en
se
s

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o

n
e

P
ro
p
er
ty
,
P
la
n
t 
&
 E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

P
ro
p
er
ty
, 
P
la
n
t
&
 

E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

O
th
er

P
P
E
ac
ti
vi
ty
 n
o
t 
va
lid

N
o

S
o
m
e 
d
if
fe
re
n
ce
s
b
et
w
ee
n
 t
h
e 

as
se
t 
re
gi
st
er
 a
n
d
 t
h
e 
ac
co
u
n
ts

P
ro
p
er
ty
,
P
la
n
t 
&
 E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

P
ro
p
er
ty
, 
P
la
n
t
&
 

E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

O
th
er

R
ev
al
u
at
io
n
m
ea
su
re
m
en
ts
 

n
o
t 
co
rr
ec
t

N
o

V
al
u
at
io
n
s
w
er
e 
n
o
t 
fu
lly
 

co
m
p
lia
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e 
C
o
d
e 
an
d
 

in
co
rr
ec
tl
y 
ac
co
u
n
te
d
 f
o
r.

H
er
it
ag
e
as
se
ts
 &
 I
n
ve
st
m
en
t 

p
ro
p
er
ty

P
ro
p
er
ty
, 
P
la
n
t 
&
 

E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

In
ta
n
gi
b
le
 a
ss
et
s

In
ta
n
gi
b
le
 a
ss
et
s

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

In
ve
st
m
en
ts
(l
o
n
g 
&
 s
h
o
rt
 

te
rm
)

In
ve
st
m
en
ts

N
o
n
e

N
o

C
la
ss
if
ic
at
io
n
er
ro
r 
b
et
w
ee
n
 

lo
n
g/
sh
o
rt
 t
er
m
. 1
 i
n
ve
st
m
en
t 

in
co
rr
ec
tl
y 
re
co
rd
ed
 t
h
e 
n
am
e 
o
f 

th
e 
in
st
it
u
ti
o
n

D
eb
to
rs
(l
o
n
g 
&
 s
h
o
rt
 t
er
m
)

R
ev
en
u
e

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

A
ss
et
s 
h
el
d
 f
o
r 
sa
le

P
ro
p
er
ty
, 
P
la
n
t 
&
 

E
q
u
ip
m
en
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

In
ve
n
to
ri
es

In
ve
n
to
ri
es

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

Page 45



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

34

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

A
cc
o
u
n
t

T
ra
n
sa
ct
io
n
 

cy
cl
e

M
a
te
ri
a
l 

m
is
st
a
te
m
en
t 

ri
sk
?

D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 o
f 
ri
sk

C
h
a
n
g
e
to
 

th
e 
a
u
d
it
 

p
la
n

A
u
d
it
 f
in
d
in
g
s

B
o
rr
o
w
in
g 
(l
o
n
g
&
 

sh
o
rt
 t
er
m
)

D
eb
t

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o

n
e

C
re
d
it
o
rs
(l
o
n
g 
&
 S
h
o
rt
 

te
rm
)

O
p
er
at
in
g 

E
xp
en
se
s

O
th
er

C
re
d
it
o
rs
 u
n
d
er
st
at
ed
 o
r 

n
o
t 
re
co
rd
ed
 in
 t
h
e 
co
rr
ec
t

p
er
io
d

N
o

N
o
n
e

P
ro
vi
si
o
n
s
(l
o
n
g 
&
 

sh
o
rt
 t
er
m
)

P
ro
vi
si
o
n

N
o
n
e

N
o

N
o
n
e

P
en
si
o
n
 l
ia
b
ili
ty

E
m
p
lo
ye
e

re
m
u
n
er
at
io
n

N
o
n
e

N
o

O
n

g
o

in
g

R
es
er
ve
s

E
q
u
it
y

N
o
n
e

N
o

o
n

g
o

in
g

Page 46



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

R
ep

or
t 

N
am

e 
 | 

 D
at

e

D
R

A
F

T

©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. 
A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
, 

a 
lim

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 L

td
 

(G
ra

nt
T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 
to

 t
he

 b
ra

nd
 u

nd
er

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

re
fe

r 
to

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t 

re
qu

ire
s.

 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

an
d 

th
e 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
a 

w
or

ld
w

id
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 i

nd
ep

en
de

nt
ly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

of
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
. 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
do

es
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

cl
ie

nt
s.

 

g
ra

n
t-

th
o

rn
to

n
.c

o
.u

k

Page 47



 

 

 

Darren Wells 
Director 
Grant Thornton UK LLP 
The Explorer Building 
Fleming Way 
Crawley 
West Sussex 
RH10 9GT 
 

xxx September 2013 

Dear Mr Wells 

London Borough of Lewisham 

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 

 
This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements 
of London Borough of Lewisham for the year ended 31 March 2013 for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting. 
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves: 

Financial Statements 

i We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in 
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain ("the Code") as adapted for International 
Financial Reporting Standards; in particular the financial statements give a true and fair 
view in accordance therewith. 

ii We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions and these matters 
have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements. 

iii We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of 
internal control to prevent and detect fraud. 

iv Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 
measured at fair value, are reasonable. 

v We are satisfied that the material judgements used by us in the preparation of the 
financial statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code, and adequately 
disclosed in the financial statements. There are no further material judgements that need 
to be disclosed. 

vi We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the 
valuation of pension scheme liabilities for IAS19 disclosures are consistent with our 
knowledge.  We confirm that all settlements and curtailments have been identified and 
properly accounted for.  We also confirm that all significant retirement benefits have 

Page 48



 2

been identified and properly accounted for (including any arrangements that are 
statutory, contractual or implicit in the employer’s actions, that arise in the UK or 
overseas, that are funded or unfunded). 

vii Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for 
and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the code. 

viii All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which 
International Financial Reporting Standards and the code requires adjustment or 
disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.   

ix We have not adjusted the misstatements brought to our attention in the Audit 
Findings report, which are considered to be immaterial to the results of the Council and 
its financial position at the year-end.  The financial statements are free of material 
misstatements, including omissions. 

x We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or 
classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 

xi We believe that the Council’s financial statements should be prepared on a going 
concern basis on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will 
be more than adequate for the Council’s needs. We believe that no further disclosures 
relating to the Council's ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the 
financial statements. 

Information Provided 

xii We have provided you with: 

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the 
preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and 
other matters; 

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of 
your audit; and 

c. unrestricted access to persons within the Council from whom you determined 
it necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

xiii We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which 
management is aware. 

xiv All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 
financial statements. 

xv We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial 
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

xvi We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that 
we are aware of and that affects the Council and involves: 

Page 49



 3

a. management; 

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

xvii We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or 
suspected fraud, affecting the Council’s financial statements communicated by 
employees, former employees, regulators or others. 

xviii We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when 
preparing financial statements. 

xix We have disclosed to you the entity of the Council's related parties and all the related 
party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

Annual Governance Statement 

xx We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the 
Council's risk assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not 
aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed within the AGS 

Approval 

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council's Audit Panel at its 
meeting on 12 September 2013. 
 

Signed on behalf of the Panel 

 

 

Name…………………………… 

Position…………………………. 
Date……………………………. 

 

 

Yours sincerely 

Janet Senior 

Executive Director of Resources and Regeneration 

Page 50



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

T
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 F

in
d

in
gs

fo
r 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u
gh

 o
f 

L
ew

is
h

am
 

P
en

si
o

n
 f

u
n

d

Y
e

a
r 

e
n

d
e

d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3

S
u

e
 E

x
to

n

E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

L
e

a
d

T
0

2
0

 7
7

2
8

 3
1

9
1

 

E
 

s
u

e
.m

.e
x

to
n

@
u

k
.g

t.
c

o
m

 

X
X

 A
u

g
u

s
t 

2
0

1
3

N
ic

h
o

la
s

 B
e

th

A
u

d
it

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r

T
0

2
0

 7
7

2
8

3
0

2
9

E
 

n
ic

h
o

la
s

.b
e

th
@

u
k

.g
t.

c
o

m

G
ra

e
m

e
 U

tt
in

g

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

T
0

2
0

 7
7

2
8

 3
3

4
9

E
 

g
ra

e
m

e
.u

tt
in

g
@

u
k

.g
t.

c
o

m

Page 51



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

2

T
h
e 
co
n
te
n
ts
 o
f 
th
is
 r
ep
o
rt
 r
el
at
e 
o
n
ly
 t
o
 t
h
o
se
 m
at
te
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 c
am
e 
to
 o
u
r 

at
te
n
ti
o
n
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
co
n
d
u
ct
 o
f 
o
u
r 
n
o
rm
al
 a
u
d
it
 p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 

d
es
ig
n
ed
 p
ri
m
ar
ily
 f
o
r 
th
e 
p
u
rp
o
se
 o
f 
ex
p
re
ss
in
g 
o
u
r 
o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 

st
at
em
en
ts
.
O
u
r 
au
d
it
 i
s 
n
o
t 
d
es
ig
n
ed
 t
o
 t
es
t 
al
l 
in
te
rn
al
 c
o
n
tr
o
ls
 o
r 
id
en
ti
fy
 a
ll 

ar
ea
s 
o
f 
co
n
tr
o
l 
w
ea
k
n
es
s.
 H
o
w
ev
er
, 
w
h
er
e,
 a
s 
p
ar
t 
o
f 
o
u
r 
te
st
in
g,
 w
e 
id
en
ti
fy
 

an
y 
co
n
tr
o
l 
w
ea
k
n
es
se
s,
 w
e 
w
ill
 r
ep
o
rt
 t
h
es
e 
to
 y
o
u
. 
 I
n
 c
o
n
se
q
u
en
ce
, o
u
r 
w
o
rk
 

ca
n
n
o
t 
b
e 
re
lie
d
 u
p
o
n
 t
o
 d
is
cl
o
se
 d
ef
al
ca
ti
o
n
s 
o
r 
o
th
er
 i
rr
eg
u
la
ri
ti
es
, o
r 
to
 

in
cl
u
d
e 
al
l 
p
o
ss
ib
le
 i
m
p
ro
v
em
en
ts
 i
n
 i
n
te
rn
al
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
th
at
 a
 m
o
re
 e
xt
en
si
v
e 

sp
ec
ia
l 
ex
am
in
at
io
n
 m
ig
h
t 
id
en
ti
fy
.

W
e 
d
o
 n
o
t 
ac
ce
p
t 
an
y 
re
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ty
 f
o
r 
an
y 
lo
ss
 o
cc
as
io
n
ed
 t
o
 a
n
y 
th
ir
d
 p
ar
ty
 

ac
ti
n
g,
 o
r 
re
fr
ai
n
in
g 
fr
o
m
 a
ct
in
g 
o
n
 t
h
e 
b
as
is
 o
f 
th
e 
co
n
te
n
t 
o
f 
th
is
 r
ep
o
rt
, 
as
 

th
is
 r
ep
o
rt
 w
as
 n
o
t 
p
re
p
ar
ed
 f
o
r,
 n
o
r 
in
te
n
d
ed
 f
o
r,
 a
n
y 
o
th
er
 p
u
rp
o
se
.

Page 52



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

3

C
o
n
te
n
ts

S
e

c
ti

o
n

P
a

g
e

1.
E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 s
u
m
m
ar
y

4

2.
A
u
d
it
 f
in
d
in
gs

6

3.
F
ee
s,
 n
o
n
 a
u
d
it
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
an
d
 i
n
d
ep
en
d
en
ce
 

15

4.
C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
 o
f 
au
d
it
 m

at
te
rs
 

17

A
p
p
en
d
ic
es

A
.

D
ra
ft
 a
u
d
it
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
P
en
si
o
n
 F
u
n
d
 F
in
an
ci
al
 S
ta
te
m
en
ts

20

B
.

D
ra
ft
 a
u
d
it
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
P
en
si
o
n
 F
u
n
d
 A
n
n
u
al
 R
ep
o
rt
 

21

Page 53



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 1
:

E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 s
u
m
m
ar
y

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
g

s

0
3

.
F

e
e

s
, 
n

o
n

 a
u

d
it

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e

0
4

.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

 m
a

tt
e

rs

Page 54



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

5

E
xe
cu
ti
ve
 s
u
m
m
ar
y

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 s

u
m

m
a
ry

P
u

r
p

o
s
e

 o
f 

th
is

 r
e

p
o

r
t

T
h
is
 r
ep
o
rt
 h
ig
h
lig
h
ts
 t
h
e 
ke
y 
is
su
es
 a
ri
si
n
g 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e 
au
d
it
 o
f 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 B
o
ro
u
gh

 o
f 

L
ew

is
h
am

 P
en
si
o
n
 F
u
n
d
's
 (
'th

e 
F
u
n
d
') 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e 
ye
ar
 e
n
d
ed
 3
1 

M
ar
ch
 2
01
3.
 I
t 
is
 a
ls
o
 u
se
d
 t
o
 r
ep
o
rt
 o
u
r 
au
d
it
 f
in
d
in
gs
 t
o
 m

an
ag
em

en
t 
an
d
 t
h
o
se
 

ch
ar
ge
d
 w
it
h
 g
o
ve
rn
an
ce
 i
n
 a
cc
o
rd
an
ce
 w

it
h
 t
h
e 
re
q
u
ir
em

en
ts
 o
f 
In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
 

S
ta
n
d
ar
d
 o
n
 A
u
d
it
in
g 
(U

K
 &

 I
re
la
n
d
) 
26
0.
 

U
n
d
er
 t
h
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
's
 C
o
d
e 
o
f 
A
u
d
it
 P
ra
ct
ic
e 
w
e 
ar
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 t
o
 r
ep
o
rt
 

w
h
et
h
er
, i
n
 o
u
r 
o
p
in
io
n
, t
h
e 
F
u
n
d
's
 f
in
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 p
re
se
n
t 
a 
tr
u
e 
an
d
 f
ai
r 

vi
ew

 o
f 
th
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 p
o
si
ti
o
n
, t
h
e 
 f
in
an
ci
al
 t
ra
n
sa
ct
io
n
s 
o
f 
th
e 
fu
n
d
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 

ye
ar
 a
n
d
 t
h
at
 t
h
ey
 h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 p
ro
p
er
ly
 p
re
p
ar
ed
 i
n
 a
cc
o
rd
an
ce
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
C
o
d
e 
o
f 

P
ra
ct
ic
e 
o
n
 L
o
ca
l 
A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 A
cc
o
u
n
ti
n
g.

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti

o
n
 a

n
d
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d

In
 t
h
e 
co
n
d
u
ct
 o
f 
o
u
r 
au
d
it
 w
e 
h
av
e 
n
o
t 
h
ad
 t
o
 a
lt
er
 o
r 
ch
an
ge
 o
u
r 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 

d
at
ed
 2
9 
A
p
ri
l 2

01
3.
 W

e 
p
la
n
n
ed
 o
u
r 
re
vi
ew

 o
n
 t
h
e 
as
su
m
p
ti
o
n
 t
h
at
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 

h
as
 i
n
 p
la
ce
 a
 s
o
u
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 
en
vi
ro
n
m
en
t 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e 
p
ro
d
u
ct
io
n
 o
f 
co
m
p
le
te
 

an
d
 m

at
er
ia
lly
 a
cc
u
ra
te
 f
in
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
. W

e 
sh
ar
ed
 w
o
rk
in
g 
p
ap
er
s 

re
q
u
ir
em

en
ts
 w
it
h
 y
o
u
 i
n
 M

ar
ch
 2
01
3
an
d
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
p
ro
vi
d
ed
 g
o
o
d
 q
u
al
it
y 

w
o
rk
in
g 
p
ap
er
s 
to
 u
s 
b
y 
th
e 
ag
re
ed
 a
u
d
it
 s
ta
rt
 d
at
e.

K
e
y
 a

u
d
it

 a
n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s

F
in
a
n
ci
a
l 
st
a
te
m
en
ts
 o
p
in
io
n

O
u
r 
au
d
it
 i
s 
su
b
st
an
ti
al
ly
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
lt
h
o
u
gh

 w
e 
ar
e 
fi
n
al
is
in
g 
o
u
r 
w
o
rk
 in

 t
h
e 

fo
llo

w
in
g 
ar
ea
s:
 

•
in
ve
st
m
en
ts
 a
n
d
 i
n
ve
st
m
en
t 
in
co
m
e

•
p
en
si
o
n
s 
p
ay
ab
le
 –

n
ew

 p
en
si
o
n
er
s,
 d
ec
ea
se
d
 p
en
si
o
n
er
s 
an
d
 t
ax
 c
al
cu
la
ti
o
n
s

•
co
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s 
–
ch
ec
ki
n
g 
ca
lc
u
la
ti
o
n
s 
ar
e 
b
as
ed
 o
n
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
at
e 
p
ay

•
P
en
si
o
n
 F
u
n
d
 A
n
n
u
al
 R
ep
o
rt
 

•
fi
n
al
 in

te
rn
al
 r
ev
ie
w
 p
ro
ce
ss

•
o
b
ta
in
in
g 
an
d
 r
ev
ie
w
in
g 
th
e 
fi
n
al
 m

an
ag
em

en
t 
le
tt
er
 o
f 
re
p
re
se
n
ta
ti
o
n

•
u
p
d
at
in
g 
o
u
r 
p
o
st
 b
al
an
ce
 s
h
ee
t 
ev
en
ts
 r
ev
ie
w
, t
o
 t
h
e 
d
at
e 
o
f 
si
gn

in
g 
th
e 

o
p
in
io
n

O
u
r 
re
vi
ew

 i
d
en
ti
fi
ed
 o
n
e 
m
at
er
ia
l 
am

en
d
m
en
t 
to
 t
h
e 
F
u
n
d
 A
cc
o
u
n
t 
an
d
 s
o
m
e 

d
is
cl
o
su
re
 a
n
d
 t
ri
vi
al
 c
la
ss
if
ic
at
io
n
 e
rr
o
rs
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e 
n
o
te
s 
to
 t
h
e 
F
u
n
d
, w

h
ic
h
 

o
ff
ic
er
s 
h
av
e 
ag
re
ed
 t
o
 a
m
en
d
. F

u
rt
h
er
 d
et
ai
ls
 a
re
 s
et
 o
u
t 
in
 S
ec
ti
o
n
 2
 o
f 
th
is
 

re
p
o
rt
. 

S
h
o
u
ld
 t
h
e 
re
so
lu
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e 
o
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g 
ar
ea
s 
o
f 
au
d
it
 w
o
rk
 r
es
u
lt
 in

 a
 c
h
an
ge
 

to
 e
it
h
er
 t
h
e 
fu
n
d
 a
cc
o
u
n
t 
o
r 
th
e 
n
et
 a
ss
et
s 
st
at
em

en
t,
 w
e 
w
ill
 r
ep
o
rt
 t
h
is
 t
o
 t
h
e 

A
u
d
it
 P
an
el
 b
ef
o
re
 w
e 
is
su
e 
o
u
r 
o
p
in
io
n
. 

S
u
b
je
ct
 t
o
 t
h
e 
sa
ti
sf
ac
to
ry
 c
o
n
cl
u
si
o
n
 o
f 
o
u
r 
w
o
rk
, w

e 
an
ti
ci
p
at
e 
p
ro
vi
d
in
g 
an
 

u
n
q
u
al
if
ie
d
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
F
u
n
d
's
 f
in
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
. W

e 
w
ill
 a
ls
o
 is
su
e 
an
 

o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
P
en
si
o
n
 F
u
n
d
 A
n
n
u
al
 R
ep
o
rt
. O

u
r 
d
ra
ft
 a
u
d
it
 o
p
in
io
n
s 
ar
e 
se
t 

o
u
t 
in
 A
p
p
en
d
ic
es
 A

 a
n
d
 B
. 

A
ck
n
o
w
le
d
g
em
en
t

W
e 
w
o
u
ld
 li
ke
 t
o
 t
ak
e 
th
is
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y 
to
 r
ec
o
rd
 o
u
r 
ap
p
re
ci
at
io
n
 f
o
r 
th
e 

as
si
st
an
ce
 p
ro
vi
d
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
fi
n
an
ce
 t
ea
m
 a
n
d
 o
th
er
 s
ta
ff
 d
u
ri
n
g 
o
u
r 
au
d
it
.

G
ra
n
t 
T
h
o
rn
to
n
 U
K
 L
L
P

A
u
g
u
st
 2
01
3

Page 55



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 2
:

A
u
d
it
 f
in
d
in
gs

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
g

s

0
3

.
F

e
s

s
, 
n

o
n

 a
u

d
it

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

0
4

.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

 m
a

tt
e

rs

Page 56



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

7

A
u
d
it
 f
in
d
in
gs

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

In
 t
h
is
 s
ec
ti
o
n
 w
e 
p
re
se
n
t 
o
u
r 
fi
n
d
in
gs
 in

 r
es
p
ec
t 
o
f 
m
at
te
rs
 a
n
d
 r
is
ks
 id

en
ti
fi
ed
 a
t 
th
e 
p
la
n
n
in
g 
st
ag
e 
o
f 
th
e 
au
d
it
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 m

at
te
rs
 t
h
at
 a
ro
se
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
co
u
rs
e 
o
f 

o
u
r 
w
o
rk
. W

e 
se
t 
o
u
t 
o
n
 t
h
e 
fo
llo

w
in
g 
p
ag
es
 t
h
e 
w
o
rk
 w
e 
h
av
e 
p
er
fo
rm

ed
 a
n
d
 f
in
d
in
gs
 a
ri
si
n
g 
fr
o
m
 o
u
r 
w
o
rk
 in

 r
es
p
ec
t 
o
f 
th
e 
au
d
it
 r
is
ks
 w
e 
id
en
ti
fi
ed
 in

 o
u
r 
au
d
it
 p
la
n
, 

p
re
se
n
te
d
 t
o
 t
h
e 
A
u
d
it
 P
an
el
 o
n
 1
8 
Ju
n
e 
20
13
.  
W
e 
al
so
 s
et
 o
u
t 
th
e 
ad
ju
st
m
en
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 f
ro
m
 o
u
r 
au
d
it
 w
o
rk
 a
n
d
 o
u
r 
fi
n
d
in
gs
. 

C
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

W
e 
h
av
e 
n
o
t 
m
ad
e 
an
y 
ch
an
ge
s 
to
 o
u
r 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
 d
at
ed
 2
9 
A
p
ri
l 2

01
3.

A
u

d
it

 o
p

in
io

n

S
u
b
je
ct
 t
o
 t
h
e 
sa
ti
sf
ac
to
ry
 c
o
n
cl
u
si
o
n
 o
f 
o
u
r 
w
o
rk
, w

e 
an
ti
ci
p
at
e 
th
at
 w
e 
w
ill
 p
ro
vi
d
e 
th
e 
F
u
n
d
 w
it
h
 a
n
 u
n
m
o
d
if
ie
d
 o
p
in
io
n
. O

u
r 
d
ra
ft
 a
u
d
it
 o
p
in
io
n
s 
ar
e 
se
t 
o
u
t 
in
 

A
p
p
en
d
ic
es
 A

 a
n
d
 B
. 

Page 57



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

8

A
u
d
it
 f
in
d
in
gs
 a
g
ai
n
st
 s
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
ri
sk
s

R
is

k
s

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 i
n

 

o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 p

la
n

W
o

rk
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

A
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

 g
a

in
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
s

s
u

e
s

 a
ri

s
in

g

1
. 

Im
p

ro
p

e
r

re
v
e

n
u

e

re
c

o
g

n
it

io
n

U
n

d
e

r 
IS

A
 2

4
0

 t
h

e
re

 

is
 a

 p
re

s
u

m
e

d
 r

is
k
 

th
a

t 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

m
is

s
ta

te
d

 d
u

e
 t
o

 

im
p

ro
p

e
r 

re
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 

�
re

v
ie

w
a

n
d

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 

re
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 p

o
lic

ie
s

�
te

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
m

a
te

ri
a

l r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 

s
tr

e
a

m
s

�
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
u

n
u

s
u

a
l s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 

tr
a

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s

W
e
 r

e
b

u
tt

e
d

 t
h

is
 p

re
s
u

m
p

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

fo
re

 d
o

 n
o

t 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
is

 t
o

 b
e

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
ri

s
k
 f
o

r 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 
L

e
w

is
h

a
m

P
e

n
s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 s
in

c
e

:

●
th

e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
's

 r
e

v
e

n
u

e
 i
s
 i
n

 m
a

n
y
 r

e
s
p

e
c
ts

 r
e

la
ti
v
e

ly
 p

re
d

ic
ta

b
le

 a
n

d
 d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 

g
e

n
e

ra
lly

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 c
a

s
h

 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s

●
th

e
 s

p
lit

 o
f 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
, 
it
s
 f
u

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

u
s
to

d
ia

n
, 
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 v
e

ry
 s

tr
o

n
g

 s
e

p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d

u
ti
e

s
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 a

ro
u

n
d

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

●
re

v
e

n
u

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
 b

y
 d

ir
e

c
t 
s
a

la
ry

 d
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 d
ir

e
c
t 
b

a
n

k
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 f
ro

m
 a

d
m

it
te

d
 

/s
c
h

e
d

u
le

d
 b

o
d

ie
s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
ly

 s
e

n
t 
s
c
h

e
d

u
le

s
 a

n
d

 a
re

 d
ir

e
c
tl
y
 a

tt
ri

b
u

ta
b

le
 t
o

 

g
ro

s
s
 p

a
y
 m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 i
m

p
ro

p
e

r 
re

c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 u

n
lik

e
ly

●
tr

a
n

s
fe

rs
 in

to
 t
h

e
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 a

re
 a

ll 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 b
y
 a

n
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a

c
tu

a
ri

a
l v

a
lu

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 

w
h

ic
h

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 a

n
d

 

re
c
e

iv
in

g
 b

o
d

ie
s

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 in

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
re

v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
.

2
.

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

o
v
e

rr
id

e
 o

f 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

U
n

d
e

r 
IS

A
 2

4
0

 t
h

e
re

 

is
 a

 p
re

s
u

m
e

d
 r

is
k
 

o
f 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

o
v
e

r-
ri

d
e

 o
f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

�
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
, 

ju
d

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 m

a
d

e
 

b
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

�
te

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
ls

 e
n

tr
ie

s

�
re

v
ie

w
o

f 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
, 

ju
d

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 m

a
d

e
 

b
y
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

�
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
u

n
u

s
u

a
l s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 

tr
a

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s

T
o

 d
a

te
, 
o

u
r 

a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

v
e

rr
id

e
 o

f 
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

. 

O
u

r 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
l c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

n
d

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
jo

u
rn

a
l 
e

n
tr

ie
s
 is

 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 b

u
t 
h

a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
is

s
u

e
s
 t
o

 d
a

te
.

W
e
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
la

te
r 

in
 t
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 o
u

r 
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 o

n
 k

e
y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 

ju
d

g
m

e
n

ts
. 

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

"S
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
ri
sk
s 
o
ft
en
 r
el
at
e 
to
 s
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
n
o
n
-r
o
u
ti
n
e 
tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s 
an
d
 j
u
d
gm

en
ta
l 
m
at
te
rs
. N

o
n
-r
o
u
ti
n
e 
tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s 
ar
e 
tr
an
sa
ct
io
n
s 
th
at
 a
re
 u
n
u
su
al
, e
it
h
er
 d
u
e 
to
 s
iz
e 

o
r 
n
at
u
re
, a
n
d
 t
h
at
 t
h
er
ef
o
re
 o
cc
u
r 
in
fr
eq
u
en
tl
y.
 J
u
d
gm

en
ta
l m

at
te
rs
 m

ay
 i
n
cl
u
d
e 
th
e 
d
ev
el
o
p
m
en
t 
o
f 
ac
co
u
n
ti
n
g 
es
ti
m
at
es
 f
o
r 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
er
e 
is
 s
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
m
ea
su
re
m
en
t 

u
n
ce
rt
ai
n
ty
" 
(I
S
A
 3
15
).
 

In
 t
h
is
 s
ec
ti
o
n
 w
e 
d
et
ai
l 
o
u
r 
re
sp
o
n
se
 t
o
 t
h
e 
si
gn

if
ic
an
t 
ri
sk
s 
o
f 
m
at
er
ia
l m

is
st
at
em

en
t 
w
h
ic
h
 w
e 
id
en
ti
fi
ed
 i
n
 t
h
e 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
.  
A
s 
w
e 
n
o
te
d
 i
n
 o
u
r 
p
la
n
, t
h
er
e 
ar
e 
tw

o
 

p
re
su
m
ed
 s
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
ri
sk
s 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 a
p
p
lic
ab
le
 t
o
 a
ll 
au
d
it
s 
u
n
d
er
 a
u
d
it
in
g 
st
an
d
ar
d
s.
 W

e 
al
so
 i
d
en
ti
fi
ed
 a
n
 a
d
d
it
io
n
al
 s
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
ri
sk
 in

 r
es
p
ec
t 
o
f 
ch
an
ge
s 
to
 t
h
e 
fu
n
d
 

m
an
ag
er
s 
w
h
ic
h
 t
o
o
k 
p
la
ce
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
ye
ar
. 

Page 58



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

9

A
u
d
it
 f
in
d
in
gs
 a
g
ai
n
st
 o
th
er
 r
is
k
s

T
ra

n
s

a
c

ti
o

n
 

c
y
c

le

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 

ri
s

k
W

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
A

s
s

u
ra

n
c

e
 g

a
in

e
d

 &
 i

s
s

u
e

s
 a

ri
s

in
g

P
e

n
s

io
n

 F
u

n
d

 A
c

c
o

u
n

t

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

R
e

c
o

rd
e

d
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

rr
e

c
t

�
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
p

e
n

s
io

n
  

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 (

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
e

iv
a

b
le

)

�
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
p

a
y
ro

ll 
re

c
o

rd
s
 o

f 

p
e

n
s
io

n
a

b
le

 s
a

la
ry

 t
o

 s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 o
f 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 r

u
le

s

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 

B
e

n
e

fi
t

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts

B
e

n
e

fi
ts

 i
m

p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 

c
o

m
p

u
te

d
 /
 c

la
im

s

lia
b

ili
ty

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

te
d

�
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
p

e
n

s
io

n
 b

e
n

e
fi
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
, 
lu

m
p

 s
u

m
s
, 
d

e
fe

rm
e

n
ts

, 

re
ti
re

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
m

a
te

ri
a

l 
tr

a
n

s
fe

rs

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

 m
a

te
ri

a
l m

is
c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

 (
£

0
.7

8
0

 m
ill

io
n

) 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 l
u

m
p

 s
u

m
s
 

a
n

d
 P

e
n

s
io

n
s
 a

s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
o

n
 P

a
g

e
 1

2
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 

M
e

m
b

e
rs

h
ip

 

D
a

ta

M
e

m
b

e
r 

d
a

ta
 n

o
t 

c
o

rr
e

c
t

R
e

g
u

la
to

ry
, 
le

g
a

l,
 

a
n

d
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 

ru
le

s
/r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n
ts

 

n
o

t 
m

e
t

�
R

e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
u
re

s
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 

d
a

ta
 i
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

u
la

to
ry

, 
le

g
a

l 

a
n

d
 s

c
h

e
m

e
 r

u
le

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 in
 

p
la

c
e

. 

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 in

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
. 

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

n
o

t 
v
a

lid
 /
 

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 n

o
t 

v
a

lid
 

F
a

ir
 v

a
lu

e
 

m
e

a
s
u

re
m

e
n
t 
n

o
t 

c
o

rr
e

c
t

C
h

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

fu
n

d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

rs

�
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 m
a

rk
e

t 

v
a

lu
e

 o
f 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts

�
R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
 s

a
le

s
 

a
n

d
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t
o

 d
a

te
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
is

s
u

e
s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

ri
s
k
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
.

W
e
 w

e
re

 a
b

le
 t
o

 r
e

c
o

n
c
ile

 t
h

e
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
b

a
la

n
c
e

s
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 t
o

 

c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 f
u

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

u
s
to

d
ia

n
, 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 y
e

t 
to

 r
e

c
e

iv
e

 a
 

b
a

la
n

c
e

 c
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 f
ro

m
 o

n
e

 o
f 
th

e
 f
u

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
. 

W
e
 c

o
n

fi
rm

e
d

 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
a

le
s
 in

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 
o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
fu

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 w

e
re

 

c
o

rr
e

c
tl
y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r.
 

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

 n
o

n
-t

ri
v
ia

l 
m

is
c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
 (

£
0

.1
4

7
 m

ill
io

n
) 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 I
n

d
e

x
 L

in
k
e

d
 

a
n

d
 F

ix
e

d
 I

n
te

re
s
t 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

  
a

s
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
o

n
 P

a
g

e
 1

3
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p

o
rt

. 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

u
r 

te
s
ti
n

g
 o

f 
th

e
 F

u
n

d
's

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
 a

s
 

d
e

s
c
ri

b
e

d
 a

b
o

v
e

, 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 y

e
t 

to
 b

e
 f
u

lly
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 f
in

a
lis

e
d

.

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

In
 t
h
is
 s
ec
ti
o
n
 w
e 
d
et
ai
l 
o
u
r 
re
sp
o
n
se
 t
o
 t
h
e 
o
th
er
 r
is
ks
 o
f 
m
at
er
ia
l 
m
is
st
at
em

en
t 
w
h
ic
h
 w
e 
id
en
ti
fi
ed
 i
n
 t
h
e 
A
u
d
it
 P
la
n
.

Page 59



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

10

A
cc
o
u
n
ti
n
g 
p
o
lic
ie
s,
 e
st
im

at
es
 &

 j
u
d
g
em

en
ts

A
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
a

re
a

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

p
o

li
c

y
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
c

o
g

n
it

io
n

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 p

o
lic

y
 f
o

r 
m

a
jo

r 
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 o

f 

re
v
e

n
u

e
s

(c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 in

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 

In
v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

c
o

m
e

) 
a

re
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 
in

 d
e

ta
il 

w
it
h

in
 

N
o

te
 2

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 P

o
lic

ie
s

Y
o

u
r 

re
v
e

n
u

e
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
e

n
s
io

n
 F

u
n

d
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

�

G
re

e
n

J
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 e
s

ti
m

a
te

s
K

e
y
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
 in

 

th
e

 n
o

te
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 in

c
lu

d
e

:

−
p

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 

s
e

tt
le

m
e

n
ts

−
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s

W
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 y

o
u

r 
k
e

y
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

ts
m

a
d

e
 b

y
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 n
o

te
s

to
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 
F

o
r 

th
e

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 

lis
te

d
, 
o

v
e

ra
ll 

w
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

e
y
 w

e
re

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 s
e

t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
f 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
. 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 e
x
p

a
n

d
 o

n
 i
ts

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n
g

 p
o

lic
y
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
 

fo
r 

th
e

 F
u

n
d

's
 c

o
m

m
o

d
it
ie

s
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h

 I
n

v
e

s
te

c
 t
o

 d
is

c
lo

s
e

 t
h

e
 

e
s
ti
m

a
ti
o

n
 t
e

c
h

n
iq

u
e

s
 u

s
e

d
 f
o

r 
v
a

lu
in

g
 t
h

e
s
e

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

ts
. 

�

G
re

e
n

O
th

e
r 

a
c

c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
li

c
ie

s
T

h
e

 F
u

n
d

's
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

re
 i
n

 

a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

d
e

 o
f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t
h

e
 F

u
n

d
's

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 

th
e

 C
o

d
e

 o
f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 o
n

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
. 
T

h
e

 F
u

n
d

's
 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 w

e
re

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

. 

�

G
re

e
n

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

�
(R

e
d

) 
M

a
rg

in
a

l 
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
li
c
y
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
u

ld
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

ll
y
 a

tt
ra

c
t 
a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 f
ro

m
 r

e
g

u
la

to
rs

�
(A

m
b

e
r)

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
li
c
y
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 b

u
t 
s
c
o

p
e

 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 d

is
c
lo

s
u

re
�

(G
re

e
n

) 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 p

o
li
c
y
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

In
 t
h
is
 s
ec
ti
o
n
 w
e 
re
p
o
rt
 o
n
 o
u
r 
co
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
 o
f 
ac
co
u
n
ti
n
g 
p
o
lic
ie
s,
 i
n
 p
ar
ti
cu
la
r 
re
v
en
u
e 
re
co
gn
it
io
n
 p
o
lic
ie
s,
  
an
d
 k
ey
 e
st
im
at
es
 a
n
d
 j
u
d
ge
m
en
ts
 m
ad
e 
an
d
 i
n
cl
u
d
ed
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
F
u
n
d
's
 

fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
. 
 

Page 60



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

11

A
d
ju
st
ed
 m

is
st
at
em

en
ts

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

D
et
a
il

P
en
si
o
n
F
u
n
d
 

R
ev
en
u
e 

a
cc
o
u
n
t

£
'0
00

N
et
 a
ss
et

st
a
te
m
en
t

£
'0
00

Im
p
a
ct
 o
n
 n
et
 

a
ss
et
s 
ca
rr
ie
d
 

fo
rw
a
rd

£
00
0

1
O
u
r 
au
d
it
 t
es
ti
n
g 
id
en
ti
fi
ed
 t
h
at
 l
u
m
p
 s
u
m
 p
ay
m
en
ts
 a
re
 u
n
d
er
st
at
ed
 b
y 
£
0.
75
6 
m
ill
io
n
. T

h
e 

ad
ju
st
m
en
t 
w
ill
 r
es
u
lt
 in

 t
h
e 
fo
llo

w
in
g 
ch
an
ge
s:

In
cr
ea
se
 i
n
 lu

m
p
 s
u
m
 p
ay
m
en
ts
 f
ro
m
 £
5.
41
3 
m
ill
io
n
 t
o
 £
6.
16
9 
m
ill
io
n

D
ec
re
as
e 
in
 B
en
ef
it
s 
P
ay
ab
le
 f
ro
m
 £
32
.8
57
 m

ill
io
n
 t
o
 £
32
.1
01
 m

ill
io
n

D
ec
re
as
e 
in
 t
h
e
"P

en
si
o
n
 I
n
cr
ea
se
" 
lin

e 
o
f 
th
e 
B
en
ef
it
s
P
ay
ab
le
 N

o
te

2 
fr
o
m
 £
11
.4
18
 m

ill
io
n
 t
o
 

£
10
.6
62
 m

ill
io
n
.

75
6

(7
56
)

O
ve
ra
ll
 i
m
p
a
ct

£
0

£
0

£
0

A
n
 a
d
ju
st
m
en
t 
to
 t
h
e 
d
ra
ft
 f
in
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 w
as
 i
d
en
ti
fi
ed
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
au
d
it
 p
ro
ce
ss
. 
W
e 
ar
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 t
o
 r
ep
o
rt
 a
ll 
m
is
st
at
em
en
ts
 t
o
 t
h
o
se
 c
h
ar
ge
d
 w
it
h
 g
o
v
er
n
an
ce
, 
w
h
et
h
er
 o
r
n
o
t 

th
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 h
av
e 
b
ee
n
 a
d
ju
st
ed
 b
y 
m
an
ag
em
en
t.
 T
h
e 
ta
b
le
 b
el
o
w
 s
u
m
m
ar
is
es
 t
h
e 
ad
ju
st
m
en
t 
ar
is
in
g 
fr
o
m
 t
h
e 
au
d
it
 w
h
ic
h
 m
an
ag
em
en
t 
h
as
 a
gr
ee
d
 t
o
 m
ak
e.

Im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

a
d
ju

s
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t

T
h
e 
ad
ju
st
ed
 m
is
st
at
em
en
t 
is
 s
et
 o
u
t 
in
 d
et
ai
l 
b
el
o
w
 a
lo
n
g 
w
it
h
 t
h
e 
im
p
ac
t 
o
n
 t
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
. 

Page 61



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

12

M
is
cl
as
si
fi
ca
ti
o
n
s 
&
 d
is
cl
o
su
re
 c
h
an
g
es

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

N
o
te

A
d
ju
st
m
en
t 

ty
p
e

V
a
lu
e

£
'0
00

A
cc
o
u
n
t 
b
a
la
n
ce
 /
 

D
is
cl
o
su
re

Im
p
a
ct
 o
n
 t
h
e 
fi
n
a
n
ci
a
l 
st
a
te
m
en
ts

4
M
is
cl
as
si
fi
ca
ti
o
n

14
7

In
ve
st
m
en
t 
in
co
m
e

£
0.
14
7
m
ill
io
n
 o
f 
In
d
ex
 L
in
ke
d
 in

ve
st
m
en
t 
in
co
m
e 
w
as
 i
n
co
rr
ec
tl
y 
cl
as
si
fi
ed
 a
s 
F
ix
ed
 I
n
te
re
st
 

in
ve
st
m
en
t 
in
co
m
e 
w
it
h
in
 N

o
te
 4
. T

h
e 
am

en
d
m
en
ts
ar
e 
se
t 
o
u
t 
b
el
o
w
:

In
d
ex
 L
in
ke
d
in
ve
st
m
en
t 
in
co
m
e 
am

en
d
ed

fr
o
m
 £
0.
03
0 
m
ill
io
n
 t
o
 £
0.
17
7 
m
ill
io
n

F
ix
ed

In
te
re
st
 in

ve
st
m
en
t 
in
co
m
e 
am

en
d
ed

fr
o
m

£
2.
09
2 
m
ill
io
n
 t
o
 £
1.
94
5 
m
ill
io
n

5
D
is
cl
o
su
re

er
ro
r

n
/
a

In
ve
st
m
en
t 
A
n
al
ys
is

In
 t
h
e 
se
ct
io
n
 o
f 
N
o
te

5 
w
h
ic
h
 p
re
se
n
ts
 a
ll 
in
ve
st
m
en
ts
 e
xc
ee
d
in
g 
fi
ve
 p
er
 c
en
t 
w
it
h
in
 e
ac
h
 

cl
as
s 
o
f 
se
cu
ri
ty
, A

q
u
ila
 L
if
e 
U
S
 a
n
d
 U

K
 in

ve
st
m
en
ts
 w
er
e 
in
cl
u
d
ed
 t
w
ic
e 
in
 e
rr
o
r.
 T
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci
l 
w
ill
 r
em

o
ve
 t
h
e 
d
u
p
lic
at
io
n
. 

T
B
C

A
d
d
it
io
n
al

d
is
cl
o
su
re

3,
08
3

2,
37
6

T
ra
n
sf
er
s
In
 

T
ra
n
sf
er
s 
O
u
t

T
h
e 
d
ra
ft
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 d
id
 n
o
t 
in
cl
u
d
e 
an
 a
n
al
ys
is
b
et
w
ee
n
 g
ro
u
p
s 
an
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
al
s 
in
 

re
sp
ec
t 
o
f 
th
e 
tr
an
sf
er
s
in
 a
n
d
 o
u
t 
o
f 
th
e 
F
u
n
d
 a
s 
re
q
u
ir
ed
. 

T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
w
ill
 in

cl
u
d
e 
th
is
. 

T
h
e 
ta
b
le
 b
el
o
w
 p
ro
v
id
es
 d
et
ai
ls
 o
f 
m
is
cl
as
si
fi
ca
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
is
cl
o
su
re
 c
h
an
ge
s 
id
en
ti
fi
ed
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
au
d
it
 w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
h
as
 a
gr
ee
d
 t
o
 m
ak
e 
in
 t
h
e 
fi
n
al
 s
et
 o
f 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
. 

Page 62



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

13

In
te
rn
al
 c
o
n
tr
o
l

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

•
T
h
e 
p
u
rp
o
se
 o
f 
an
 a
u
d
it
 i
s 
to
 e
xp

re
ss
 a
n
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
.

•
O
u
r 
au
d
it
 i
n
cl
u
d
ed
 c
o
n
si
d
er
at
io
n
 o
f 
in
te
rn
al
 c
o
n
tr
o
l r
el
ev
an
t 
to
 t
h
e 
p
re
p
ar
at
io
n
 o
f 
th
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 i
n
 o
rd
er
 t
o
 d
es
ig
n
 a
u
d
it
 p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s 
th
at
 a
re
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
at
e 
in
 

th
e 
ci
rc
u
m
st
an
ce
s,
 b
u
t 
n
o
t 
fo
r 
th
e 
p
u
rp
o
se
 o
f 
ex
p
re
ss
in
g 
an
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
en
es
s 
o
f 
in
te
rn
al
 c
o
n
tr
o
l. 
T
h
e 
m
at
te
rs
 r
ep
o
rt
ed
 h
er
e 
ar
e 
lim

it
ed
 t
o
 t
h
o
se
 

d
ef
ic
ie
n
ci
es
 t
h
at
 w
e 
h
av
e 
id
en
ti
fi
ed
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
co
u
rs
e 
o
f 
o
u
r 
au
d
it
 a
n
d
 t
h
at
 w
e 
h
av
e 
co
n
cl
u
d
ed
 a
re
 o
f 
su
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
im

p
o
rt
an
ce
 t
o
 m

er
it
 b
ei
n
g 
re
p
o
rt
ed
 t
o
 y
o
u
 i
n
 

ac
co
rd
an
ce
 w

it
h
 a
u
d
it
in
g 
st
an
d
ar
d
s.

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

Is
s

u
e

 a
n

d
ri

s
k

1
.

�

A
m

b
e

r

O
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
m

in
o

r 
is

s
u

e
s
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 I
T

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 c
o

n
c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 w
e

re
 n

o
 

m
a

te
ri

a
l w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 a
d

v
e

rs
e

ly
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
il 

o
n

 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 is

 p
ro

v
id

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

u
d

it
F

in
d

in
g

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il'

s
 f
u

ll 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
. 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t

�
R

e
d

 -
S

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
d

e
fi
c
ie

n
c
y
 –

ri
s
k
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t

�
A

m
b

e
r 

-
D

e
fi
c
ie

n
c
y
 –

ri
s
k
 o

f 
in

c
o

n
s
e

q
u

e
n

ti
a

l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t

Page 63



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

14

O
th
er
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
 r
eq
u
ir
em

en
ts

Is
s

u
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

1
.

M
a

tt
e

rs
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 f
ra

u
d

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

n
y
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 in

 t
h

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 a
n

d
 n

o
 o

th
e

r 
is

s
u

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

rs
e

 o
f 

o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
.

2
.

M
a

tt
e

rs
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 l
a

w
s

 a
n

d
 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

W
e
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

n
y
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
in

c
id

e
n

c
e
s
 o

f 
n

o
n

-c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

w
it
h

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
la

w
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
.

3
.

W
ri

tt
e

n
 r

e
p

re
s

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

s
A

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 le
tt

e
r 

o
f 
re

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
q

u
e

s
te

d
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

4
.

D
is

c
lo

s
u

re
s

O
u

r 
re

v
ie

w
 f

o
u

n
d

 n
o

 m
a

te
ri

a
l o

m
is

s
io

n
s
 in

 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
.

5
.

M
a

tt
e

rs
 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 r
e

la
te

d
 

p
a

rt
ie

s

W
e
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a

w
a

re
 o

f 
a

n
y
 r

e
la

te
d

 p
a

rt
y
 t
ra

n
s
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 d

is
c
lo

s
e

d
.

6
.

G
o

in
g

 c
o

n
c

e
rn

O
u

r 
w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
a

n
y
 r

e
a

s
o

n
 t
o

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 t
h

e
 F

u
n

d
's

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 t
o

 p
re

p
a

re
 t
h

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 a

 g
o

in
g

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
 b

a
s
is

.

7
P

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 b

a
n

k
 a

c
c

o
u

n
t

W
h
ils

t 
in

-y
e

a
r 

c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 w
e

re
 o

b
s
e

rv
e

d
 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 o
u

r 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
, 
w

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 o
u

r 

a
u

d
it
 p

la
n

 a
n

 i
s
s
u

e
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
in

g
 t
h

e
 F

u
n

d
's

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
P

e
n

s
io

n
 S

c
h

e
m

e
 (

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 I
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
o

f 

F
u

n
d

s
) 

R
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s
 2

0
0

9
. 
T

h
e

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
 s

ta
te

s
 t
h

a
t 

"O
n

 a
n

d
 a

ft
e

r 
1

s
t 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

1
, 
a

n
 a

d
m

in
is

te
ri
n

g
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 m

u
s
t 
h

o
ld

 i
n

 a
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
k
e

p
t 
b

y
 i
t 
w

it
h

 a
 d

e
p

o
s
it
-t

a
k
e

r 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e
 w

it
h

 

th
is

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
: 

(a
)

a
ll 

m
o

n
ie

s
 h

e
ld

 b
y
 t

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 o
n

 t
h

a
t 
d

a
te

; 
a

n
d

(b
)

a
ll 

m
o

n
ie

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 b

y
 i
t 

o
n

 o
r 

a
ft

e
r 

th
a

t 
d

a
te

fo
r 

th
e

 p
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 
it
s
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

. 

F
o

r 
L

e
w

is
h

a
m

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

, 
o

u
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g

 is
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 m

a
in

 b
a

n
k
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 h
o

ld
 l
a

rg
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e

 a
n

d
 

e
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o

 t
h

e
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 f
u

n
d

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
. 

O
u

r 
v
ie

w
 i
s
 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

t 
d

o
e

s
 n

o
t 
m

e
e

t 
th

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
re

fe
rr

e
d

 t
o

 a
b

o
v
e

. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

re
s
p

o
n

d
e

d
to

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 in

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 p

la
n

 s
ta

ti
n

g
 t
h

a
t 
o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

d
 t
o

 c
o

m
p

ly
in

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

e
x
te

n
t 

th
a

t 
it
 i
s
 r

e
a

s
o

n
a

b
le

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
to

 d
o

 s
o

. 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
ta

il 
w

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 o
n

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

in
te

n
d

s
 t
o

 d
o

 t
h

is
. 

A
u
d
it
 f

in
d
in

g
s

W
e 
se
t 
o
u
t 
b
el
o
w
 d
et
ai
ls
 o
f 
o
th
er
 m
at
te
rs
 w
h
ic
h
 w
e,
 a
s 
au
d
it
o
rs
, 
ar
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 b
y 
au
d
it
in
g 
st
an
d
ar
d
s 
to
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
e 
to
 t
h
o
se
 c
h
ar
ge
d
 w
it
h
 g
o
v
er
n
an
ce
.

Page 64



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 3
:

F
ee
s,
 n
o
n
 a
u
d
it
 s
er
v
ic
es
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
ep
en
d
en
ce

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
g

s

0
3

.
F

e
e

s
, 
n

o
n

 a
u

d
it

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 i

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e

0
4

.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

 m
a

tt
e

rs

Page 65



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

16

F
e

e
s

P
e

r 
A

u
d

it
 p

la
n £

A
c

tu
a

l 
fe

e
s

 

£

F
u

n
d

 a
u

d
it

2
1

,0
0

0
2

1
,0

0
0

T
o

ta
l 
a

u
d

it
 f

e
e

s
2

1
,0

0
0

2
1

,0
0

0

F
ee
s,
 n
o
n
 a
u
d
it
 s
er
v
ic
es
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
ep
en
d
en
ce

W
e 
co
n
fi
rm

 b
el
o
w
 o
u
r 
fi
n
al
 f
ee
s 
ch
ar
ge
d
 f
o
r 
th
e 
au
d
it
.

In
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
c

e
 a

n
d

 e
th

ic
s

W
e 
co
n
fi
rm

 t
h
at
 t
h
er
e 
ar
e 
n
o
 s
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
fa
ct
s 
o
r 
m
at
te
rs
 t
h
at
 i
m
p
ac
t 
o
n
 o
u
r 

in
d
ep
en
d
en
ce
 a
s 
au
d
it
o
rs
 t
h
at
 w
e 
ar
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 o
r 
w
is
h
 t
o
 d
ra
w
 t
o
 y
o
u
r 

at
te
n
ti
o
n
. W

e 
h
av
e 
co
m
p
lie
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
A
u
d
it
in
g 
P
ra
ct
ic
es
 B
o
ar
d
's
 E
th
ic
al
 

S
ta
n
d
ar
d
s 
an
d
 t
h
er
ef
o
re
 w
e 
co
n
fi
rm

 t
h
at
 w
e 
ar
e 
in
d
ep
en
d
en
t 
an
d
 a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 

ex
p
re
ss
 a
n
 o
b
je
ct
iv
e 
o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
.

W
e 
co
n
fi
rm

 t
h
at
 w
e 
h
av
e 
im

p
le
m
en
te
d
 p
o
lic
ie
s 
an
d
 p
ro
ce
d
u
re
s 
to
 m

ee
t 
th
e 

re
q
u
ir
em

en
ts
 o
f 
th
e 
A
u
d
it
in
g 
P
ra
ct
ic
es
 B
o
ar
d
's
 E
th
ic
al
 S
ta
n
d
ar
d
s.

F
e

e
s
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

S
e

rv
ic

e
F

e
e

s
 £

N
o

n
e

 
N

il

F
e
e
s
, 
n
o
n
 a

u
d
it
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
c
e

T
h
e 
A
u
d
it
 C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
 d
ef
in
es
 t
h
e 
sc
al
e 
au
d
it
 f
ee
 a
s 
"t
h
e 
fe
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 b
y 

th
e 
au
d
it
o
rs
 t
o
 c
ar
ry
 o
u
t 
th
e 
w
o
rk
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
 t
o
 m

ee
t 
th
ei
r 
st
at
u
to
ry
 

re
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ti
es
 in

 a
cc
o
rd
an
ce
 w
it
h
 t
h
e 
C
o
d
e 
o
f 
A
u
d
it
 P
ra
ct
ic
e.
 I
t 
re
p
re
se
n
ts
 

th
e 
b
es
t 
es
ti
m
at
e 
o
f 
th
e 
fe
e 
re
q
u
ir
ed
 t
o
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
n
 a
u
d
it
 w
h
er
e 
th
e 
au
d
it
ed
 

b
o
d
y 
h
as
 n
o
 s
ig
n
if
ic
an
t 
au
d
it
 r
is
ks
 a
n
d
 i
t 
h
as
 i
n
 p
la
ce
 a
 s
o
u
n
d
 c
o
n
tr
o
l 

en
vi
ro
n
m
en
t 
th
at
 e
n
su
re
s 
th
e 
au
d
it
o
r 
is
 p
ro
vi
d
ed
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
n
d
 

m
at
er
ia
lly
 a
cc
u
ra
te
 f
in
an
ci
al
 s
ta
te
m
en
ts
 w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g 
w
o
rk
in
g 
p
ap
er
s 

w
it
h
in
 a
gr
ee
d
 t
im

ef
ra
m
es
."

W
e 
ar
e 
p
le
as
ed
 t
o
 c
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
at
 w
e 
w
er
e 
ab
le
 t
o
 c
ar
ry
 o
u
t 
th
e 
n
ec
es
sa
ry
 

w
o
rk
 t
o
 m

ee
t 
o
u
r 
re
sp
o
n
si
b
ili
ti
es
 w
it
h
in
 t
h
e 
re
co
m
m
en
d
ed
 s
ca
le
 f
ee
 a
s 

sh
o
w
n
 a
b
o
ve
.  

Page 66



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 4
:

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
 o
f 
au
d
it
 m

at
te
rs

0
1

.
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

0
2

.
A

u
d

it
 f

in
d

in
g

s

0
3

.
F

e
e

s
, 
n

o
n

 a
u

d
it

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 a
n

d
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

0
4

.
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
u

d
it

 m
a

tt
e

rs

Page 67



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

18

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
at
io
n
 o
f 
au
d
it
 m

at
te
rs
 t
o
 t
h
o
se
 c
h
ar
g
ed
 w
it
h
 g
o
ve
rn
an
ce

O
u

r 
c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

 p
la

n

A
u

d
it

 

P
la

n

A
u

d
it

 

F
in

d
in

g
s

R
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
a

u
d

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t/

th
o

s
e

 

c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

�

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 s

c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 t
im

in
g

 o
f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
. 
F

o
rm

, 
ti
m

in
g

 

a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
c
o

n
te

n
t 
o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

s

�

V
ie

w
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
a

ti
v
e

 a
s
p

e
c
ts

  
o

f 
th

e
 e

n
ti
ty

's
a

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l r
e

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
, 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
n

d
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 

d
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 w
ri

tt
e

n
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
o

u
g

h
t

�

C
o

n
fi
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
in

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
it
y

�
�

A
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
th

a
t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

lie
d

 w
it
h

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 
e

th
ic

a
l 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

, 
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 m

ig
h

t 
 b

e
 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 b
e

a
r 

o
n

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n
c
e

. 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 
n

o
n

-a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 b

y
 G

ra
n

t 
T

h
o

rn
to

n
 U

K
 L

L
P

 a
n

d
 

n
e

tw
o

rk
 f
ir

m
s
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

  
fe

e
s
 c

h
a

rg
e

d
 

D
e

ta
ils

 o
f 
s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
s
 a

p
p

lie
d

 t
o

 t
h

re
a

ts
 t
o

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

�
�

M
a

te
ri

a
l 
w

e
a

k
n

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 i
n

te
rn

a
l 
c
o

n
tr

o
l 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 d

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
�

Id
e

n
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
s
u

s
p

ic
io

n
 o

f 
fr

a
u

d
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

/o
r 

o
th

e
rs

 w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 in

 m
a

te
ri

a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

�

C
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 l
a

w
s
 a

n
d

 r
e

g
u

la
ti
o

n
s

�

E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 u

n
m

o
d

if
ie

d
 a

u
d

it
o

r'
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
�

U
n

c
o

rr
e

c
te

d
 m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts
�

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
ri

s
in

g
 i
n

 c
o

n
n

e
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 r
e

la
te

d
 p

a
rt

ie
s

�

S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 g
o

in
g

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
�

In
te

rn
a

ti
o

n
a

l S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d

it
in

g
 (

IS
A

) 
2

6
0

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

th
e

r 
IS

A
s
, 
p

re
s
c
ri

b
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
 

w
h

ic
h

 w
e

 a
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 w

it
h

 t
h

o
s
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 w
h

ic
h

 

w
e

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 
in

 t
h

e
 t
a

b
le

 o
p

p
o

s
it
e

. 
 

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 P

la
n

 o
u

tl
in

e
d

 o
u

r 
a

u
d

it
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 p
la

n
 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
, 
w

h
ile

 t
h

is
 A

u
d

it
 

F
in

d
in

g
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

 p
re

s
e

n
ts

 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 

w
it
h

 a
n

 e
x
p

la
n

a
ti
o

n
 a

s
 t
o

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

s
o

lv
e

d
.

R
e

s
p

e
c

ti
v
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s

T
h

e
 A

u
d

it
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 R

e
p

o
rt

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

re
p

a
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
x
t 
o

f 
th

e
 S

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
o

f 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 A
u

d
it
e

d
 B

o
d

ie
s
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

(w
w

w
.a

u
d

it
-c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
).

 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 a

s
 t
h

e
 F

u
n

d
's

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
, 
th

e
 b

o
d

y
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
a

p
p

o
in

ti
n

g
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

u
b

lic
 b

o
d

ie
s
 

in
 E

n
g

la
n

d
. 
A

s
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
o

rs
, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
 b

ro
a

d
 r

e
m

it
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
 f
in

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 m
a

tt
e

rs
. 

O
u

r 
a

n
n

u
a

l 
w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 is

 s
e

t 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
d

e
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e

 (
'th

e
 

C
o

d
e

')
 i
s
s
u

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 p

re
s
c
ri

b
e

d
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

lly
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 w

o
rk

. 
O

u
r 

w
o

rk
 c

o
n

s
id

e
rs

 t
h

e
 F

u
n

d
's

 k
e

y
 r

is
k
s
 w

h
e

n
 r

e
a

c
h

in
g

 o
u

r 

c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 C
o

d
e

. 

It
 i
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 F

u
n

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
p

ro
p

e
r 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

c
o

n
d

u
c
t 
o

f 
it
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
, 
a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 
p

u
b

lic
 m

o
n

e
y
 i
s
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

e
rl

y
 a

c
c
o

u
n

te
d

 

fo
r.

  
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 F

u
n

d
 i
s
 f
u

lf
ill

in
g

 t
h

e
s
e

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
.

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
u
d
it
 m

a
tt
e
rs

Page 68



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

19

A
p

p
en

d
ic

es

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 69



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

20

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 A
: 
D
ra
ft
 a
u
d
it
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
P
en
si
o
n
 F
u
n
d
 F
in
an
ci
al
 S
ta
te
m
en
ts

W
e
 a

n
ti

c
ip

a
te

 t
h

a
t 

 w
e
 w

il
l 
p

ro
v

id
e
 t

h
e
 F

u
n

d
 w

it
h

 a
n

 u
n

m
o

d
if

ie
d

 a
u

d
it

 r
e
p

o
rt

D
R

A
F

T

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 A
U

D
IT

O
R

’S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 T

O
 T

H
E

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
 O

F
 L

O
N

D
O

N
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

 O
F

 

L
E

W
IS

H
A

M

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
L
e
w

is
h
a
m

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9
9
8
. 

T
h
e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 F

u
n
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t,

 t
h
e
 N

e
t 
A

s
s
e
ts

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
la

te
d
 n

o
te

s
. 

T
h
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
lie

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

p
p
lic

a
b
le

 l
a
w

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 K

in
g
d
o
m

 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
.

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 s

o
le

ly
 t
o
 t

h
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
L
e
w

is
h
a
m

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

P
a
rt

 I
I 
o
f 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9
9
8
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

n
o
 o

th
e
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
, 

a
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 

in
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 4

8
 

o
f 

th
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 A

u
d
it
e
d
 B

o
d
ie

s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 in

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
. 

T
o
 t

h
e
 f

u
lle

s
t 
e
x
te

n
t 

p
e
rm

it
te

d
 b

y
 l
a
w

, 
w

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
e
p
t 
o
r 

a
s
s
u
m

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 a

n
y
o
n
e
 o

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
s
 a

 b
o
d
y
, 

fo
r 

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

, 
fo

r 
th

is
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
o
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 o

p
in

io
n
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 f

o
rm

e
d
.

R
e
s
p

e
c
ti

v
e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 o

f 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it

o
r

A
s
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 m

o
re

 f
u
lly

 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
's

 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
, 
th

e
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

A
c
c
o
u
n
ts

, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 t
h
e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

, 
in

 a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

ro
p
e
r 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 a

s
 

s
e
t 
o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 

K
in

g
d
o
m

, 
a
n
d
 f

o
r 

b
e
in

g
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 g

iv
e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 f

a
ir
 v

ie
w

. 
O

u
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 i
s
 t
o
 a

u
d
it
 

a
n
d
 e

x
p
re

s
s
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
lic

a
b
le

 l
a
w

 a
n
d
 

In
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d
it
in

g
 (

U
K

 a
n
d
 I

re
la

n
d
).

 T
h
o
s
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 u

s
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 B

o
a
rd

’s
 E

th
ic

a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

A
u
d
it
o
rs

.

S
c
o

p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

A
n
 a

u
d
it
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
s
 o

b
ta

in
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 a

m
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 d

is
c
lo

s
u
re

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
to

 g
iv

e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 f
re

e
 f

ro
m

 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t,

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

c
a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 f

ra
u
d
 o

r 
e
rr

o
r.

 T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f:

 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

re
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d
’s

 c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 a

p
p
lie

d
 a

n
d
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
 d

is
c
lo

s
e
d
; 
th

e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 t

h
e

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

w
e
 r

e
a
d
 a

ll 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 n

o
n
-f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e

e
x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o
rd

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 m
a
te

ri
a
l 
in

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
ie

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
If

 w
e
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

w
a
re

 o
f 

a
n
y
 a

p
p
a
re

n
t 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
r 

in
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
ie

s
 w

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

o
u
r 

re
p
o
rt

.

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 o

th
e
r 

m
a
tt

e
rs

In
 o

u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
, 

th
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 g

iv
e
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 f

o
re

w
o
rd

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

fo
r 

w
h
ic

h
 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

In
 o

u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d
’s

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

:

•
g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 f

a
ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
tr

a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

is
p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d
’s

 a
s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d
 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
; 

a
n
d

•
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

o
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 K

in
g
d
o
m

 2
0
1
2
/1

3
.

S
u
s
a
n
 M

 E
x
to

n

D
ir
e
c
to

r

fo
r 

a
n
d
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
G

ra
n
t 

T
h
o
rn

to
n
 U

K
 L

L
P

, 
A

p
p
o
in

te
d
 A

u
d
it
o
r

G
ra

n
t 

T
h
o
rn

to
n
 H

o
u
s
e

M
e
lt
o
n
 S

tr
e
e
t

E
u
s
to

n
 S

q
u
a
re

L
o
n
d
o
n
 

N
W

1
 2

E
P

X
X

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 70



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

21

A
p
p
en
d
ix
 B
: 
D
ra
ft
 a
u
d
it
 o
p
in
io
n
 o
n
 t
h
e 
P
en
si
o
n
 F
u
n
d
 A
n
n
u
al
 R
ep
o
rt

W
e
 a

n
ti

c
ip

a
te

 t
h

a
t 

 w
e
 w

il
l 
p

ro
v

id
e
 t

h
e
 F

u
n

d
 w

it
h

 a
n

 u
n

m
o

d
if

ie
d

 a
u

d
it

 r
e
p

o
rt

D
R

A
F

T

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 A
U

D
IT

O
R

’S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 T

O
 T

H
E

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
 O

F
 L

O
N

D
O

N
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

 O
F

 

L
E

W
IS

H
A

M

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

e
n

s
io

n
 f

u
n

d
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
L
e
w

is
h
a
m

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9
9
8
. 

T
h
e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
ri
s
e
 t
h
e
 F

u
n
d
 A

c
c
o
u
n
t,

 t
h
e
 N

e
t 
A

s
s
e
ts

 S
ta

te
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
la

te
d
 n

o
te

s
. 

T
h
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
lie

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

p
p
lic

a
b
le

 l
a
w

 a
n
d
 

th
e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 K

in
g
d
o
m

 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
.

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 m

a
d
e
 s

o
le

ly
 t
o
 t

h
e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
L
e
w

is
h
a
m

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

P
a
rt

 I
I 
o
f 

th
e
 A

u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 A

c
t 
1
9
9
8
 a

n
d
 f

o
r 

n
o
 o

th
e
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
, 

a
s
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 

in
 p

a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 4

8
 

o
f 

th
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 o

f 
A

u
d
it
e
d
 B

o
d
ie

s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 in

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
. 

T
o
 t

h
e
 f

u
lle

s
t 
e
x
te

n
t 

p
e
rm

it
te

d
 b

y
 l
a
w

, 
w

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
e
p
t 
o
r 

a
s
s
u
m

e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 t
o
 a

n
y
o
n
e
 o

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
s
 a

 b
o
d
y
, 

fo
r 

o
u
r 

a
u
d
it
 w

o
rk

, 
fo

r 
th

is
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
o
r 

fo
r 

th
e
 o

p
in

io
n
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 f

o
rm

e
d
.

R
e
s
p

e
c
ti

v
e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
 o

f 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
F

in
a
n

c
e
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it

o
r

A
s
 e

x
p
la

in
e
d
 m

o
re

 f
u
lly

 i
n
 t

h
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
's

 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
, 
th

e
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d
’s

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

b
e
in

g
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 g

iv
e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 f

a
ir
 v

ie
w

. 
O

u
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 i
s
 t
o
 a

u
d
it
 a

n
d
 

e
x
p
re

s
s
 a

n
 o

p
in

io
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
lic

a
b
le

 l
a
w

 a
n
d
 

In
te

rn
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 o

n
 A

u
d
it
in

g
 (

U
K

 a
n
d
 I

re
la

n
d
).

 T
h
o
s
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 u

s
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 A

u
d
it
in

g
 P

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
 B

o
a
rd

’s
 E

th
ic

a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

A
u
d
it
o
rs

.

S
c
o

p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

A
n
 a

u
d
it
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
s
 o

b
ta

in
in

g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 a

b
o
u
t 

th
e
 a

m
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 d

is
c
lo

s
u
re

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
to

 g
iv

e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 f
re

e
 f

ro
m

 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
t,

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

c
a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 f

ra
u
d
 o

r 
e
rr

o
r.

 T
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f:

 

w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

re
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 f

u
n
d
’s

 c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y
 a

p
p
lie

d
 a

n
d
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

ly
 d

is
c
lo

s
e
d
; 
th

e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

s
 m

a
d
e
 b

y
 t

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
; 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

w
e
 r

e
a
d
 a

ll 
th

e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 n

o
n
-f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l

re
p
o
rt

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 m
a
te

ri
a
l 
in

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
ie

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

u
d
it
e
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

. 
If

 w
e
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

a
n
y
 a

p
p
a
re

n
t 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 
m

is
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 o
r 

in
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
ie

s
 w

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 

o
u
r 

re
p
o
rt

. 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 o

th
e
r 

m
a
tt

e
rs

In
 o

u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
, 

th
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 g

iv
e
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

fo
r 

w
h
ic

h
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

.

M
a
tt

e
rs

 o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 w
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 b
y
 e

x
c
e
p

ti
o

n

W
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 y

o
u
 i
f,

 i
n
 o

u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
 t

h
e
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 s

ta
te

m
e
n
t 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

re
fl
e
c
t 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

P
e
n
s
io

n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 (

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
) 

R
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 2

0
0
8
 

a
n
d
 r

e
la

te
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
th

in
g
 t

o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 t

h
is

 r
e
s
p
e
c
t.

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n

ts

In
 o

u
r 

o
p
in

io
n
 t

h
e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d
’s

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

:

•
g
iv

e
 a

 t
ru

e
 a

n
d
 f

a
ir
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
tr

a
n
s
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
n
s
io

n
 f

u
n
d

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
e
d
 3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

is
p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 f

u
n
d
’s

 a
s
s
e
ts

 a
n
d
 l
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
; 

a
n
d

•
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
p
e
rl
y
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
C

o
d
e
 o

f 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

o
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

n
it
e
d
 K

in
g
d
o
m

 2
0
1
2
/1

3
.

S
u
s
a
n
 M

 E
x
to

n

D
ir
e
c
to

r

fo
r 

a
n
d
 o

n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
G

ra
n
t 

T
h
o
rn

to
n
 U

K
 L

L
P

, 
A

p
p
o
in

te
d
 A

u
d
it
o
r

G
ra

n
t 

T
h
o
rn

to
n
 H

o
u
s
e

M
e
lt
o
n
 S

tr
e
e
t

E
u
s
to

n
 S

q
u
a
re

L
o
n
d
o
n
 

N
W

1
 2

E
P

X
X

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3

A
p
p
e
n
d
ic

e
s

Page 71



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
|  

Lo
nd

on
 B

or
ou

gh
 o

f 
Le

w
is

ha
m

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

ud
it 

F
in

di
ng

s 
R

ep
or

t 
|  

A
ug

us
t 

20
13

©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. 
A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

. 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
, 

a 
lim

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r 

fir
m

 o
f 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
n

al
 L

td
 

(G
ra

nt
T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l).
 R

ef
er

en
ce

s 
to

 'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 
to

 t
he

 b
ra

nd
 u

nd
er

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s 

op
er

at
e 

an
d 

re
fe

r 
to

 o
ne

 o
r 

m
or

e 
m

em
be

r 
fir

m
s,

 a
s 

th
e 

co
nt

ex
t 

re
qu

ire
s.

 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

an
d 

th
e 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s 
ar

e 
no

t 
a 

w
or

ld
w

id
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 i

nd
ep

en
de

nt
ly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r 

fir
m

s,
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

of
 o

ne
 a

no
th

er
. 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
do

es
 n

ot
 p

ro
vi

de
 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

cl
ie

nt
s.

 

g
ra

n
t-

th
o

rn
to

n
.c

o
.u

k

Page 72



Letter of representation – London Borough of Lewisham Pension Fund 

 
 

Susan Exton 
Director 
Grant Thornton UK LLP 
Grant Thornton House 
Melton Street 
London NW1 2EP 
 

xxx September 2013 

Dear Ms Exton 

London Borough of Lewisham    

Pension Fund Financial Statements for the ended 31 March 2013 
 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements 
of London Borough of  Lewisham Pension Fund for the year ended 31 March 2013 for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements show a true and fair 
view of the financial transactions of the Fund during the year ended 31 March 2013, and of 
the amount and disposition at that date of its assets and liabilities, other than liabilities to pay 
pensions and benefits after the end of the Fund year, in accordance with applicable law and 
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2012/13 (the Code).  

Financial Statements 

We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the Code; in particular the financial statements show a true and fair view in 
accordance therewith, and for keeping records in respect of contributions received in respect 
of active members. 
 
We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of internal control to 
prevent and detect error and fraud. 
 
Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured 
at fair value, are reasonable. 
 
Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of  the Code. 
 
All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the Code requires 
adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. 
 
We believe that the Pension Scheme's financial statements should be prepared on a going 
concern basis on the grounds that current and future sources of funding or support will be 
more than adequate for the Pension Scheme's needs. We believe that no further disclosures 
relating to the Pension Scheme's ability to continue as a going concern need to be made in the 

Page 73



 2

financial statements.  
 
We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of 
assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements. 
 
We acknowledge our responsibilities for making the accounting estimates included in the 
financial statements.  Where it was necessary to choose between estimation techniques that 
comply with the Code, we selected the estimation technique considered to be the most 
appropriate to the Pension Fund's particular circumstances for the purpose of giving a true 
and fair view.  Those estimates reflect our judgment based on our knowledge and experience 
about past and current events and are also based on our assumptions about conditions we 
expect to exist and courses of action we expect to take. 
 

 
Information Provided 

We have provided you with: 

• access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 
financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters; 

• additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; and 

• unrestricted access to persons from whom you determine it necessary to obtain audit 
evidence. 

 
We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements 
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 
 
All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 
statements. 
 
We are not aware of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Fund involving: 

• management; 

• employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

• others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 
 
We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the Fund's 
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or 
others. 
 
We are not aware of any  instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws 
and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements. 
 
There have been no communications with The Pensions Regulator or other regulatory bodies 
during the fund year or subsequently concerning matters of non-compliance with any legal 
duty.  
 
We are not aware of any reports having been made to The Pensions Regulator by any of our 
advisors.  
 

Page 74



 3

We have disclosed to you the identity of the Fund's related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 
 
We confirm that no trustee of the fund is connected with, or is an associate of, Grant 
Thornton UK LLP which would render Grant Thornton UK LLP ineligible to act as auditor 
to the Fund under section 27 of the Pensions Act 1995. 
 
Other 

We confirm that the Fund is a Registered Pension Fund.  We are not aware of any reason why 
the tax status of the Fund should change. 
 
We confirm that we are not aware of any late contributions or breaches of payment of 
contributions that have arisen which we considered did not require reporting under the 
easement introduced under The Occupational Pension Funds (Miscellaneous Amendments) 
Regulations 2000. 
 
We have not commissioned advisory reports which may affect the conduct of your work in 
relation to the fund's financial statements. 
 

 

Yours faithfully 
 
 
 
Janet Senior  
 
 

Page 75



T
h

is
 v

er
si

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

re
p

o
rt

 is
 a

 d
ra

ft
.  

It
s 

co
n

te
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
je

ct
 

m
at

te
r 

re
m

ai
n

 u
n

d
er

 

re
vi

ew
 a

n
d

 it
s 

co
n

te
n

ts
 

m
ay

 c
h

an
g

e 
an

d
 b

e 

ex
p

an
d

ed
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

al
is

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 

re
p

o
rt

.

T
h

is
 v

er
si

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

re
p

o
rt

 is
 a

 d
ra

ft
.  

It
s 

co
n

te
n

ts
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
je

ct
 

m
at

te
r 

re
m

ai
n

 u
n

d
er

 

re
vi

ew
 a

n
d

 it
s 

co
n

te
n

ts
 

m
ay

 c
h

an
g

e 
an

d
 b

e 

ex
p

an
d

ed
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

al
is

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 

re
p

o
rt

.

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u
gh

 o
f 

L
ew

is
h

am
's

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

se
cu

ri
n

g 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

Y
e
a
r 

e
n

d
e
d

 3
1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3

D
a

rr
e

n
 W

e
ll

s

D
ir

e
c
to

r

T
0

1
2

9
3

 5
5

4
 1

2
0

E
D

a
rr

e
n

.W
e
lls

@
u

k
.g

t.
c
o

m

J
a

m
ie

 B
e

w
ic

k

A
u

d
it
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r

T
0

1
2

9
3

 5
5

4
 1

3
8

E
J
a

m
ie

.N
.B

e
w

ic
k
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o

m

M
a

tt
 D

e
a

n

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

T
0

2
0

 7
7

2
8

 3
1

8
1

E
m

a
tt

h
e

w
.d

e
a

n
@

u
k
.g

t.
c
o
m

Page 76



T
h

e
co

n
te

n
ts

o
f

th
is

re
p

o
rt

re
la

te
o

n
ly

to
th

e
m

at
te

rs
w

h
ic

h
h

av
e

co
m

e
to

o
u
r

at
te

n
ti

o
n

,
w

h
ic

h
w

e
b

el
ie

ve
n

ee
d

to
b

e
re

p
o

rt
ed

to
yo

u
as

p
ar

t
o

f
o

u
r

au
d

it
p

ro
ce

ss
.

It
is

n
o

t
a

co
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

re
co

rd
o

f
al

l
th

e
re

le
va

n
t

m
at

te
rs

,
w

h
ic

h
m

ay
b

e
su

b
je

ct
to

ch
an

ge
,

an
d

in
p

ar
ti

cu
la

r
w

e
ca

n
n

o
t

b
e

h
el

d
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

to
yo

u
fo

r
re

p
o

rt
in

g
al

l
o

f
th

e
ri

sk
s

w
h

ic
h

m
ay

af
fe

ct
th

e
C

o
u
n

ci
l

o
r

an
y

w
ea

kn
es

se
s

in
yo

u
r

in
te

rn
al

co
n

tr
o

ls
.

T
h

is
re

p
o

rt
h

as
b

ee
n

p
re

p
ar

ed
so

le
ly

fo
r

yo
ur

b
en

ef
it

an
d

sh
o

u
ld

n
o

t
b

e
q
u
o

te
d

in
w

h
o

le
o

r
in

p
ar

t
w

it
h

o
u
t

o
u
r

p
ri

o
r

w
ri

tt
en

co
n

se
n

t.
W

e
d
o

n
o

t
ac

ce
p

t
an

y
re

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
fo

r
an

y
lo

ss
o

cc
as

io
n

ed
to

an
y

th
ir

d
p

ar
ty

ac
ti

n
g,

o
r

re
fr

ai
n

in
g

fr
o

m
ac

ti
n

g
o

n
th

e
b

as
is

o
f

th
e

co
n

te
n

t
o

f
th

is
re

p
o

rt
,a

s
th

is
re

p
o

rt
w

as
n

o
t

p
re

p
ar

ed
fo

r,
n

o
r

in
te

n
d

ed
fo

r,
an

y
o

th
er

p
u
rp

o
se

.

Page 77



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

C
o

n
te

n
ts

1
  
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v

e
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

P
a
g

e
 3

2
  
K

e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
P

a
g

e
 8

3
  
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g
P

a
g

e
 1

2
 

4
  
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

P
a
g

e
 1

6

5
  
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l
P

a
g

e
 2

0

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 -
K

e
y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 o

f 
fi

n
a
n

c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

P
a
g

e
 2

7

2

C
o

n
te

n
ts

Page 78



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

C
o

n
te

n
ts

1
  
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v

e
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

2
  
K

e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs

3
  
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g

4
  
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

5
  
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 -
K

e
y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 o

f 
fi

n
a
n

c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

3

Page 79



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

A
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 m

e
e
t 

o
r 

e
x

c
e
e
d

 a
d

e
q

u
a
te

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s.
 A
d
eq
u
at
e 

ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
 i
d
en
ti
fi
ed
 a
n
d
 k
ey
 c
h
ar
ac
te
ri
st
ic
s 
o
f 
go
o
d
 p
ra
ct
ic
e 

ap
p
ea
r 
to
 b
e 
in
 p
la
ce
.

G
re
en

P
o

te
n

ti
a
l 

ri
sk

s 
a
n

d
/

o
r 

w
e
a
k

n
e
ss

e
s.
 A
d
eq
u
at
e 
ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
 

an
d
 c
h
ar
ac
te
ri
st
ic
s 
ar
e 
in
 p
la
ce
 i
n
 s
o
m
e 
re
sp
ec
ts
, 
b
u
t 
n
o
t 
al
l. 

E
v
id
en
ce
 t
h
at
 t
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l 
is
 t
ak
in
g 
fo
rw
ar
d
 a
re
as
 w
h
er
e 

ar
ra
n
ge
m
en
ts
 n
ee
d
 t
o
 b
e 
st
re
n
gt
h
en
ed
.

A
m
b
er

H
ig

h
 r

is
k
: 
T
h
e 
C
o
u
n
ci
l's
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 a
re
 g
en
er
al
ly
 i
n
ad
eq
u
at
e 

o
r 
m
ay
 h
av
e 
a 
h
ig
h
 r
is
k
 o
f 
n
o
t 
su
cc
ee
d
in
g

R
ed

O
u
r 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h

V
a
lu
e 
fo
r 
M
o
n
ey
 C
o
n
cl
u
si
o
n

O
u
r 

w
o

rk
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g 
o

u
r 

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

M
o

n
ey

 (
V

fM
) 

co
n

cl
u
si

o
n

, a
s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
th

e 
st

at
u
to

ry
 e

xt
er

n
al

 a
u
d

it
, i

n
cl

u
d

es
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 t
o

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

if
 t

h
e 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u
gh

 o
f 

L
ew

is
h

am
 (

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l)

 h
as

 p
ro

p
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 f

o
r 

se
cu

ri
n

g 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
re

si
lie

n
ce

. 

In
 s

o
 d

o
in

g 
w

e 
h

av
e 

co
n

si
d

er
ed

 w
h

et
h

er
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 r

o
b

u
st

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 m

an
ag

e 
it

s 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 r
is

ks
 a

n
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s,
 a

n
d

 t
o

 
se

cu
re

 a
 s

ta
b

le
 f

in
an

ci
al

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

 t
h

at
 e

n
ab

le
s 

it
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 o

p
er

at
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

fo
re

se
ea

b
le

 f
u
tu

re
.  

W
e 

h
av

e 
ca

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

o
u
r 

w
o

rk
 i
n

 d
is

cu
ss

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t 
w

it
h

 o
ff

ic
er

s 
an

d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
t 

in
 s

u
ch

 a
 w

ay
 a

s 
to

 m
in

im
is

e 
d

is
ru

p
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

em
.

T
h

e 
d

ef
in

it
io

n
 o

f 
fo

re
se

ea
b

le
 f

u
tu

re
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
u
rp

o
se

s 
o

f 
th

is
 f

in
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
 

re
vi

ew
 i
s 

12
 m

o
n

th
s 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e 

d
at

e 
o

f 
th

is
 r

ep
o

rt
.

W
e 

h
av

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 r

es
ili

en
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l b

y 
lo

o
ki

n
g 

at
:

•
K

ey
 i
n

d
ic

at
o

rs
 o

f 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

; 
•

It
s 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 f
in

an
ci

al
 p

la
n

n
in

g;
•

It
s 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 f

in
an

ci
al

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

; a
n

d
•

It
s 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 f

in
an

ci
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l.

F
u
rt

h
er

 d
et

ai
l 
o

n
 e

ac
h

 o
f 

th
es

e 
ar

ea
s 

is
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 in
 t

h
e 

se
ct

io
n

s 
o

f 
th

e 
re

p
o

rt
 t

h
at

 
fo

llo
w

. O
u
r 

o
ve

ra
ll 

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 is
 t

h
at

 w
h

ils
t 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
fa

ce
s 

so
m

e 
si

gn
if

ic
an

t 
ri

sk
s 

an
d

 c
h

al
le

n
ge

s 
d

u
ri

n
g 

20
13

/
14

 a
n

d
 b

ey
o

n
d

, i
t 

h
as

 s
o

u
n

d
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 f
o

r 
ac

h
ie

vi
n

g 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
. 

W
e 

h
av

e 
u
se

d
 a

 r
ed

/
am

b
er

/
gr

ee
n

 (
R

A
G

) 
ra

ti
n

g 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

d
ef

in
it

io
n

s.

E
x
ec

u
ti

v
e 

S
u
m

m
ar

y

4

Page 80



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
C
o
n
te
x
t

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C
o
n
te
x
t

T
h

e 
C

h
an

ce
llo

r 
o

f 
th

e 
E

xc
h

eq
u
er

 a
n

n
o

u
n

ce
d

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
S
p

en
d

in
g 

R
ev

ie
w

 
(S

R
10

) 
to

 P
ar

lia
m

en
t 

o
n

 2
0 

O
ct

o
b

er
 2

01
0.

 S
R

10
 r

ep
re

se
n

te
d

 t
h

e 
la

rg
es

t 
re

d
u
ct

io
n

s 
in

 p
u
b

lic
 s

p
en

d
in

g 
si

n
ce

 t
h

e 
19

20
's

. R
ev

en
u
e 

fu
n

d
in

g 
to

 l
o

ca
l 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t 

w
as

 t
o

 r
ed

u
ce

 b
y 

19
%

 b
y 

20
14

-1
5 

(e
xc

lu
d

in
g 

sc
h

o
o

ls
, f

ir
e 

an
d

 
p

o
lic

e)
. A

ft
er

 a
llo

w
in

g 
fo

r 
in

fl
at

io
n

, t
h

is
 e

q
u
at

es
 t

o
 a

 2
8%

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 r
ea

l t
er

m
s,

 
w

it
h

 l
o

ca
l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
fa

ci
n

g 
so

m
e 

o
f 

th
e 

la
rg

es
t 

cu
ts

 in
 t

h
e 

p
u
b

lic
 s

ec
to

r.
 I

n
 

ad
d

it
io

n
, l

o
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
fu

n
d

in
g 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

s 
w

er
e 

fr
o

n
tl

o
ad

ed
, w

it
h

 8
%

 c
as

h
 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

s 
in

 2
01

1-
12

. 

T
h

is
 f

o
llo

w
ed

 a
 p

er
io

d
 o

f 
su

st
ai

n
ed

 g
ro

w
th

 in
 l
o

ca
l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
sp

en
d

in
g,

 w
h

ic
h

 
in

cr
ea

se
d

 b
y 

45
%

 d
u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 1
99

7 
to

 2
00

7.
 T

h
e 

fu
n

d
in

g 
re

d
u
ct

io
n

s 
co

m
e 

at
 a

 t
im

e 
w

h
en

 d
em

o
gr

ap
h

ic
 a

n
d

 r
ec

es
si

o
n

 b
as

ed
 f

ac
to

rs
 a

re
 i
n

cr
ea

si
n

g 
d

em
an

d
 

fo
r 

so
m

e 
se

rv
ic

es
, a

n
d

 t
h

er
e 

is
 a

 d
ec

re
as

in
g 

d
em

an
d

 f
o

r 
o

th
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

ca
r 

p
ar

ki
n

g,
 w

h
er

e 
cu

st
o

m
er

s 
p

ay
 a

 f
ee

 o
r 

ch
ar

ge
.

T
h

e 
C

h
an

ce
llo

r 
o

f 
th

e 
E

xc
h

eq
u
er

, i
n

 h
is

 A
u
tu

m
n

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

in
 N

o
ve

m
b

er
 2

01
1,

 
an

n
o

u
n

ce
d

 f
u
rt

h
er

 p
u
b

lic
 s

p
en

d
in

g 
re

d
u
ct

io
n

s 
o

f 
0.

9%
 in

 r
ea

l 
te

rm
s 

in
 b

o
th

 
20

15
-1

6 
an

d
 2

01
6-

17
. I

n
 h

is
 A

u
tu

m
n

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 

o
n

 5
 D

ec
em

b
er

 2
01

2,
 t

h
e 

C
h

an
ce

llo
r 

re
in

fo
rc

ed
 a

u
st

er
it

y 
m

ea
su

re
s 

an
n

o
u
n

ci
n

g 
a 

fu
rt

h
er

 £
6.

6b
n

 o
f 

sa
vi

n
gs

 
d

u
ri

n
g 

20
13

-1
4 

an
d

 2
01

4-
15

.  
W

h
ile

 h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

ch
o

o
ls

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 b

e 
p

ro
te

ct
ed

 i
n

 l
in

e 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t's

 p
o

lic
y 

se
t 

o
u
t 

in
 S

R
10

, l
o

ca
l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 f

ac
e 

si
gn

if
ic

an
t 

fu
n

d
in

g 
re

d
u
ct

io
n

s.
 T

h
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

fo
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
an

d
 L

o
ca

l 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

w
ill

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u
te

 £
47

0m
 o

f 
th

es
e 

ad
d

it
io

n
al

 
sa

vi
n

gs
, £

44
5m

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 c
o

m
e 

fr
o

m
 lo

ca
l 
au

th
o

ri
ty

 f
u
n

d
in

g 
d

u
ri

n
g 

20
14

-1
5,

 
w

it
h

 l
o

ca
l 
au

th
o

ri
ti

es
 b

ei
n

g 
ex

em
p

t 
fr

o
m

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 s

av
in

gs
 in

 2
01

3/
14

.

T
h

e 
n

ex
t 

sp
en

d
in

g 
re

vi
ew

 p
er

io
d

 w
ill

 b
e 

fo
r 

a 
si

n
gl

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r,
 2

01
5-

16
. 

F
in

an
ci

al
 a

u
st

er
it

y 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

u
n

ti
l 
at

 l
ea

st
 2

01
7.

L
o
ca
l 
C
o
n
te
x
t

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 o
ve

ra
rc

h
in

g 
vi

si
o

n
 t

o
 m

ak
e 

L
ew

is
h

am
" 

th
e 

b
es

t 
p

la
ce

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 
to

 l
iv

e,
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 l
ea

rn
" 

is
 s

et
 o

u
t 

in
 it

s 
su

st
ai

n
ab

le
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s 
st

ra
te

gy
 2

00
8-

20
20

, w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

u
n

d
er

p
in

n
ed

 b
y 

o
th

er
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s.
  
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 a

 l
ar

ge
 a

n
d

 g
ro

w
in

g 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
27

6,
00

0 
p

eo
p

le
, (

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 
20

11
 c

en
su

s 
d

at
a)

. L
ew

is
h

am
 h

as
 o

n
e 

o
f 

th
e 

fa
st

es
t 

gr
o

w
in

g 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

in
 t

h
e 

U
K

, a
n

d
 a

 r
el

at
iv

el
y 

yo
u
n

g 
ag

e 
p

ro
fi

le
. T

h
is

 p
re

se
n

ts
 p

ar
ti

cu
la

r 
ch

al
le

n
ge

s 
in

 k
ey

 
p

o
lic

y 
ar

ea
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

ed
u
ca

ti
o

n
, e

m
p

lo
ym

en
t,

 h
o

u
si

n
g 

an
d

 w
el

fa
re

. 

T
h

e 
ag

e 
p

ro
fi

le
 in

 L
ew

is
h

am
 m

ea
n

s 
23

 n
ew

 s
ch

o
o

l c
la

ss
es

 w
er

e 
n

ee
d

ed
 i
n

 
20

12
/

13
, a

n
d

 a
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 2

5 
in

 2
01

3/
14

. T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 a

ge
n

d
a 

is
 s

et
 

o
u
t 

in
 it

s 
C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u
n

g 
P

eo
p

le
's

 p
la

n
 2

01
2-

15
, t

o
 i
m

p
ro

ve
 e

d
u
ca

ti
o

n
al

 
at

te
n

d
an

ce
 a

n
d

 a
tt

ai
n

m
en

t 
an

d
 p

ar
en

ti
n

g 
in

 t
h

e 
B

o
ro

u
gh

. 

L
ew

is
h

am
 is

 o
n

e 
o

f 
th

e 
m

o
re

 d
ep

ri
ve

d
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
gh

s 
an

d
 h

as
 h

ig
h

 le
ve

ls
 o

f 
u
n

em
p

lo
ym

en
t.

 H
o

w
ev

er
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 g

o
o

d
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 li

n
ks

 t
o

 t
h

e 
re

st
 o

f 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
S
o

u
th

 E
as

t 
an

d
 h

as
 a

m
b

it
io

u
s 

p
la

n
s 

to
 r

eg
en

er
at

e 
th

e 
B

o
ro

u
gh

, 
n

o
ta

b
ly

 t
h

ro
u
gh

 it
s 

to
w

n
 c

en
tr

e 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ts
 i
n

 C
at

fo
rd

 a
n

d
 D

ep
tf

o
rd

. 

T
h

e 
B

o
ro

u
gh

 is
 p

ar
ti

cu
la

rl
y 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
tr

o
d

u
ce

d
 in

 t
h

e 
W

el
fa

re
 

re
fo

rm
 a

ct
 2

01
2.

 T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
is

 w
o

rk
in

g 
w

it
h

 i
ts

 m
o

st
 v

u
ln

er
ab

le
 r

es
id

en
ts

 t
o

 
m

it
ig

at
e 

th
e 

im
p

ac
t 

o
f 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

o
n

 i
ts

 r
es

id
en

ts
.  

H
o

u
si

n
g 

is
 a

n
 a

cu
te

 p
ro

b
le

m
 a

cr
o

ss
 a

ll 
o

f 
L

o
n

d
o

n
. A

m
o

n
g 

th
e 

p
ro

b
le

m
s 

L
ew

is
h

am
 f

ac
es

 a
re

 a
 g

ro
w

in
g 

p
o

p
u
la

ti
o

n
, l

im
it

ed
 h

o
u
si

n
g 

su
p

p
ly

, u
n

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 

p
ri

ce
s 

an
d

 a
n

 a
ge

in
g 

h
o

u
si

n
g 

st
o

ck
. T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 a

 n
u
m

b
er

 o
f 

p
la

n
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 
to

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e 

q
u
al

it
y,

 q
u
an

ti
ty

 a
n

d
 a

ff
o

rd
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

it
s 

o
w

n
 s

to
ck

 a
n

d
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 b

et
te

r 
h

o
u
si

n
g 

ac
ro

ss
 t

h
e 

B
o

ro
u
gh

. 

E
x
ec

u
ti

v
e 

S
u
m

m
ar

y

5

Page 81



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
A
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

R
is
k
 a
re
a

S
u
m
m
a
ry
o
b
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
s

H
ig
h
 l
ev
el
 r
is
k
 

a
ss
es
sm

en
t

K
ey
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 o
f 
P
er
fo
rm

a
n
ce

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 2
01

2-
13

 G
en

er
al

 F
u
n

d
 n

et
 r

ev
en

u
e 

b
u
d

ge
t 

w
as

 u
n

d
er

sp
en

t 
b

y 
£

3.
5m

ill
io

n
. 

•
B

en
ch

m
ar

ki
n

g 
d

at
a 

sh
o

w
s 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
n

d
in

g 
to

 b
e 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 o

th
er

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u
gh

s.
 

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 l
o

n
g 

te
rm

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g 
is

 r
ed

u
ci

n
g,

 w
h

ile
 u

se
ab

le
 r

es
er

ve
s 

an
d

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 b

al
an

ce
s 

ar
e 

in
cr

ea
si

n
g.

 
•

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
ta

x 
an

d
 N

N
D

R
 c

o
lle

ct
io

n
 r

at
es

 im
p

ro
ve

d
 c

o
m

p
ar

ed
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
p

re
vi

o
u
s 

ye
ar

, b
u
t 

w
er

e 
sh

o
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 t
ar

ge
ts

 a
n

d
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

ve
ra

ge
s.

 L
ew

is
h

am
's

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 
ta

x 
co

lle
ct

io
n

 r
at

e 
is

 o
n

e 
o

f 
th

e 
w

o
rs

t 
in

 L
o

n
d

o
n

. 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
ci
a
l 
P
la
n
n
in
g

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 a

 g
o

o
d

 t
ra

ck
 r

ec
o

rd
 o

f 
ac

h
ie

vi
n

g 
sa

vi
n

gs
. O

ve
r

a 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

 p
er

io
d

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 

u
n

d
er

sp
en

t 
it

s 
b

u
d

ge
ts

 a
n

d
 m

ad
e 

sa
vi

n
gs

 o
f 

£
67

 m
ill

io
n

. 
•

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 a

 r
o

b
u
st

 f
in

an
ci

al
 p

la
n

n
in

g 
p

ro
ce

ss
 a

n
d

 h
as

 m
ad

e 
re

as
o

n
ab

le
 a

ss
u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
in

 i
ts

 p
la

n
n

in
g.

•
T

h
e 

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 F

in
an

ci
al

 P
la

n
 c

o
ve

rs
 t

h
e 

p
er

io
d

 t
o

 2
01

6.
 T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 v
ie

w
 i
s 

th
at

 t
h

e 
ec

o
n

o
m

ic
 

o
u
tl

o
o

k 
b

ey
o

n
d

 2
01

6 
is

 t
o

o
 u

n
ce

rt
ai

n
 f

o
r 

d
et

ai
le

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g.
  

•
F

u
rt

h
er

 c
u
ts

 t
o

 f
o

rm
u
la

 g
ra

n
t 

m
ea

n
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
is

 f
ac

ed
 w

it
h

 m
ak

in
g 

 s
av

in
gs

 o
f 

£
53

.5
 m

ill
io

n
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

n
ex

t 
2 

ye
ar

s.
 T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 i
d

en
ti

fi
ed

 £
21

.3
 m

ill
io

n
 o

f 
re

d
u
ct

io
n

s 
to

 it
s 

b
u
d

ge
ts

 f
o

r 
20

13
/

14
.  

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 a

ls
o

 i
d

en
ti

fi
ed

 o
ve

r 
h

al
f 

th
e 

£
32

.3
 m

ill
io

n
 s

av
in

gs
 r

eq
u
ir

ed
 f

o
r 

20
14

/
15

. H
o

w
ev

er
 t

h
e 

sh
ee

r 
sc

al
e 

o
f 

th
is

 t
ar

ge
t 

m
ea

n
s 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

to
 c

o
n

si
d

er
 m

o
re

 r
ad

ic
al

  
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
th

an
 i
n

 t
h

e 
p

as
t.

 

�
A

m
b

e
r

F
in
a
n
ci
a
l 
G
o
ve
rn
a
n
ce

•
S
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 M
em

b
er

s 
ar

e 
p

ro
p

er
ly

 e
n

ga
ge

d
 i
n

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 p
la

n
n

in
g 

p
ro

ce
ss

. 
•

B
u
d

ge
t 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

re
p

o
rt

s 
ar

e 
p

re
se

n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

P
u
b

lic
 A

cc
o

u
n

ts
 S

el
ec

t 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e.

 F
in

an
ce

 r
ep

o
rt

s 
ar

e 
in

fo
rm

at
iv

e 
an

d
 a

t 
an

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

le
ve

l 
o

f 
d

et
ai

l. 
•

T
h

e 
fo

u
r 

E
xe

cu
ti

ve
 D

ir
ec

to
rs

 a
re

 a
cc

o
u
n

ta
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
e 

b
u
d

ge
t 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
d

ir
ec

to
ra

te
s.

 
•

B
en

ch
m

ar
ki

n
g 

d
at

a 
p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 b

y 
th

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 s

h
o

w
s 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
is

 b
ro

ad
ly

 in
 

lin
e 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
ve

ra
ge

, w
it

h
 s

o
m

e 
va

ri
at

io
n

s 
in

 s
p

ec
if

ic
 s

er
vi

ce
 a

re
as

. 

� G
re

e
n

F
in
a
n
ci
a
l 
C
o
n
tr
o
l 
 

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 a

 s
tr

o
n

g 
tr

ac
k 

re
co

rd
 o

f 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 it

s 
sa

vi
n

gs
 p

la
n

s.
 

•
A

 s
tr

o
n

g 
co

n
tr

o
l 
en

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

is
 in

 p
la

ce
. T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 I
n

te
rn

al
 C

o
n

tr
o

l B
o

ar
d

 w
h

ic
h

 h
o

ld
s 

se
n

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

to
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f 

co
n

tr
o

ls
 a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
is

 a
n

 e
xa

m
p

le
 o

f 
go

o
d

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
•

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 a

n
 e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
d

 s
en

io
r 

fi
n

an
ce

 t
ea

m
 i
n

 p
la

ce
. R

eo
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s 

h
av

e 
le

d
 t

o
 a

 l
ac

k 
o

f 
co

rp
o

ra
te

 
kn

o
w

le
d

ge
 a

n
d

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

 i
n

 s
p

ec
if

ic
 a

re
as

, p
ar

ti
cu

la
rl

y 
as

se
t 

va
lu

at
io

n
s.

�
A

m
b

e
r

E
x
ec

u
ti

v
e 

S
u
m

m
ar

y

6

Page 82



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

N
e
x
t 
S
te
p
s

A
re
a
 o
f 
re
vi
ew

K
ey
 p
o
in
ts
 f
o
r 
co
n
si
d
er
a
ti
o
n

R
es
p
o
n
si
b
il
it
y

T
im

es
ca
le

M
a
n
a
g
em

en
t 
re
sp
o
n
se

K
ey
 I
n
d
ic
a
to
rs
 o
f 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce

C
o

n
si

d
er

 t
h

o
se

 a
re

as
 o

f 
th

e 
b

en
ch

m
ar

ki
n

g 
d

at
a 

in
 t

h
is

 
re

p
o

rt
 w

h
er

e 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 i
n

d
ic

at
o

rs
 d

if
fe

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
p

ee
r 

gr
o

u
p

 a
ve

ra
ge

.  
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 f

o
cu

s 
o

n
 t

h
e 

co
u
n

ci
l 
ta

x 
co

lle
ct

io
n

 r
at

e,
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
ve

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 li

n
e 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 t
ar

ge
ts

 
an

d
 t

h
e 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 p
ee

r 
gr

o
u
p

 a
ve

ra
ge

.

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 F
in
a
n
ci
a
l 

P
la
n
n
in
g

E
xt

en
d

 t
h

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 t

er
m

 f
in

an
ci

al
 p

la
n

 b
ey

o
n

d
 2

01
6,

 
to

 p
la

n
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

ly
 f

o
r 

lik
el

y 
an

d
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 s
ce

n
ar

io
s 

in
 

th
e 

m
ed

iu
m

 t
er

m
.

C
o

n
ti

n
u
e 

to
 e

xp
lo

re
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
fo

r 
ac

h
ie

vi
n

g 
th

e 
sa

vi
n

gs
 

re
q
u
ir

em
en

t 
fo

r 
20

14
/

15
, i

n
cl

u
d

in
g 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

d
el

iv
er

y 
m

o
d

el
s 

F
in
a
n
ci
a
l 
G
o
ve
rn
a
n
ce

R
ev

ie
w

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

n
g 

d
at

a 
p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 b

y 
th

e 
A

u
d

it
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 f
o

r 
u
n

ex
p

ec
te

d
 a

re
as

 o
f 

h
ig

h
 s

p
en

d
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

 

F
in
a
n
ci
a
l 
C
o
n
tr
o
l

E
n

su
re

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 k
n

o
w

le
d

ge
 a

n
d

 e
xp

er
ie

n
ce

 w
it

h
in

 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
is

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

to
 m

ee
t 

al
l 
st

at
u
to

ry
 a

n
d

 o
th

er
 

re
q
u
ir

em
en

ts
, p

ar
ti

cu
la

rl
y 

w
it

h
 r

eg
ar

d
 t

o
 a

ss
et

 
va

lu
at

io
n

s.
.

C
o

n
si

d
er

 t
h

e 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 n

ee
d

ed
 d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

o
ra

cl
e 

u
p

gr
ad

e 
in

 N
o

ve
m

b
er

 2
01

3.

E
x
ec

u
ti

v
e 

S
u
m

m
ar

y

7

Page 83



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

2
  
K

e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs

3
  
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g

4
  
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

5
  
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 -
K

e
y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 o

f 
fi

n
a
n

c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

1
  
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v

e
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

8

Page 84



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

W
e 

h
av

e 
u
se

d
 t

h
e 

A
u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
's

 n
ea

re
st

 n
ei

gh
b

o
u
rs

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

n
g 

gr
o

u
p

 
co

m
p

ri
si

n
g 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
au

th
o

ri
ti

es
:
 

B
re

n
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u
gh

 C
o

u
n

ci
l

C
ro

yd
o

n
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
gh

 C
o

u
n

ci
l

H
ar

in
ge

y 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
gh

 C
o

u
n

ci
l

H
o

u
n

sl
o

w
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
gh

 C
o

u
n

ci
l

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u
gh

 o
f 

B
ar

ki
n

g 
an

d
 D

ag
en

h
am

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u
gh

 o
f 

E
al

in
g

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u
gh

 o
f 

H
ac

kn
ey

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u
gh

 o
f 

L
am

b
et

h
L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
gh

 o
f 

L
ew

is
h

am
L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
gh

 o
f 

T
o

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u
gh

 o
f 

W
al

th
am

 F
o

re
st

M
er

to
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l

N
ew

h
am

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
o

ro
u
gh

 C
o

u
n

ci
l

R
o

ya
l 
B

o
ro

u
gh

 o
f 

G
re

en
w

ic
h

S
o

u
th

w
ar

k 
C

o
u
n

ci
l

W
an

d
sw

o
rt

h
 B

o
ro

u
gh

 C
o

u
n

ci
l

In
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

re
p

o
rt

 in
cl

u
d

es
 a

n
al

ys
is

 o
f 

ke
y 

in
d

ic
at

o
rs

 o
f 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

, b
en

ch
m

ar
ke

d
 w

h
er

e 
d

at
a 

is
 a

va
ila

b
le

. P
le

as
e 

re
fe

r 
to

 t
h

e 
ap

p
en

d
ix

 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

m
p

ar
at

iv
e 

d
at

a.
 T

h
es

e 
in

d
ic

at
o

rs
 in

cl
u
d

e:
•

W
o

rk
in

g 
ca

p
it

al
 r

at
io

•
L

o
n

g 
te

rm
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g 

to
 t

ax
 r

ev
en

u
e

•
L

o
n

g 
te

rm
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g 

to
 l
o

n
g 

te
rm

 a
ss

et
s

•
S
ic

kn
es

s 
ab

se
n

ce
 l
ev

el
s

•
O

u
t-

tu
rn

 a
ga

in
st

 b
u
d

ge
t

•
U

se
ab

le
 R

es
er

ve
s:

 G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

u
e 

E
xp

en
d

it
u
re

•
S
ch

o
o

ls
 R

es
er

ve
s 

-
B

al
an

ce
s 

to
 D

S
G

al
lo

ca
ti

o
n

s

B
en

ch
m

ar
ki

n
g 

is
 m

o
st

ly
 b

as
ed

 o
n

 y
o

u
r 

au
d

it
ed

 f
in

an
ci

al
 a

cc
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
se

 o
f 

o
th

er
 c

o
u
n

ci
ls

. T
h

es
e 

ar
e 

h
ig

h
 l
ev

el
 m

ea
su

re
s 

w
h

ic
h

 c
an

 b
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

o
n

e-
o

ff
 

ev
en

ts
 o

r 
te

ch
n

ic
al

 a
cc

o
u
n

ti
n

g 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
. A

s 
su

ch
 it

 is
 o

n
ly

 i
n

te
n

d
ed

 t
o

 g
iv

e 
a 

b
ro

ad
 in

d
ic

at
io

n
 o

f 
h

o
w

 y
o

u
 c

o
m

p
ar

e 
w

it
h

 o
th

er
 c

o
u
n

ci
ls

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

co
n

cl
u
si

o
n

s 
sh

o
u
ld

 b
e 

vi
ew

ed
 i
n

 t
h

at
 c

o
n

te
xt

.

K
ey

 I
n

d
ic

at
o

rs

9

Page 85



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

A
re
a
 o
f 
fo
cu
s

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
b
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
s

A
ss
es
sm

en
t

L
iq
u
id
it
y

•
T

h
e 

w
o

rk
in

g 
ca

p
it

al
 r

at
io

 i
n

d
ic

at
es

 i
f 

a 
co

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 e

n
o

u
gh

 c
u
rr

en
t 

as
se

ts
 o

r 
re

so
u
rc

es
 t

o
 c

o
ve

r 
it

s 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 l
ia

b
ili

ti
es

. T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 w
o

rk
in

g 
ca

p
it

al
 r

at
io

 w
as

 1
.5

 in
 2

00
7/

08
, r

ed
u
ce

d
 t

o
 l
es

s 
th

an
 1

 i
n

 2
00

8/
09

 a
n

d
 w

as
 1

.3
0 

in
 2

01
1-

12
. T

h
is

 is
 l
o

w
er

 
th

an
 m

o
st

 o
th

er
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
gh

s 
an

d
 i
s 

le
ss

 t
h

an
 t

h
e 

gr
o

u
p

 a
ve

ra
ge

 o
f 

1.
8.

 T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 t

h
e 

fi
ft

h
 lo

w
es

t 
ra

ti
o

 i
n

 t
h

e 
b

en
ch

m
ar

ke
d

 g
ro

u
p

.
•

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 N
N

D
R

 a
n

d
 c

o
u
n

ci
l 
ta

x 
co

lle
ct

io
n

 r
at

es
 im

p
ro

ve
d

 c
o

m
p

ar
ed

 w
it

h
 2

01
1/

12
 b

u
t 

w
er

e 
b

o
th

 l
es

s 
th

an
 t

ar
ge

t 
an

d
 

le
ss

 t
h

an
 t

h
e 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
ve

ra
ge

. N
N

D
R

 c
o

lle
ct

io
n

 r
at

e 
w

as
 9

7.
4 

p
er

 c
en

t 
ag

ai
n

st
 a

 t
ar

ge
t 

o
f 

98
.5

 p
er

 c
en

t.
 T

h
e 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
ve

ra
ge

 
w

as
 9

8.
2 

p
er

 c
en

t.
 

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
re

p
o

rt
ed

 a
 c

o
u
n

ci
l 
ta

x 
co

lle
ct

io
n

 r
at

e 
o

f 
94

.8
 p

er
 c

en
t.

 A
cc

o
rd

in
g 

to
 p

u
b

lis
h

ed
 C

L
G

 s
ta

ti
st

ic
s 

th
is

 w
as

 o
n

e 
o

f 
th

e 
lo

w
es

t 
co

lle
ct

io
n

 r
at

es
 in

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

p
ar

es
 w

it
h

 a
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

ve
ra

ge
 o

f 
96

.4
 p

er
 c

en
t.

 

�
A

m
b

e
r

B
o
rr
o
w
in
g

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 l
o

n
g 

te
rm

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g 
fe

ll 
si

gn
if

ic
an

tl
y 

fr
o

m
 2

01
0/

11
 (

£
30

3,
37

2k
) 

to
 2

01
1/

12
 (

£
15

7,
78

2k
),

 w
h

ic
h

 w
as

 d
u
e 

to
 t

h
e 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
re

d
ee

m
in

g 
£

13
6m

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 P
u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 
L

o
an

 B
o

ar
d

 (
P

W
L

B
) 

lo
an

s 
as

 p
ar

t 
o

f 
th

e 
n

ew
 H

o
u
si

n
g 

R
ev

en
u
e 

A
cc

o
u
n

t 
(H

R
A

) 
S
el

f 
F

in
an

ci
n

g 
re

gu
la

ti
o

n
s 

in
tr

o
d

u
ce

d
 i
n

 2
01

1/
12

. 
•

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 l
o

n
g 

te
rm

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g 
ra

ti
o

 (
as

 a
 s

h
ar

e 
o

f 
ta

x 
re

ve
n

u
e)

 a
ls

o
 f

el
l f

ro
m

 1
.8

3 
in

 2
00

9-
10

 t
o

 1
.1

7 
in

 2
01

1-
12

 a
 r

es
u
lt

 o
f 

th
e 

ab
o

lit
io

n
 o

f 
H

R
A

 f
in

an
ci

n
g 

an
d

 i
s 

in
 li

n
e 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

b
en

ch
m

ar
ke

d
 g

ro
u
p

 o
n

 a
ve

ra
ge

. T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 

th
e 

5t
h

lo
w

es
t 

ra
ti

o
 in

 t
h

e 
b

en
ch

m
ar

ke
d

 g
ro

u
p

. 
•

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 l
o

n
g 

te
rm

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g 
ra

ti
o

 (
as

 a
 s

h
ar

e 
o

f 
lo

n
g 

te
rm

 a
ss

et
s)

 a
ls

o
 f

el
l 
fr

o
m

 0
.2

8 
in

 2
01

0-
11

 t
o

 0
.2

0 
in

 2
01

1-
12

, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

ga
in

 f
o

llo
w

s 
th

e 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
b

en
ch

m
ar

ke
d

 g
ro

u
p

. T
h

is
 p

la
ce

s 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

to
p

 5
0%

 o
f 

th
e 

b
en

ch
m

ar
ke

d
 g

ro
u
p

.  
•

T
h

is
 r

ed
u
ct

io
n

 i
n

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g 
is

 in
 l
in

e 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 T
re

as
u
ry

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

S
tr

at
eg

y.
 T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
ta

ke
s 

a 
ca

u
ti

o
u
s 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
. T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
is

 c
u
rr

en
tl

y 
m

ai
n

ta
in

in
g 

an
 u

n
d

er
-b

o
rr

o
w

ed
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
, e

n
su

ri
n

g 
it

s 
ca

p
it

al
 f

in
an

ci
n

g 
re

q
u
ir

em
en

ts
 a

re
 n

o
t 

so
le

ly
 m

et
 f

ro
m

 d
eb

t,
 b

u
t 

ar
e 

p
ar

tl
y 

fu
n

d
ed

 b
y 

ca
sh

 a
s 

w
el

l. 

� G
re

e
n

K
ey

 I
n

d
ic

at
o

rs

10

Page 86



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

A
re
a
 o
f 
fo
cu
s

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
b
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
s

A
ss
es
sm

en
t

W
o
rk
fo
rc
e

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
lo

st
 7

.2
3 

d
ay

s 
p

er
 a

n
n

u
m

 p
er

 f
u
ll 

ti
m

e 
eq

u
iv

al
en

t 
to

 s
ic

kn
es

s 
in

 2
01

2/
13

, s
im

ila
r 

to
 t

h
e 

ra
te

 i
n

 2
01

1/
12

 (
7.

19
 

d
ay

s)
. T

h
is

 c
o

m
p

ar
es

 f
av

o
u
ra

b
ly

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t 
av

er
ag

e 
o

f 
8 

d
ay

s 
an

d
 t

h
e 

p
u
b

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
av

er
ag

e 
o

f 
7.

9 
d

ay
s.

 
•

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
em

p
lo

ye
d

 a
n

 a
ve

ra
ge

 o
f 

68
3 

ag
en

cy
 e

m
p

lo
ye

es
 i
n

 2
01

2/
13

 , 
so

m
e 

16
.7

 p
er

 c
en

t 
o

f 
th

e 
to

ta
l 
h

ea
d

co
u
n

t.
 

•
A

lt
h

o
u
gh

 t
h

e 
ag

en
cy

 h
ea

d
co

u
n

t 
re

d
u
ce

d
 i
n

 2
01

2/
13

, t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 s
p

en
d

 o
n

 a
ge

n
cy

 s
ta

ff
 a

ct
u
al

ly
 i

n
cr

ea
se

d
 f

ro
m

 £
13

.3
 m

ill
io

n
 

to
 £

14
.4

 m
ill

io
n

 in
 2

01
2/

13
. T

h
is

 w
as

 d
u
e 

to
 n

ew
 A

ge
n

cy
 w

o
rk

er
 r

eg
u
la

ti
o

n
s 

in
tr

o
d

u
ce

d
 in

 O
ct

o
b

er
 2

01
1.

 

� G
re

e
n

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

A
g
a
in
st
 B
u
d
g
et
s:
 

re
ve
n
u
e 
&
 

ca
p
it
a
l

•
A

s 
p

er
 t

h
e 

d
ra

ft
 o

u
tt

u
rn

, t
h

e 
20

12
-1

3 
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
 n

et
 r

ev
en

u
e 

b
u
d

ge
t 

w
as

 u
n

d
er

sp
en

t 
b

y 
£

3.
5 

m
ill

io
n

. T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l a

ch
ie

ve
d

 
97

%
 o

f 
th

e 
£

16
.6

m
 o

f 
sa

vi
n

gs
 t

h
at

 w
er

e 
p

la
n

n
ed

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ve

d
 a

t 
th

e 
st

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 
•

T
h

is
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 is

 c
o

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 b
o

th
 2

01
0/

11
 a

n
d

 2
01

1/
12

, i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
im

e 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
u
n

d
er

sp
en

t 
ag

ai
n

st
 i
ts

 G
en

er
al

 
F

u
n

d
 n

et
 r

ev
en

u
e 

b
u
d

ge
t,

  
an

d
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

 s
av

in
gs

 o
f 

£
53

 m
ill

io
n

 o
ve

r 
th

es
e 

tw
o

 y
ea

rs
. 

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

R
ev

en
u
e 

A
cc

o
u
n

t 
(H

R
A

) 
u
n

d
er

sp
en

t 
b

y 
£

1.
3 

m
ill

io
n

 a
ft

er
 e

xc
ep

ti
o

n
al

 i
te

m
s 

(a
s 

p
er

 t
h

e 
d

ra
ft

 2
01

2/
13

 
ac

co
u
n

ts
).

 T
h

e 
H

R
A

 b
u
d

ge
t 

w
as

 u
n

d
er

sp
en

t 
in

 t
h

e 
p

re
ce

d
in

g 
tw

o
 y

ea
rs

.  
•

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
al

so
 u

n
d

er
sp

en
t 

ag
ai

n
st

 i
ts

 2
01

2/
13

 c
ap

it
al

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

b
y 

£
20

.6
 m

ill
io

n
. T

h
e 

m
ai

n
 r

ea
so

n
 f

o
r 

th
is

 s
lip

p
ag

e 
is

 t
h

e 
si

gn
if

ic
an

t 
re

-p
h

as
in

g 
o

f 
se

ve
ra

l 
B

u
ild

in
g 

S
ch

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e 

F
u
tu

re
 (

B
SF

) 
p

ro
je

ct
s,

 f
o

llo
w

in
g 

a 
d

et
ai

le
d

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

co
n

tr
ac

t 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
.  

T
h

es
e 

co
st

s 
ar

e 
n

o
w

 p
la

n
n

ed
  

to
 b

e 
in

cu
rr

ed
 d

u
ri

n
g 

20
13

/
14

. 
•

R
ec

en
t 

as
se

t 
va

lu
at

io
n

s 
in

d
ic

at
e 

a 
d

ec
re

as
e 

in
 t

h
e 

va
lu

e 
o

f 
co

u
n

ci
l 
o

w
n

ed
 p

ro
p

er
ty

 a
ss

et
s 

o
ve

r 
th

e 
la

st
 t

h
re

e 
ye

ar
s.

 

� G
re

e
n

R
es
er
ve
 B
a
la
n
ce
s

•
F

o
r 

th
e 

fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 b

et
w

ee
n

 2
00

7-
08

 a
n

d
 2

01
1-

12
, t

h
e 

ra
ti

o
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 u
se

ab
le

 r
es

er
ve

s 
(a

s 
a 

p
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 o
f 

ex
p

en
d

it
u
re

) 
h

as
 i
n

cr
ea

se
d

, m
o

vi
n

g 
fr

o
m

 a
 r

at
io

 o
f 

0.
08

 in
 2

00
7/

08
 t

o
 0

.1
3 

in
 2

01
1-

12
. T

h
is

 in
d

ic
at

es
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 u
sa

b
le

 r
ev

en
u
e 

re
se

rv
es

 
h

av
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d
 i
n

 a
b

so
lu

te
 a

n
d

 r
el

at
iv

e 
te

rm
s.

 T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l w

as
 i
n

 t
h

e 
to

p
 t

h
ir

d
 o

f 
th

e 
co

m
p

ar
at

o
r 

gr
o

u
p

 in
 2

01
1-

12
. 

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 u
se

ab
le

 r
es

er
ve

s 
at

 t
h

e 
31

s
t
o

f 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

3 
w

er
e 

£
20

1 
m

ill
io

n
, o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 £

12
 m

ill
io

n
 r

ep
re

se
n

te
d

 t
h

e 
G

en
er

al
 

F
u
n

d
 b

al
an

ce
. 
T

h
is

 r
ep

re
se

n
te

d
 a

n
 o

ve
ra

ll 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

f 
15

%
 c

o
m

p
ar

ed
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
u
sa

b
le

 r
es

er
ve

s 
b

al
an

ce
 a

t 
th

e 
31

s
t
o

f 
M

ar
ch

 
20

12
 (

£
17

4.
8 

m
ill

io
n

).
 T

h
e 

G
en

er
al

 F
u
n

d
 b

al
an

ce
 i
n

cr
ea

se
d

 b
y 

£
20

0k
 d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
p

er
io

d
. T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
co

n
si

d
er

ed
 t

h
e 

ad
eq

u
ac

y 
o

f 
it

s 
re

se
rv

es
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

20
13

/
14

 b
u
d

ge
t 

se
tt

in
g.

  

� G
re

e
n

S
ch
o
o
ls
 B
a
la
n
ce
s

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 b

al
an

ce
s 

ra
ti

o
 (

th
e 

su
m

 o
f 

sc
h

o
o

ls
 b

al
an

ce
s 

as
 a

 p
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 D
ed

ic
at

ed
 S

ch
o

o
ls

 G
ra

n
t 

al
lo

ca
ti

o
n

) 
w

as
 0

.0
8 

in
 2

01
1/

12
. T

h
is

 r
at

io
 h

as
 f

lu
ct

u
at

ed
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

fi
ve

 y
ea

r 
p

er
io

d
.  

� G
re

e
n

K
ey

 I
n

d
ic

at
o

rs

11

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 o
f 
p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e

Page 87



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

2
  
K

e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs

3
  
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g

4
  
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

5
  
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 -
K

e
y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 o

f 
fi

n
a
n

c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

1
  
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v

e
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

12

Page 88



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

K
e

y
 c

h
a

ra
c

te
ri

s
ti

c
s

 o
f 

g
o

o
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g

In
 c

o
n

d
u
ct

in
g 

o
u
r 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 p

la
n

n
in

g 
w

e 
h

av
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

in
d

ic
at

o
rs

:

�
F

o
cu

s 
o

n
 a

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t 

o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 is

 e
vi

d
en

t 
th

ro
u
gh

 t
h

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 p
la

n
n

in
g 

p
ro

ce
ss

. T
h

e 
M

T
F

P
 f

o
cu

se
s 

re
so

u
rc

es
 o

n
p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
.

�
T

h
e 

M
T

F
P

 in
cl

u
d

es
 o

u
tc

o
m

e 
m

ea
su

re
s,

 s
ce

n
ar

io
 p

la
n

n
in

g,
 b

en
ch

m
ar

ki
n

g,
 r

es
o

u
rc

e 
p

la
n

n
in

g 
an

d
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

n
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

o
rk

in
g.

 T
ar

ge
ts

 h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 s
et

 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 
p

er
io

d
s 

in
 r

es
p

ec
t 

o
f 

re
se

rv
e 

b
al

an
ce

s,
 p

ru
d

en
ti

al
 in

d
ic

at
o

rs
 e

tc
.

�
A

n
n

u
al

 f
in

an
ci

al
 p

la
n

s 
fo

llo
w

 t
h

e 
lo

n
ge

r 
te

rm
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
tr

at
eg

y.

�
T

h
er

e 
is

 r
eg

u
la

r 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

M
T

F
P

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

as
su

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

m
ad

e 
w

it
h

in
 i
t.

 T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
re

sp
o

n
d

s 
to

 c
h

an
gi

n
g 

ci
rc

u
m

st
an

ce
s 

an
d

 m
an

ag
es

 i
ts

 f
in

an
ci

al
 r

is
ks

.

�
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 s
tr

es
s 

te
st

in
g 

o
n

 i
ts

 m
o

d
el

 u
si

n
g 

a 
ra

n
ge

 o
f 

ec
o

n
o

m
ic

 a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
in

cl
u
d

in
g 

C
S
R

.

�
T

h
e 

M
T

F
P

 is
 li

n
ke

d
 t

o
 a

n
d

 i
s 

co
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 o

th
er

 k
ey

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s,

 in
cl

u
d

in
g 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e.

�
K

P
Is

 c
an

 b
e 

d
er

iv
ed

 f
o

r 
fu

tu
re

 p
er

io
d

s 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 in

cl
u
d

ed
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

M
T

F
P

.

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 F

in
an

ci
al

 P
la

n
n

in
g

13

Page 89



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

A
re
a
 o
f 
fo
cu
s

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
b
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
s

A
ss
es
sm

en
t

F
o
cu
s 
o
f 
th
e 

M
T
F
P
 

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
se

t 
it

s 
20

13
/

14
 r

ev
en

u
e 

b
u
d

ge
t 

in
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
13

. T
h

e 
la

te
st

 M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 F

in
an

ci
al

 P
la

n
, k

n
o

w
n

 a
s 

th
e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 

S
u
rv

ey
, w

as
 a

gr
ee

d
 b

y 
th

e 
M

ay
o

r 
an

d
 C

ab
in

et
 i
n

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 2
01

2.
 T

h
is

 p
la

n
 c

o
ve

rs
 t

h
e 

p
er

io
d

 f
ro

m
 2

01
3/

14
 t

o
 2

01
6/

17
. 

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 v
ie

w
 i
s 

th
at

 t
h

e 
ec

o
n

o
m

ic
 o

u
tl

o
o

k 
b

ey
o

n
d

 2
01

6 
is

 t
o

o
 u

n
ce

rt
ai

n
 f

o
r 

d
et

ai
le

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g.
 C

o
n

se
q
u
en

tl
y 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

u
rv

ey
 d

o
es

 n
o

t 
se

t 
o

u
t 

d
et

ai
le

d
 p

ro
je

ct
io

n
s 

b
ey

o
n

d
 t

h
is

 p
er

io
d

. 
•

T
h

e 
F

in
an

ci
al

 S
u
rv

ey
 i
d

en
ti

fi
ed

 a
 b

es
t 

an
d

 w
o

rs
t 

ca
se

 s
ce

n
ar

io
 o

f 
th

e 
le

ve
l 
o

f 
sa

vi
n

gs
 t

h
at

 w
er

e 
go

in
g 

to
 b

e 
re

q
u
ir

ed
 d

u
ri

n
g 

20
13

/
14

 a
n

d
 2

01
4/

15
, a

lo
n

g 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
lik

el
y 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

. T
h

is
 c

o
n

fi
rm

ed
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
w

as
 l
ik

el
y 

to
 n

ee
d

 t
o

 f
in

d
 b

et
w

ee
n

 £
30

m
 

an
d

 £
55

m
 o

f 
sa

vi
n

gs
 o

ve
r 

th
es

e 
tw

o
 y

ea
rs

. O
n

 c
o

n
fi

rm
at

io
n

 o
f 

ce
n

tr
al

 G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
fu

n
d

in
g,

 t
h

e 
sa

vi
n

gs
 t

ar
ge

t 
w

as
 f

in
al

is
ed

 a
s 

£
53

.5
m

.  
S
o

m
e 

£
21

.3
m

  s
av

in
gs

 in
 2

01
3/

14
 a

n
d

  
th

e 
re

m
ai

n
in

g 
£

32
.2

m
 f

al
lin

g 
in

 2
01

4/
15

. 
•

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 id

en
ti

fi
ed

 t
h

e 
£

21
.3

 m
ill

io
n

 o
f 

sa
vi

n
gs

 f
o

r 
20

13
/

14
 a

n
d

 h
as

 b
u
ilt

 t
h

is
 in

to
 b

u
d

ge
t 

as
su

m
p

ti
o

n
s.

  
•

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 a

ls
o

 i
d

en
ti

fi
ed

 o
ve

r 
h

al
f 

th
e 

£
32

.3
 m

ill
io

n
 s

av
in

gs
 r

eq
u
ir

ed
 f

o
r 

20
14

/
15

. H
o

w
ev

er
 t

h
e 

sh
ee

r 
sc

al
e 

o
f 

th
is

 t
ar

ge
t

m
ea

n
s 

it
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

to
 c

o
n

si
d

er
 m

o
re

 r
ad

ic
al

  
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
th

an
 in

 t
h

e 
p

as
t 

fo
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
d

es
ig

n
, a

lt
er

n
at

iv
e 

d
el

iv
er

y 
m

o
d

el
s,

 
p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

o
r 

ce
ss

at
io

n
.

•
A

 r
ec

en
t 

h
o

u
si

n
g 

m
at

te
rs

 r
ep

o
rt

 id
en

ti
fi

ed
 a

 p
o

te
n

ti
al

 s
h

o
rt

fa
ll 

o
f 

£
85

 m
ill

io
n

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
n

ex
t 

te
n

 y
ea

rs
 b

et
w

ee
n

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

as
p

ir
at

io
n

 t
o

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
d

ec
en

t 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
o

u
si

n
g 

an
d

 t
h

e 
so

u
rc

es
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g 

av
ai

la
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
is

. 

�
A

m
b

e
r

A
d
eq
u
a
cy
 o
f 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 

a
ss
u
m
p
ti
o
n
s

•
W

h
en

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
w

as
 p

re
p

ar
in

g 
it

s 
M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 F
in

an
ci

al
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e 
p

er
io

d
 2

01
3/

14
 t

o
 2

01
6/

17
, a

 n
u
m

b
er

 o
f 

re
as

o
n

ab
le

 
as

su
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
w

er
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

at
 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
a 

ro
b

u
st

 e
st

im
at

e 
o

f 
th

e 
lik

el
y 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
 o

ve
r 

th
is

 p
er

io
d

. 
•

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ch

an
ge

s 
w

er
e 

m
ad

e 
to

 t
h

e 
le

ve
l 
o

f 
F

o
rm

u
la

 G
ra

n
t 

th
at

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
w

o
u
ld

 r
ec

ei
ve

 i
n

 2
01

3/
14

 a
n

d
 b

ey
o

n
d

, w
h

ic
h

 
m

ea
n

t 
th

at
 i
t 

w
as

 d
if

fi
cu

lt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
to

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
a 

fi
rm

 e
st

im
at

e 
o

f 
th

e 
le

ve
l 
o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g 

it
 w

o
u
ld

 r
ec

ei
ve

 i
n

 2
01

3/
14

. T
o

 
m

it
ig

at
e 

th
is

, t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 a
 h

ig
h

er
 a

n
d

 l
o

w
er

 v
al

u
e 

as
 t

o
 t

h
e 

lik
el

y 
am

o
u
n

t 
o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g 

to
 b

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
. T

h
e 

ac
tu

al
 

o
u
tt

u
rn

 w
as

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
ex

p
ec

te
d

 r
an

ge
, d

em
o

n
st

ra
ti

n
g 

th
at

 t
h

e 
as

su
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
w

er
e 

re
as

o
n

ab
le

. 
•

T
h

e 
W

el
fa

re
 r

ef
o

rm
 a

ct
 i
n

tr
o

d
u
ce

d
 a

 1
0%

 c
u
t 

in
 t

h
e 

le
ve

l 
o

f 
gr

an
t 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 t

o
 t

h
em

 t
o

 c
o

u
n

ci
ls

 f
o

r 
co

u
n

ci
l 
ta

x 
b

en
ef

it
. T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 f

ac
to

re
d

 t
h

es
e 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

s 
in

to
 i
ts

 b
u
d

ge
t 

p
ro

je
ct

io
n

s.
 

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 a

ls
o

 a
ss

u
m

ed
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
al

 i
n

cr
ea

se
 i
n

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 
ta

x 
o

f 
n

o
 m

o
re

 t
h

an
 2

.5
%

 a
 y

ea
r 

fr
o

m
 2

01
3/

14
 o

n
w

ar
d

s,
 a

n
 

in
fl

at
io

n
 le

ve
l 
o

f 
2.

5%
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

lif
e 

o
f 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

P
la

n
, a

n
d

 a
 1

%
 in

cr
ea

se
 i
n

 t
h

e 
em

p
lo

ye
e 

p
ay

 l
ev

el
s 

o
ve

r 
th

e 
lif

e 
o

f 
th

e 
p

la
n

. 
•

G
en

er
al

 b
u
d

ge
t 

p
re

ss
u
re

s 
o

f 
£

7.
5m

 h
av

e 
al

so
 b

ee
n

 i
n

cl
u
d

ed
 i
n

 e
ac

h
 o

f 
th

e 
ye

ar
s 

o
f 

th
e 

P
la

n
, t

o
 a

llo
w

 f
o

r 
th

e 
fu

n
d

in
g 

p
re

ss
u
re

s 
th

at
 a

re
 l
ik

el
y 

to
 n

ee
d

 t
o

 b
e 

co
n

si
d

er
ed

 in
 e

ac
h

 o
f 

th
e 

ye
ar

s 
o

f 
th

e 
P

la
n

. 

� G
re

e
n

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 F

in
an

ci
al

 P
la

n
n

in
g

14

Page 90



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

A
re
a
 o
f 
fo
cu
s

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
b
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
s

A
ss
es
sm

en
t

S
co
p
e 
o
f 
th
e 

M
T
F
P
 a
n
d
 l
in
k
s 

to
 a
n
n
u
a
l 

p
la
n
n
in
g

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 v
is

io
n

 t
o

 m
ak

e 
L

ew
is

h
am

 "
 t

h
e 

b
es

t 
p

la
ce

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 t
o

 l
iv

e,
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 l
ea

rn
" 

is
 s

et
 o

u
t 

in
 i
ts

 s
u
st

ai
n

ab
le

 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
st

ra
te

gy
 2

00
8-

20
20

. 
•

T
h

is
 v

is
io

n
 s

et
s 

th
e 

fr
am

ew
o

rk
 f

o
r 

th
e 

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

s
an

d
 f

o
r 

o
th

er
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
an

d
 p

o
lic

ie
s,

 in
cl

u
d

in
g 

th
e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 S

u
rv

ey
. 

•
A

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

o
u
r 

re
vi

ew
 w

e 
d

id
 n

o
t 

n
o

te
 a

n
y 

in
co

n
si

st
en

ci
es

 b
et

w
ee

n
 d

if
fe

re
n

t 
ke

y 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

d
o

cu
m

en
ts

. 
� G
re

e
n

R
ev
ie
w
 

p
ro
ce
ss
es
 a
n
d
 

re
sp
o
n
si
ve
n
es
s 

o
f 
th
e 
p
la
n

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
re

vi
ew

s 
it

s 
M

ed
iu

m
 T

er
m

 F
in

an
ci

al
 P

la
n

 a
n

n
u
al

ly
, u

su
al

ly
 i
n

 t
h

e 
S
ep

te
m

b
er

 p
re

ce
d

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e 
p

la
n

 
is

 g
o

in
g 

to
 s

ta
rt

. 
•

F
o

llo
w

in
g 

th
is

 r
ev

ie
w

 p
ro

ce
ss

, a
 r

ev
is

ed
 P

la
n

 i
s 

is
su

ed
 t

o
 c

o
ve

r 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

fo
u
r 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 y

ea
rs

.  
•

O
n

ce
 t

h
e 

re
vi

se
d

 P
la

n
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 a
gr

ee
d

 b
y 

M
ay

o
r 

an
d

 C
ab

in
et

, i
t 

is
 t

h
en

 c
o

n
si

d
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
P

u
b

lic
 A

cc
o

u
n

ts
 S

el
ec

t 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e,

 
w

h
o

 t
h

en
 u

se
 t

h
e 

fi
gu

re
s 

in
cl

u
d

ed
 i
n

 t
h

e 
p

la
n

 t
o

 a
d

vi
se

 t
h

e 
re

le
va

n
t 

S
el

ec
t 

C
o

m
m

it
te

es
 a

s 
to

 t
h

e 
le

ve
l 
o

f 
sa

vi
n

gs
 t

h
at

 n
ee

d
 t

o
 

b
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 b

y 
ea

ch
 o

f 
th

e 
d

ir
ec

to
ra

te
s.

 

� G
re

e
n

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 F

in
an

ci
al

 P
la

n
n

in
g

15

M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm

 F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y

Page 91



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

2
  
K

e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs

3
  
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g

4
  
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

5
  
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 -
K

e
y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 o

f 
fi

n
a
n

c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

1
  
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v

e
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

16

Page 92



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

K
e

y
 c

h
a

ra
c

te
ri

s
ti

c
s

 o
f 

e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c

e

In
 c

o
n

d
u
ct

in
g 

o
u
r 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 w
e 

h
av

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

in
d

ic
at

o
rs

:

U
n
d
er
st
a
n
d
in
g

•
T

h
er

e 
is

 a
 c

le
ar

 u
n

d
er

st
an

d
in

g 
o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 e
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
t 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
is

 o
p

er
at

in
g 

w
it

h
in

:

�
R

eg
u
la

r 
re

p
o

rt
in

g 
to

 M
em

b
er

s.
 R

ep
o

rt
s 

in
cl

u
d

e 
d

et
ai

l 
o

f 
ac

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

n
in

g 
an

d
 v

ar
ia

n
ce

 a
n

al
ys

is
 e

tc
.

�
A

ct
io

n
s 

h
av

e 
b

ee
n

 t
ak

en
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
ss

 k
ey

 r
is

k 
ar

ea
s.

�
O

ff
ic

er
s 

an
d

 m
an

ag
er

s 
u
n

d
er

st
an

d
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 i
m

p
lic

at
io

n
s 

o
f 

cu
rr

en
t 

an
d

 a
lt

er
n

at
iv

e 
p

o
lic

ie
s,

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 a
n

d
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s.

E
n
g
a
g
em

en
t

•
T

h
er

e 
is

 e
n

ga
ge

m
en

t 
w

it
h

 s
ta

ke
h

o
ld

er
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g 

b
u
d

ge
t 

co
n

su
lt

at
io

n
s.

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a
n
d
 r
ev
ie
w

•
T

h
er

e 
ar

e 
co

m
p

re
h

en
si

ve
 p

o
lic

ie
s 

an
d

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 f

o
r 

M
em

b
er

s,
 O

ff
ic

er
s 

an
d

  
b

u
d

ge
t 

h
o

ld
er

s 
w

h
ic

h
 c

le
ar

ly
 o

u
tl

in
e 

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

.

•
N

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 a
n

d
 e

xt
er

n
al

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
o

ve
rd

u
e 

fo
r 

im
p

le
m

en
ta

ti
o

n
.

•
C

o
m

m
it

te
es

 a
n

d
 C

ab
in

et
 r

eg
u
la

rl
y 

re
vi

ew
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

n
d

 i
t 

is
 s

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

le
ve

ls
 o

f 
sc

ru
ti

n
y.

•
T

h
er

e 
ar

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

re
co

ve
ry

 p
la

n
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 (
if

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
).

F
in

an
ci

al
 G

o
v
er

n
an

ce

17

Page 93



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

A
re
a
 o
f 
fo
cu
s

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
b
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
s

A
ss
es
sm

en
t

U
n
d
er
st
a
n
d
in
g
 

th
e 
F
in
a
n
ci
a
l 

E
n
vi
ro
n
m
en
t

•
T

h
e 

P
u
b

lic
 A

cc
o

u
n

ts
 s

el
ec

t 
co

m
m

it
te

e 
m

ee
ts

 a
p

p
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
ei

gh
t 

ti
m

es
 a

 y
ea

r.
 I

t 
re

ce
iv

es
 f

in
an

ce
 u

p
d

at
es

 a
t 

a 
h

ig
h

 le
ve

l 
sh

o
w

in
g 

b
u
d

ge
t 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l. 

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
 e

xp
la

n
at

io
n

s 
ar

e 
b

ri
ef

 b
u
t 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
an

d
 e

xp
la

in
 t

h
e 

ke
y 

va
ri

an
ce

s.
 

•
T

h
e 

M
ay

o
r 

an
d

 C
ab

in
et

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

el
y 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 a

gr
ee

in
g 

th
e 

m
ed

iu
m

 t
er

m
 f

in
an

ci
al

 p
la

n
 a

n
d

 a
n

n
u
al

 b
u
d

ge
t.

 
•

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 f

in
an

ci
al

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s,
 f

in
an

ci
al

 r
eg

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 a
 D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 S

ch
em

es
 o

f 
D

el
eg

at
io

n
. T

h
e 

d
o

cu
m

en
ts

 a
re

 
cu

rr
en

tl
y 

b
ei

n
g 

u
p

d
at

ed
.

•
T

h
es

e 
d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 c

o
ve

r 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 d

is
ti

n
gu

is
h

in
g 

ro
le

s 
an

d
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 a

t 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

an
d

 
o

p
er

at
io

n
al

 l
ev

el
s 

an
d

 f
u
rt

h
er

 s
p

ec
if

yi
n

g 
th

e 
am

o
u
n

ts
 o

ff
ic

er
s 

ar
e 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

au
th

o
ri

si
n

g.
  I

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

, t
h

e 
d

o
cu

m
en

ts
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

re
gu

la
ti

o
n

 i
n

 a
re

as
 o

f 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 b
u
d

ge
t 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g,

 s
ti

p
u
la

ti
n

g 
cl

ea
rl

y 
th

e 
p

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
th

at
 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e 

ad
o

p
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
d

h
er

ed
 t

o
. 

� G
re

e
n

E
x
ec
u
ti
ve
 a
n
d
 

M
em

b
er
 

E
n
g
a
g
em

en
t

•
T

h
er

e 
is

 a
 g

o
o

d
 le

ve
l 
o

f 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
b

y 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

in
 f

in
an

ci
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t.

 T
h

e 
M

ay
o

r 
an

d
 C

ab
in

et
 

ag
re

e 
b

o
th

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 F

in
an

ci
al

 P
la

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
an

n
u
al

 b
u
d

ge
t,

 s
u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 i
t 

b
ei

n
g 

ap
p

ro
ve

d
 b

y 
fu

ll 
C

o
u
n

ci
l.

•
T

h
e 

P
u
b

lic
 A

cc
o

u
n

ts
 S

el
ec

t 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
vi

ew
s 

th
e 

d
et

ai
le

d
 b

u
d

ge
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 o
n

 a
n

 b
i-

m
o

n
th

ly
 b

as
is

, a
n

d
 p

ro
vi

d
es

 r
o

b
u
st

 
ch

al
le

n
ge

 t
o

 t
h

e 
re

le
va

n
t 

d
ir

ec
to

ra
te

s 
w

h
er

e 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

is
su

es
 id

en
ti

fi
ed

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

b
u
d

ge
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 p
re

se
n

te
d

 a
t 

th
e 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e 
m

ee
ti

n
gs

. 
•

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 R
is

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

 a
re

 c
o

n
si

d
er

ed
 o

n
 a

 q
u
ar

te
rl

y 
b

as
is

 b
y 

th
e 

In
te

rn
al

 C
o

n
tr

o
l B

o
ar

d
, t

h
e 

m
ee

ti
n

gs
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

at
te

n
d

ed
 b

y 
m

em
b

er
s 

o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

te
am

. 

� G
re

e
n

F
in

an
ci

al
 G

o
v
er

n
an

ce

18

Page 94



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

U
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t

A
re
a
 o
f 
fo
cu
s

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
b
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
s

A
ss
es
sm

en
t

O
ve
rv
ie
w
 f
o
r 

co
n
tr
o
ls
 o
ve
r 
k
ey
 

co
st
 c
a
te
g
o
ri
es

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

ar
e 

m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

fo
u
r 

d
ir

ec
to

ra
te

s,
 e

ac
h

 l
ed

 b
y 

an
 E

xe
cu

ti
ve

 D
ir

ec
to

r.
 T

h
e 

D
ir

ec
to

rs
 a

re
 a

cc
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 

fo
r 

th
e 

b
u
d

ge
ta

ry
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
s 

an
d

 t
h

e 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 m
an

ag
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ri

sk
s.

 
•

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

s 
is

 s
et

 o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e 

b
u
d

ge
t 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

re
p

o
rt

s.
 

•
B

en
ch

m
ar

ki
n

g 
d

at
a 

p
ro

d
u
ce

d
 b

y 
th

e 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 s

h
o

w
s 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
sp

en
d

s 
m

ar
gi

n
al

ly
 m

o
re

 p
er

 h
ea

d
 t

h
an

 t
h

e 
p

ee
r 

gr
o

u
p

 a
ve

ra
ge

. A
d

u
lt

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e 
is

 a
n

 a
re

a 
w

h
er

e 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 s
p

en
d

 p
er

 h
ea

d
 i
s 

ab
o

ve
 t

h
e 

gr
o

u
p

 a
ve

ra
ge

. C
o

u
n

ci
l 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ar
e 

aw
ar

e 
o

f 
th

e 
h

ig
h

er
 s

p
en

d
 in

 t
h

is
 a

re
a,

 w
h

ic
h

 h
as

 r
es

u
lt

ed
 f

ro
m

 p
o

lic
y 

d
ec

is
io

n
s.

� G
re

e
n

B
u
d
g
et
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
: 

re
ve
n
u
e 
a
n
d
 

ca
p
it
a
l

•
B

u
d

ge
t 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
ar

e 
p

re
se

n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

P
u
b

lic
 A

cc
o

u
n

ts
 S

el
ec

t 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

an
d

 M
ay

o
r 

an
d

 C
ab

in
et

. T
h

ey
 a

re
 

w
ri

tt
en

 a
t 

an
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
le

ve
l 
fo

r 
th

e 
fo

ru
m

.  
•

T
h

es
e 

re
p

o
rt

s 
st

ar
t 

w
it

h
 a

 h
ig

h
 le

ve
l 
su

m
m

ar
y 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

th
e 

h
ea

d
lin

e 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

re
as

 s
u
ch

 a
s 

th
e 

sp
en

d
 a

ga
in

st
 t

h
e 

G
en

er
al

 F
u
n

d
 n

et
 r

ev
en

u
e 

b
u
d

ge
t,

 t
h

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
le

ve
l 
o

f 
sa

vi
n

gs
 t

h
at

 a
re

 p
la

n
n

ed
 t

o
 b

e 
ac

h
ie

ve
d

, 
al

o
n

g 
w

it
h

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 o

n
 

co
lle

ct
io

n
 r

at
es

 a
s 

w
el

l.
•

F
o

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

su
m

m
ar

y,
 m

o
re

 d
et

ai
le

d
 o

ve
rv

ie
w

s 
ar

e 
p

ro
vi

d
ed

, f
o

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
d

et
ai

le
d

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 d
at

a 
fo

r 
ea

ch
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 f
o

u
r 

m
ai

n
 d

ir
ec

to
ra

te
s.

 
•

T
h

e 
d

at
a 

fo
r 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 d
ir

ec
to

ra
te

s 
sh

o
w

s 
th

e 
ye

ar
 t

o
 d

at
e 

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 

ea
ch

 o
f 

th
e 

va
ri

o
u
s 

d
iv

is
io

n
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
d

ir
ec

to
ra

te
s,

 w
h

ic
h

 a
llo

w
s 

b
o

th
 c

o
m

m
it

te
es

 t
o

 c
le

ar
ly

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

if
 a

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

o
r 

ar
ea

 w
it

h
in

 a
 d

ir
ec

to
ra

te
 i
s 

p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

w
el

l 
o

r 
b

ad
ly

, a
n

d
 t

h
e 

im
p

ac
t 

th
is

 is
 h

av
in

g 
o

n
 t

h
e 

d
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 a
s 

a 
w

h
o

le
. 

� G
re

e
n

A
d
eq
u
a
cy
 o
f 

o
th
er
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e/

C
a
b
in
et
 

R
ep
o
rt
in
g

•
R

ep
o

rt
s 

to
 t

h
e 

P
u
b

lic
 A

cc
o

u
n

ts
 S

el
ec

t 
C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

co
n

ta
in

 a
 s

u
it

e 
o

f 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 f

in
an

ci
al

 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
le

m
en

t 
th

e 
b

u
d

ge
t 

re
p

o
rt

s.
 T

h
is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 in
cl

u
d

es
.

-
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
ta

x 
an

d
 N

N
D

R
 c

o
lle

ct
io

n
 r

at
es

 a
n

d
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
co

lle
ct

io
n

 f
u
n

d
-

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

R
ev

en
u
e 

A
cc

o
u
n

t
-

T
re

as
u
ry

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
-

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 t
h

e 
ca

p
it

al
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e
-

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

p
en

si
o

n
 f

u
n

d
•

T
h

e 
re

p
o

rt
 is

 a
t 

a 
h

ig
h

 le
ve

l 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
fo

ru
m

 it
 i
s 

b
ei

n
g 

p
re

se
n

te
d

 t
o

. I
t 

in
cl

u
d

es
 b

ri
ef

 n
ar

ra
ti

ve
 

ex
p

la
n

at
io

n
s 

o
f 

ke
y 

m
es

sa
ge

s.
 

� G
re

e
n

F
in

an
ci

al
 G

o
v
er

n
an

ce

19

Page 95



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

2
  
K

e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 -
K

e
y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 o

f 
fi

n
a
n

c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

1
  
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v

e
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

3
  
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g

4
  
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

5
  
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l

20

Page 96



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

K
e

y
 c

h
a

ra
c

te
ri

s
ti

c
s

 o
f 

e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c

o
n

tr
o

l

In
 c

o
n

d
u
ct

in
g 

o
u
r 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l w

e 
h

av
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

in
d

ic
at

o
rs

:

B
u
d
g
et
 s
et
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 b
u
d
g
et
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

•
B

u
d

ge
ts

 a
re

 r
o

b
u
st

 a
n

d
 p

re
p

ar
ed

 in
 a

 t
im

el
y 

fa
sh

io
n

.

•
B

u
d

ge
ts

 a
re

 m
o

n
it

o
re

d
 a

t 
an

 o
ff

ic
er

, m
em

b
er

 a
n

d
 C

ab
in

et
 l
ev

el
 a

n
d

 o
ff

ic
er

s 
ar

e 
h

el
d

 a
cc

o
u
n

ta
b

le
 f

o
r 

b
u
d

ge
ta

ry
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
.

•
F

in
an

ci
al

 f
o

re
ca

st
in

g 
is

 w
el

l-
d

ev
el

o
p

ed
 a

n
d

 f
o

re
ca

st
s 

ar
e 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 r
eg

u
la

r 
re

vi
ew

.

S
a
vi
n
g
s 
P
la
n
s

•
P

ro
ce

ss
es

 f
o

r 
id

en
ti

fy
in

g,
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
an

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g 
sa

vi
n

gs
 p

la
n

 s
ch

em
es

 a
re

 r
o

b
u
st

, w
el

l 
th

o
u
gh

t 
th

ro
u
gh

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

.

F
in
a
n
ci
a
l 
S
ys
te
m
s

•
K

ey
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s 
h

av
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 s
at

is
fa

ct
o

ry
 r

ep
o

rt
s 

fr
o

m
 in

te
rn

al
 a

n
d

 e
xt

er
n

al
 a

u
d

it
.

•
F

in
an

ci
al

 s
ys

te
m

s 
ar

e 
ad

eq
u
at

e 
fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 n
ee

d
s.

F
in
a
n
ce
 D
ep
a
rt
m
en
t

•
T

h
e 

ca
p

ac
it

y 
an

d
 c

ap
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e 

F
in

an
ce

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

is
 f

it
 f

o
r 

p
u
rp

o
se

.

In
te
rn
a
l 
C
o
n
tr
o
l

•
T

h
er

e 
is

 a
n

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 i
n

te
rn

al
 a

u
d

it
 w

h
ic

h
 h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

p
er

 p
ro

fi
le

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
o

rg
an

is
at

io
n

. A
gr

ee
d

 I
n

te
rn

al
 A

u
d

it
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

at
io

n
s

ar
e 

ro
u
ti

n
el

y 
im

p
le

m
en

te
d

 i
n

 a
 

ti
m

el
y 

m
an

n
er

.

•
T

h
er

e 
is

 a
 a

n
 a

ss
u
ra

n
ce

 f
ra

m
ew

o
rk

 in
 p

la
ce

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

u
se

d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

ly
 b

y 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l a

n
d

 b
u
si

n
es

s 
ri

sk
s 

ar
e 

m
an

ag
ed

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

.

F
in

an
ci

al
 C

o
n

tr
o

l

21

Page 97



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

A
re
a
 o
f 
fo
cu
s

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
b
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
s

A
ss
es
sm

en
t

B
u
d
g
et
 s
et
ti
n
g
 

a
n
d
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 -

re
ve
n
u
e 
a
n
d
 

ca
p
it
a
l

•
T

h
er

e 
is

 a
 r

o
b

u
st

 p
ro

ce
ss

 in
 p

la
ce

 t
h

ro
u
gh

o
u
t 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

at
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 t

h
e 

b
u
d

ge
t 

is
 a

d
eq

u
at

el
y 

m
o

n
it

o
re

d
 d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

, s
o

 a
n

y 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 i
ss

u
es

 o
r 

u
n

d
er

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 c
an

 b
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
, a

n
d

 p
la

n
s 

in
tr

o
d

u
ce

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
es

e 
d

o
 n

o
t 

im
p

ac
t 

o
n

 t
h

e 
o

ve
ra

ll 
ac

h
ie

ve
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

b
u
d

ge
t 

an
d

 s
av

in
gs

 p
la

n
s 

at
 t

h
e 

en
d

 o
f 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 
•

T
h

is
 p

ro
ce

ss
 is

 la
rg

el
y 

o
ve

rs
ee

n
 b

y 
th

e 
M

ay
o

r 
an

d
 C

ab
in

et
, w

h
o

 r
ec

ei
ve

 s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 t
o

 u
n

d
er

ta
ke

 t
h

e 
le

ve
l 
o

f 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g 
th

at
 i
s 

re
q
u
ir

ed
 o

f 
th

em
. T

h
ey

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
 h

ig
h

-l
ev

el
 s

u
m

m
ar

y 
o

f 
th

e 
o

ve
ra

ll 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l, 

w
h

ic
h

 a
ls

o
 

d
et

ai
ls

 t
h

e 
le

ve
l 
o

f 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 t

h
e 

ke
y 

ta
rg

et
s 

th
ey

 h
av

e 
in

 p
la

ce
.

•
M

o
re

 d
et

ai
le

d
 i
n

fo
rm

at
io

n
 is

 t
h

en
 p

ro
vi

d
ed

 f
o

r 
ea

ch
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 f
o

u
r 

m
ai

n
 d

ir
ec

to
ra

te
s,

 a
llo

w
in

g 
M

ay
o

r 
an

d
 C

ab
in

et
 t

o
 

u
n

d
er

st
an

d
 w

h
y 

a 
d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
m

ay
 b

e 
u
n

d
er

p
er

fo
rm

in
g,

 a
n

d
 w

h
at

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 d
ea

l 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 
u
n

d
er

p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. 
•

A
re

as
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

ca
p

it
al

 e
xp

en
d

it
u
re

, s
p

en
d

 a
ga

in
st

 t
h

e 
D

ed
ic

at
ed

 S
ch

o
o

ls
 G

ra
n

t 
(D

S
G

) 
an

d
 C

o
u
n

ci
l 
T

ax
 a

n
d

 B
u
si

n
es

s 
R

at
es

 
co

lle
ct

io
n

 r
at

es
 a

re
 a

ls
o

 m
o

n
it

o
re

d
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 a
ll 

as
p

ec
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 f
in

an
ci

al
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

re
 r

o
u
ti

n
el

y 
m

o
n

it
o

re
d

.
•

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 c

o
n

si
st

en
tl

y 
m

an
ag

ed
 t

o
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

n
 u

n
d

er
sp

en
d

 a
ga

in
st

 it
s 

G
en

er
al

 F
u
n

d
 n

et
 r

ev
en

u
e 

b
u
d

ge
t,

 w
h

ic
h

 i
n

d
ic

at
es

 
th

at
 t

h
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

es
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 i
n

 p
la

ce
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

 i
n

 m
an

ag
in

g 
th

e 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

su
ri

n
g 

th
at

 a
n

y 
is

su
es

 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 d
u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 a
re

 i
d

en
ti

fi
ed

 a
n

d
 r

es
o

lv
ed

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 y

ea
r 

en
d

. 

� G
re

e
n

F
in

an
ci

al
 C

o
n

tr
o

l

22

Page 98



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

A
re
a
 o
f 
fo
cu
s

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
b
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
s

A
ss
es
sm

en
t

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

a
g
a
in
st
 S
a
vi
n
g
s 

P
la
n
s

•
T

h
e 

d
ra

ft
 2

01
2-

13
 o

u
tt

u
rn

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 F

u
n

d
 n

et
 r

ev
en

u
e 

b
u
d

ge
t 

sh
o

w
s 

an
 o

ve
ra

ll 
u
n

d
er

sp
en

d
 o

f 
£

3.
5m

ill
io

n
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

th
e 

th
ir

d
 y

ea
r 

in
 a

 r
o

w
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

 a
 y

ea
r 

en
d

 u
n

d
er

sp
en

d
 a

ga
in

st
 it

s 
re

ve
n

u
e 

b
u
d

ge
t.

 
•

A
ls

o
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e 
o

u
tt

u
rn

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

, t
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 m

an
ag

ed
 t

o
 a

ch
ie

ve
 9

7%
 o

f 
th

e 
£

16
.6

m
 o

f 
sa

vi
n

gs
 t

h
at

 w
er

e 
ag

re
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

st
ar

t 
o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r.
  

•
A

 r
o

b
u
st

 p
ro

ce
ss

 in
 p

la
ce

 f
o

r 
id

en
ti

fy
in

g 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 s

av
in

gs
 s

ch
em

es
. S

av
in

gs
 a

re
 i
d

en
ti

fi
ed

 a
s 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
th

e 
an

n
u
al

 p
ro

ce
ss

 o
f 

u
p

d
at

in
g 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 F
in

an
ci

al
 S

u
rv

ey
.  

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

s 
ar

e 
ta

sk
ed

 w
it

h
 c

re
at

in
g 

ro
b

u
st

 p
la

n
s 

an
d

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
h

e 
sa

vi
n

gs
re

q
u
ir

ed
. 

•
T

h
es

e 
p

la
n

s 
ar

e 
th

en
 c

o
n

si
d

er
ed

 b
y 

S
u
b

-C
o

m
m

it
te

es
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
ey

 a
re

 r
o

b
u
st

 b
ef

o
re

 b
ei

n
g 

fo
rw

ar
d

ed
 t

o
 M

ay
o

r 
an

d
 C

ab
in

et
 

an
d

 f
u
ll 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
fo

r 
co

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

va
l. 

� G
re

e
n

F
in

an
ci

al
 C

o
n

tr
o

l

23

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

Page 99



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

A
re
a
 o
f 
fo
cu
s

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
b
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
s

A
ss
es
sm

en
t

K
ey
 F
in
a
n
ci
a
l 

A
cc
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 

S
ys
te
m
s

•
T

h
er

e 
ar

e 
w

el
l 
es

ta
b

lis
h

ed
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d

 p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 p

ro
d

u
ce

 r
el

ia
b

le
 f

in
an

ci
al

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g 

an
d

 f
o

re
ca

st
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
, w

h
ic

h
 i
s 

u
se

d
 a

lo
n

gs
id

e 
re

la
te

d
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 d

ec
is

io
n

s.
 

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 e
n

h
an

ci
n

g 
it

s 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 a
ll 

in
vo

ic
es

 a
re

 m
at

ch
ed

 b
y 

a 
va

lid
 p

u
rc

h
as

e 
o

rd
er

. T
h

er
e 

ar
e 

st
ill

 
in

st
an

ce
s 

w
h

er
e 

p
u
rc

h
as

e 
o

rd
er

s 
ar

e 
ra

is
ed

 r
et

ro
sp

ec
ti

ve
ly

 i
n

 O
ra

cl
e 

af
te

r 
th

e 
in

vo
ic

e 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 r
ec

ei
ve

d
 b

y 
th

e 
re

le
va

n
t 

d
ep

ar
tm

en
t.

 T
h

is
 is

su
e 

is
 b

ei
n

g 
m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 c
lo

se
ly

 b
y 

th
e 

S
h

ar
ed

 S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

. 
•

R
S
M

 T
en

o
n

 p
ro

vi
d

es
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 i
n

te
rn

al
 a

u
d

it
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 c
ar

ri
es

 o
u
t 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
o

f 
re

vi
ew

s 
o

f 
ke

y 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 
sy

st
em

s.
 N

o
 f

u
n

d
am

en
ta

l 
co

n
ce

rn
s 

w
er

e 
ra

is
ed

 b
y 

in
te

rn
al

 a
u
d

it
 i
n

 2
01

2/
13

.
•

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
is

 p
la

n
n

in
g 

to
 u

p
gr

ad
e 

it
s 

o
ra

cl
e 

le
d

ge
r 

sy
st

em
 i
n

 N
o

ve
m

b
er

 2
01

3,
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
it

h
 f

iv
e 

o
th

er
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 

B
o

ro
u
gh

s.
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
w

ill
 n

ee
d

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

at
 p

ro
p

er
 c

o
n

tr
o

ls
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
e 

in
te

gr
it

y 
o

f 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

 
d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

m
ig

ra
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e 
n

ew
 s

ys
te

m
 a

n
d

 b
ey

o
n

d
.  

 

�
A

m
b

e
r

F
in

an
ci

al
 C

o
n

tr
o

l

24

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts

Page 100



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s

A
re
a
 o
f 
fo
cu
s

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
b
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
s

A
ss
es
sm

en
t

F
in
a
n
ce
 

D
ep
a
rt
m
en
t 

R
es
o
u
rc
in
g

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

as
 a

n
 e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
d

 a
n

d
 k

n
o

w
le

d
ge

ab
le

 s
en

io
r 

fi
n

an
ce

 t
ea

m
 i
n

 p
la

ce
, w

h
ic

h
 h

as
 c

o
n

si
d

er
ab

le
 e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
ch

al
le

n
ge

s 
th

at
 t

h
e 

B
o

ro
u
gh

 is
 f

ac
in

g.
 T

h
er

e 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 l
it

tl
e 

tu
rn

o
ve

r 
at

 a
 s

en
io

r 
le

ve
l. 

•
T

u
rn

o
ve

r 
at

 o
th

er
 le

ve
ls

 h
as

 c
au

se
d

 s
o

m
e 

ca
p

ac
it

y 
is

su
es

. F
o

llo
w

in
g 

re
ce

n
t 

in
te

rn
al

 r
eo

rg
an

is
at

io
n

s 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
w

as
 l
ef

t 
w

it
h

o
u
t 

an
y 

in
-h

o
u
se

 v
al

u
at

io
n

s 
ex

p
er

ti
se

, p
u
tt

in
g 

it
 a

t 
ri

sk
 o

f 
b

ei
n

g 
u
n

ab
le

 t
o

 p
ro

d
u
ce

 c
o

d
e-

co
m

p
lia

n
t 

st
at

u
to

ry
 a

cc
o

u
n

ts
. T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
h

ad
 t

o
 r

ec
ru

it
 a

ge
n

cy
 s

ta
ff

 a
t 

a 
ve

ry
 l
at

e 
st

ag
e 

in
 t

h
e 

ye
ar

 i
n

 o
rd

er
 t

o
 m

ee
t 

th
is

 r
eq

u
ir

em
en

t.
 

•
R

eo
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s 

al
so

 l
ef

t 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
sh

o
rt

 o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 e

xp
er

ie
n

ce
 a

n
d

 k
n

o
w

le
d

ge
 in

 t
h

e 
ar

ea
 o

f 
ca

p
it

al
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g.
 W

e 
h

av
e 

n
o

te
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 in

 t
h

e 
d

ra
ft

 a
cc

o
u
n

ts
 a

s 
a 

co
n

se
q
u
en

ce
, s

o
m

e 
o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

er
e 

m
at

er
ia

l. 
•

T
h

es
e 

ex
am

p
le

s 
d

em
o

n
st

ra
te

 t
h

e 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 r

is
ks

 s
o

m
et

im
es

 a
ss

o
ci

at
ed

 w
it

h
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 s

av
in

gs
, w

h
ic

h
 c

an
 l
ea

d
 t

o
 f

al
se

 
ec

o
n

o
m

ie
s 

o
r 

le
av

e 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
u
n

ab
le

 t
o

 m
ee

t 
ce

rt
ai

n
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 o
b

lig
at

io
n

s.
   

 

�
A

m
b

e
r

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
u
d
it
 

a
rr
a
n
g
em

en
ts

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 i
n

te
rn

al
 a

u
d

it
 f

u
n

ct
io

n
 is

 o
u
ts

o
u
rc

ed
 t

o
 R

SM
 T

en
o

n
, w

h
o

 p
er

fo
rm

 a
ll 

o
f 

th
e 

d
et

ai
le

d
 w

o
rk

 t
h

at
 i
s 

re
q
u
es

te
d

 b
y 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l. 

T
h

is
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 i
n

 p
la

ce
 s

in
ce

 2
00

8,
 a

n
d

 i
s 

o
ve

rs
ee

n
 b

y 
th

e 
In

te
ri

m
 H

ea
d

 o
f 

A
u
d

it
 a

n
d

 R
is

k,
 w

h
o

 i
s 

em
p

lo
ye

d
 b

y 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l. 

•
T

h
e 

In
te

ri
m

 H
ea

d
 o

f 
A

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 R
is

k 
h

as
 c

er
ta

in
 o

p
er

at
io

n
al

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
 f

o
r 

ri
sk

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d

 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

, a
s 

w
el

l 
as

 h
is

 r
o

le
 o

f 
o

ve
rs

ee
in

g 
in

te
rn

al
 a

u
d

it
. T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
is

 a
w

ar
e 

o
f 

th
e 

p
o

te
n

ti
al

 c
o

n
fl

ic
t 

an
d

 e
le

ct
s 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
th

is
 r

is
k.

 O
th

er
 c

o
u
n

ci
ls

 c
o

n
si

d
er

 it
 b

es
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 
to

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
co

m
p

le
te

ly
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
.  

•
A

 d
et

ai
le

d
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
 i
s 

p
re

p
ar

ed
 b

y 
in

te
rn

al
 a

u
d

it
 a

t 
th

e 
st

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

ye
ar

, t
ak

in
g 

in
to

 a
cc

o
u
n

t 
an

y 
sp

ec
if

ic
 a

re
as

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

w
o

u
ld

 l
ik

e 
to

 b
e 

co
n

si
d

er
ed

. P
ro

gr
es

s 
re

p
o

rt
s 

ag
ai

n
st

 t
h

e 
p

la
n

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 t

o
 t

h
e 

q
u
ar

te
rl

y 
A

u
d

it
 P

an
el

m
ee

ti
n

gs
 b

y 
th

e 
In

te
ri

m
 H

ea
d

 o
f 

A
u
d

it
 a

n
d

 R
is

k.
 

•
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
m

o
n

it
o

rs
 c

lo
se

ly
 t

h
e 

ti
m

el
in

es
s 

o
f 

 I
n

te
rn

al
 A

u
d

it
 r

ep
o

rt
in

g 
an

d
 t

h
e 

ti
m

el
in

es
s 

o
f 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
sp

o
n

se
s 

to
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
, w

h
ic

h
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 a

n
 i
ss

u
e 

h
is

to
ri

ca
lly

.

�
A

m
b

e
r

F
in

an
ci

al
 C

o
n

tr
o

l

25

Page 101



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

In
te
rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 e
x
te
rn
a
l 
a
s
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s

A
re
a
 o
f 
fo
cu
s

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 o
b
se
rv
a
ti
o
n
s

A
ss
es
sm

en
t

A
ss
u
ra
n
ce
 

fr
a
m
ew

o
rk
/
ri
sk
 

m
a
n
a
g
em

en
t

•
T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
P

ro
ce

ss
 is

 o
ve

rs
ee

n
 b

y 
th

e 
In

te
rn

al
 C

o
n

tr
o

l B
o

ar
d

.  
•

E
ac

h
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l's

 f
o

u
r 

m
ai

n
 d

ir
ec

to
ra

te
s 

h
av

e 
an

 i
n

d
iv

id
u
al

 r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
, w

h
ic

h
 i
d

en
ti

fi
es

 t
h

e 
m

ai
n

 r
is

ks
 t

h
at

 t
h

es
e 

d
ir

ec
to

ra
te

s 
h

av
e 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 t

o
 t

h
em

 a
ch

ie
vi

n
g 

th
ei

r 
go

al
s.

 T
h

es
e 

re
gi

st
er

s 
ar

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 q

u
ar

te
rl

y,
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
at

ed
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
ey

 
re

m
ai

n
 u

p
 t

o
 d

at
e.

 
•

A
ll 

o
f 

th
e 

ri
sk

s 
in

cl
u
d

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

d
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 r
is

k 
re

gi
st

er
s 

ar
e 

R
A

G
 r

at
ed

, a
n

d
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 t

h
es

e 
ra

ti
n

gs
 is

 m
o

n
it

o
re

d
d

u
ri

n
g 

th
e 

q
u
ar

te
rl

y 
m

ee
ti

n
gs

. W
h

er
e 

is
su

es
 a

re
 i
d

en
ti

fi
ed

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

le
ve

l 
o

f 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 a

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

ri
sk

, t
h

en
 

p
ro

ce
d

u
re

s 
ar

e 
p

u
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e 

le
ve

l 
o

f 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 t

h
o

se
 p

ar
ti

cu
la

r 
in

d
ic

at
o

rs
. 

•
F

u
rt

h
er

 r
el

ev
an

t 
d

et
ai

l 
is

 i
n

cl
u
d

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

R
is

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

, i
n

cl
u
d

in
g 

th
e 

p
o

te
n

ti
al

 w
o

rs
t 

im
p

ac
t 

o
f 

th
e 

ri
sk

, t
h

e 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

d
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 c
u
rr

en
tl

y 
h

as
 in

 p
la

ce
 t

o
 m

it
ig

at
e 

th
e 

ri
sk

 t
o

 a
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

le
ve

l, 
an

d
 a

n
y 

fu
rt

h
er

 w
o

rk
 t

h
at

 i
s 

go
in

g 
to

 b
e 

p
er

fo
rm

ed
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
er

 r
ed

u
ce

 t
h

e 
le

ve
l 
o

f 
ri

sk
 p

re
se

n
t.

 
•

T
h

e 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
al

so
 o

p
er

at
es

 a
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 R

is
k 

R
eg

is
te

r,
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n

si
d

er
s 

th
o

se
 a

re
as

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 a
 r

is
k 

to
 t

h
e 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

o
f 

th
e 

w
h

o
le

 C
o

u
n

ci
l. 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 t
h

es
e 

ri
sk

s 
is

 a
ls

o
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 o
n

 a
 q

u
ar

te
rl

y 
b

as
is

, a
n

d
 r

ep
o

rt
ed

 t
o

 t
h

e 
A

u
d

it
 P

an
el

an
d

 t
h

e 
fu

ll 
C

o
u
n

ci
l 
o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
al

 b
as

is
 a

s 
p

ar
t 

o
f 

th
e 

A
n

n
u
al

 G
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 S
ta

te
m

en
t.

 

� G
re

e
n

F
in

an
ci

al
 C

o
n

tr
o

l

26

Page 102



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

2
  
K

e
y
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs

3
  
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
P

la
n

n
in

g

4
  
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
G

o
v

e
rn

a
n

c
e

5
  
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
C

o
n

tr
o

l

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 -
K

e
y
 i

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 o

f 
fi

n
a
n

c
ia

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

1
  
E

x
e
c
u

ti
v

e
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

27

Page 103



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

W
o
rk
in
g
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
-
B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
e
d
 

D
e
fi
n
it
io
n

T
h

e 
w

o
rk

in
g 

ca
p

it
al

 r
at

io
 in

d
ic

at
es

 if
 a

 c
o

u
n

ci
l h

as
 e

n
o

u
gh

 c
u

rr
en

t 
as

se
ts

, o
r 

re
so

u
rc

es
, t

o
 c

o
ve

r 
it

s 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 li
ab

ili
ti

es
 -

i.e
. t

h
o

se
 li

ab
ili

ti
es

 t
o

 b
e 

m
et

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
n

ex
t 

tw
el

ve
 m

o
n

th
 p

er
io

d
. A

 r
at

io
 o

f 
le

ss
 t

h
an

 o
n

e 
-

i.e
. c

u
rr

en
t 

lia
b

ili
ti

es
 e

xc
ee

d
 c

u
rr

en
t 

as
se

ts
 -

in
d

ic
at

es
 p

o
te

n
ti

al
 li

q
u

id
it

y 
p

ro
b

le
m

s.
  

It
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

n
o

te
d

 
th

at
 a

 h
ig

h
 w

o
rk

in
g 

ca
p

it
al

 r
at

io
 is

n
't 

al
w

ay
s 

a 
go

o
d

 t
h

in
g;

 it
 c

o
u

ld
 in

d
ic

at
e 

th
at

 a
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 is
 n

o
t 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

in
ve

st
in

g
it

s 
ex

ce
ss

 c
as

h
. 

F
in
d
in
g
s

L
ew

is
h

am
's

 w
o

rk
in

g 
ca

p
it

al
 r

at
io

 h
as

 r
ed

u
ce

d
 f

ro
m

 1
.4

9 
in

 2
00

7/
08

 t
o

 1
.3

0 
in

 2
01

1/
12

. W
h

ile
 t

h
e 

m
o

ve
m

en
t 

in
 t

h
is

 v
al

u
e 

o
ve

r 
th

e 
p

as
t 

fi
ve

 y
ea

rs
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 in
 

lin
e 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

av
er

ag
e 

m
o

ve
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

b
en

ch
m

ar
ke

d
 g

ro
u

p,
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l h

as
 r

em
ai

n
ed

 a
ro

u
n

d
 h

al
f 

a 
p

er
ce

n
ta

ge
 p

o
in

t 
b

el
o

w
 t

h
e 

av
er

ag
e 

in
 e

ac
h

 y
ea

r.
 T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l i

s 
in

 t
h

e 
b

o
tt

o
m

 t
h

ir
d

 o
f 

th
e 

b
en

ch
m

ar
ke

d
 g

ro
u

p.
 

S
o

u
rc

e
: 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
's

 T
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

D
ir

e
c
to

ry

K
ey

 I
n

d
ic

at
o

rs
 o

f 
F

in
an

ci
al

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

28

Page 104



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

U
s
e
a
b
le
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
s
 -
B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
e
d

D
e
fi
n
it
io
n

T
h

is
 s

h
o

w
s 

u
se

ab
le

 c
ap

it
al

 a
n

d
 r

ev
en

u
e 

re
se

rv
es

 a
s 

a 
sh

ar
e 

o
f 

ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
. A

 r
at

io
 o

f 
o

n
e 

m
ea

n
s 

th
e 

to
ta

l r
es

er
ve

s 
m

at
ch

es
 t

h
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
.

F
in
d
in
g
s

B
et

w
ee

n
 2

00
7/

08
 a

n
d

 2
01

1/
12

, L
ew

is
h

am
 h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d

 t
h

e 
ra

ti
o

 o
f 

it
s 

u
se

ab
le

 r
es

er
ve

s,
 f

ro
m

 0
.0

8 
to

 0
.1

3.
 T

h
er

e 
is

 n
o

 c
le

ar
 t

re
n

d
 in

 t
h

e 
b

en
ch

m
ar

ke
d

 
gr

o
u

p,
 w

it
h

 s
o

m
e 

au
th

o
ri

ti
es

 in
cr

ea
si

n
g 

th
ei

r 
le

ve
l o

f 
re

se
rv

es
 (

as
 a

 p
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 o
f 

ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
),

 a
n

d
 o

th
er

s 
d

ec
re

as
in

g 
th

ei
r

re
se

rv
e 

le
ve

ls
. I

n
 2

01
1/

12
, t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l s

it
s 

in
 t

h
e 

to
p

 t
h

ir
d

 o
f 

re
se

rv
es

 l
ev

el
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
b

en
ch

m
ar

ke
d

 g
ro

u
p.

 
A

s 
p

er
 t

h
e 

20
12

/
13

 A
cc

o
u

n
ts

, t
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l h
as

 r
es

er
ve

s 
o

f 
£

20
1m

ill
io

n
 a

t 
th

e 
31

s
t

o
f 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
3,

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h

 £
12

 m
ill

io
n

 is
 t

h
e 

G
en

er
al

 F
u

n
d

 B
al

an
ce

.

S
o

u
rc

e
: 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
's

 T
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

D
ir

e
c
to

ry

K
ey

 I
n

d
ic

at
o

rs
 o

f 
F

in
an

ci
al

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

29

Page 105



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

L
o
n
g
 T
e
rm

 B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 t
o
 T
a
x
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 -
B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
e
d

D
e
fi
n
it
io
n

Sh
o

w
s 

lo
n

g 
te

m
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g 

as
 a

 s
h

ar
e 

o
f 

ta
x 

re
ve

n
u

e.
 A

 r
at

io
 o

f 
m

o
re

 t
h

an
 o

n
e 

m
ea

n
s 

th
at

 lo
n

g 
te

rm
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g 

ex
ce

ed
s 

co
u

n
ci

l t
ax

 r
ev

en
u

e.

F
in
d
in
g
s

W
h

ile
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 lo
n

g 
te

rm
 b

o
rr

o
w

in
g 

ra
ti

o
 (

as
 a

 s
h

ar
e 

o
f 

ta
x 

re
ve

n
u

e)
 h

as
 r

em
ai

n
ed

 a
lm

o
st

 t
h

e 
sa

m
e 

fr
o

m
 2

00
7/

08
 (

1.
18

) 
to

20
11

/
12

 (
1.

17
),

 t
h

er
e 

h
as

 
b

ee
n

 s
o

m
e 

m
o

ve
m

en
t 

in
 t

h
e 

ra
ti

o
 in

 t
h

e 
in

te
rv

en
in

g 
p

er
io

d
. H

o
w

ev
er

, t
h

es
e 

m
o

ve
m

en
ts

 a
re

 c
o

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
av

er
ag

e 
m

o
ve

m
en

t 
o

f 
th

e 
b

en
ch

m
ar

ke
d

 
gr

o
u

p
 d

u
ri

n
g 

th
is

 p
er

io
d

. T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l c
u

rr
en

tl
y 

si
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e 
b

o
tt

o
m

 t
h

ir
d

 o
f 

th
e 

b
en

ch
m

ar
ke

d
 g

ro
u

p,
 w

h
ic

h
 in

d
ic

at
es

 a
 f

av
o

u
ra

b
le

 p
o

si
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l a
t 

th
is

 c
u

rr
en

t 
p

o
in

t 
in

 t
im

e.
 

S
o

u
rc

e
: 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
's

 T
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

D
ir

e
c
to

ry

K
ey

 I
n

d
ic

at
o

rs
 o

f 
F

in
an

ci
al

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

30

Page 106



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

L
o
n
g
-t
e
rm

 b
o
rr
o
w
in
g
 t
o
 L
o
n
g
-t
e
rm

 a
s
s
e
ts
 -
B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
e
d
  
  

D
e
fi
n
it
io
n

T
h

is
 r

at
io

 s
h

o
w

s 
lo

n
g 

te
m

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g 
as

 a
 s

h
ar

e 
o

f 
lo

n
g 

te
rm

 a
ss

et
s.

 A
 r

at
io

 o
f 

m
o

re
 t

h
an

 o
n

e 
m

ea
n

s 
th

at
 lo

n
g 

te
rm

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g 
ex

ce
ed

s 
th

e 
va

lu
e 

o
f 

lo
n

g 
te

rm
 a

ss
et

s.

F
in
d
in
g
s

T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 lo

n
g 

te
rm

 b
o

rr
o

w
in

g 
to

 a
ss

et
s 

ra
ti

o
 h

as
 d

ec
re

as
ed

 f
ro

m
 2

01
0/

11
 (

0.
28

) 
to

 2
01

1/
12

 (
0.

20
).

 T
h

is
 s

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

m
o

ve
m

en
t

is
 e

xp
la

in
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
re

d
ee

m
in

g 
£

13
6m

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 P
W

L
B

 L
o

an
s 

d
u

ri
n

g 
th

e 
H

R
A

 S
el

f-
F

in
an

ci
n

g 
se

tt
le

m
en

t,
 w

h
ic

h
 o

cc
u

rr
ed

 in
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

2.
 T

h
is

 d
ir

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

tr
av

el
 is

 c
o

n
si

st
en

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
m

aj
o

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e 

b
en

ch
m

ar
ke

d
 g

ro
u

p,
 w

it
h

 1
1 

o
f 

th
e 

16
 b

o
ro

u
gh

s 
ex

p
er

ie
n

ci
n

g 
a 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 in
 t

h
is

 r
at

io
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
p

er
io

d
. T

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 d
ir

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

tr
av

el
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

w
h

o
le

 f
iv

e 
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d
 s

h
o

w
n

 in
 t

h
e 

gr
ap

h
 i

s 
la

rg
el

y 
in

 li
n

e 
w

it
h

 t
h

e 
av

er
ag

e 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e 
b

en
ch

m
ar

ke
d

 g
ro

u
p

 d
u

ri
n

g 

th
is

 p
er

io
d

. 

S
o

u
rc

e
: 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
's

 T
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

D
ir

e
c
to

ry

K
ey

 I
n

d
ic

at
o

rs
 o

f 
F

in
an

ci
al

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

31

Page 107



©
  2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

  
 |

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 b
a
la
n
c
e
s
 t
o
 D
S
G
 a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 -
B
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
e
d

D
e
fi
n
it
io
n

T
h

is
 s

h
o

w
s 

th
e 

sh
ar

e 
o

f 
sc

h
o

o
ls

 b
al

an
ce

s 
in

 r
el

at
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

to
ta

l D
SG

 a
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 r
ec

ei
ve

d
 f

o
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

. F
o

r 
ex

am
p

le
 a

 r
at

io
 o

f 
0.

02
 m

ea
n

s 
th

at
 2

 p
er

 c
en

t 
o

f 
th

e 
to

ta
l D

SG
 a

llo
ca

ti
o

n
 r

em
ai

n
ed

 u
n

sp
en

t 
at

 t
h

e 
en

d
 o

f 
th

e 
ye

ar
.

F
in
d
in
g
s

A
ga

in
, a

lt
h

o
u

gh
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l's

 r
at

io
 in

 2
01

1/
12

 (
0.

08
) 

is
 la

rg
el

y 
u

n
ch

an
ge

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 in
 2

00
7/

08
 (

0.
09

),
 t

h
er

e 
w

as
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
m

o
ve

m
en

t 
in

 t
h

e 
va

lu
e 

o
ve

r 
th

e 
p

as
t 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s.

 T
h

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

l's
 d

ir
ec

ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

av
el

 o
ve

r 
th

is
 f

iv
e 

ye
ar

 p
er

io
d

 is
 c

o
n

si
st

en
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

b
en

ch
m

ar
ke

d
 g

ro
u

p.
 O

ve
r 

th
e 

p
as

t 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s 

(2
01

0/
11

 t
o

 2
01

2/
13

),
 t

h
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
l h

as
 s

p
en

t 
it

s 
D

SG
 a

llo
ca

ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

u
d

ge
t.

 

S
o

u
rc

e
: 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
's

 T
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

D
ir

e
c
to

ry

K
ey

 I
n

d
ic

at
o

rs
 o

f 
F

in
an

ci
al

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

32

Page 108



©
 2

01
3 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

U
K

 L
LP

. A
ll 

rig
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
. 

'G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n'

 m
ea

ns
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
U

K
 L

LP
, a

 li
m

ite
d 

lia
bi

lit
y

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p.

 

G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

is
 a

 m
em

be
r f

irm
 o

f G
ra

nt
 T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
Lt

d 
(G

ra
nt

T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l).

 R
ef

er
en

ce
s 

to
 'G

ra
nt

 
T

ho
rn

to
n'

 a
re

 to
 th

e 
br

an
d 

un
de

r w
hi

ch
 th

e 
G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s 
op

er
at

e 
an

d 
re

fe
r t

o 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s,
 a

s 
th

e 
co

nt
ex

t r
eq

ui
re

s.
 G

ra
nt

 T
ho

rn
to

n 
In

te
rn

at
io

na
l a

nd
 th

e 
m

em
be

r f
irm

s 
ar

e 
no

t a
 w

or
ld

w
id

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p.
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 b
y 

m
em

be
r f

irm
s,

 w
hi

ch
 a

re
 n

ot
 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
r 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 o
f o

ne
 a

no
th

er
. G

ra
nt

 
T

ho
rn

to
n 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l d
oe

s 
no

t p
ro

vi
de

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 c
lie

nt
s.

 

g
ra

n
t-

th
o

rn
to

n
.c

o
.u

k

Page 109



   

  

1  PURPOSE 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to respond to the external auditor’s Audit Findings 
Reports on the audit of the council’s 2012/13 main accounts and Pension Fund 
accounts.  These are attached to the previous item on this agenda, and set out: 

 “…the key matters and audit findings arising from the 2012/13 audit of the financial 
 statements…whether the accounts present a true and fair view of the financial 
 position and have been properly prepared……..and whether you have put in place 
 proper arrangements to secure  value for money in your use of resources.” 

1.2 The reports set out any issues arising from the audits that, in the opinion of the 
external auditor, are of sufficient significance to warrant discussion with Members. 

2   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 The Council has a statutory requirement to approve and publish its audited
 Statement of Accounts by 30th September each year.  The pre-audit 2012/13 
 Accounts were considered and noted by the Audit Panel on 18th June 2013. Since 
 then Grant Thornton have been carrying out their external audit, and the final 
audited 2012/13 Accounts will be submitted to Council for approval on 19th 
September 2013. 

3 RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 The Audit Panel are recommended to note the reports from Grant Thornton and 
 this covering officer  report, to ask questions as appropriate and to agree the 
 comments that they wish to be relayed to Council. 

4 POLICY CONTEXT 

4.1 Completing the audit of the council’s accounts and receiving the auditor’s report 
thereon contributes directly to the council’s tenth corporate priority: 

• Inspiring efficiency, effectiveness and equity: ensuring efficiency and equity 
in the delivery of excellent services to meet the needs of the community. 

5 AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS 

5.1 Since the pre-audit Accounts were completed at the end of June 2013, they have 
been subject to extensive external audit by Grant Thornton and a number of 
changes have been agreed.  At the time this report was dispatched, the audit was 
substantially complete and Grant Thornton report that subject to completing their 
outstanding work they anticipate providing an unqualified opinion on the financial 

 

AUDIT PANEL 

 
 

Report Title 
 

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REPORTS ON THE 2012/13 ACCOUNTS 
 

Key Decision 
 

 

No 
 

Item No. 
 

4 
 

Ward 
 

 

ALL 
 

Contributors 
 

 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FOR RESOURCES AND REGENERATION 
 

Class 
 

Part 1 
 

Date:  12 September 2013 

Agenda Item 4

Page 110



   

  

statements and that they propose to give an unqualified value for money 
conclusion.  Grant Thornton will give a verbal update at the meeting and, along 
with senior council officers, will answer any questions as required.  

5.2 Grant Thornton have raised a few matters for Members to consider and it is 
important to note that these mainly relate to detailed disclosure requirements.  

5.4 The external auditor requests that Members: 

• Note the adjustments to the financial statements in the report 

• Approve the letter of representation on behalf of the council   

• Agree the response to the proposed action plan (Appendix A).”  

5.5 Under the council’s constitution these matters are for Council to determine.  At 
Council on 19th September 2013 Members will be recommended to note the Audit 
Findings reports and approve the audited Statement of Accounts.  Any comments 
of the Audit Panel arising from this meeting will be reported to Council, 

6 AUDIT FINDINGS 

6.1 Overall, the audit has reported that the draft 2012/13 financial statements were of 
good quality and working papers provided supported the entries in the accounts.   

6.2 During the audit a small number of errors were identified and amendments to the 
Accounts agreed with the auditors.  None of these are material to the financial 
position shown in the Accounts and they do not affect the charge to the Council 
Tax.  The changes are mainly presentational and ensure that the Council complies 
with the technical accounting regulations. 

6.3 Grant Thornton have reviewed the accounting treatment of the guarantee provided 
by the Council to Lewisham Homes regarding pension costs.  This issue has been 
the subject of discussion over the last few years with the previous external 
auditors.  We have slightly amended our accounting treatment and Grant Thornton 
concur with this change.   

6.4 Grant Thornton have identified a number of errors which the Council has agreed to 
amend for, the major ones being as follows; 

• On the Balance Sheet, a short term loan of £3.7m was wrongly classified as 
a long term loan.   

• Amendments to the Lease note (note 34) have been made to the future  
  commitments of the Council as lessor of £5.3m and lessee of £3m.   

• A misclassification of downward revaluations as impairments in the Non  
  Current Assets note (note 9b), this has no affect on the Balance Sheet. 

• An amendment to the PFI Movement in Assets note (note 35c) to include all 
  of the new assets which have been brought onto the Balance Sheet  
  following practical completion. 

6.5 The Action Plan at Appendix A has a number of recommendations in it which have 
been agreed with Grant Thornton. 

6.6 Overall the small number of changes required to the 2012/13 Accounts indicates a 
good system of financial control and the robustness of financial information 
throughout the organisation. 

 

Page 111



   

  

7 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

7.1 This document has been slightly updated from that considered at the Audit Panel 
 on 18th June 2013 to reflect the completion of a few items.  It is will be submitted to 
 Council on 19th September 2013 for approval. 

8 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 There are no direct financial implications resulting from this report. 

8.2 The cost of external audit services for 2012/13 was £333,800, including the cost of 
 the audit of the main accounts, the certification of grant claims and returns and 
 other external audit services.  The Pension Fund audit cost was £21,000. 

9 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Regulation 8 of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 requires 
 authorities to publish its Statement of Accounts after the external audit is 
 concluded no later than 30 September.  The approval of the audited Statement of 
 Accounts by Council on 19 September 2013 will satisfy this statutory requirement. 

9.2 It is the role of the Audit Panel to receive, review and where appropriate advise 
 and make recommendations to the Council in relation to the external auditor’s 
 opinion and report to Members, and to monitor management action in response to 
 issues raised by external audit. 

10 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no equalities implications in this report. 

11 CONSULTATION 

11.1 Sections 15 and 16 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 give electors the right to 

question the auditor or object to the Accounts. The Accounts are required to be 

available for public inspection for 20 working days prior to the conclusion of the 

audit and an advertisement placed in the local press to publicise this fact. This 

public inspection period ended on the 19 August 2013, which was also the day 

electors were able to question the auditor. No questions were received by the 

External Auditor on this day.  It is also a requirement that notice of conclusion of 

the audit is advertised in the local press. 

12 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

12.1 There are no environmental implications in this report. 

13 CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report. 

14 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

None 
 

For further information on this report please contact: 
 

Conrad Hall, Head of Business Management and Service Support 

Richard Lambeth, Group Finance Manager – Accounting and Capital 

Page 112



1 

AUDIT PANEL 

Report Title Internal Audit update report 

Key Decision No  Item No. 5 

Ward ALL 

Contributors Head of Audit & Risk (Interim) 

Class Part 1 Date:  12 September 2013 

 

 

1. Purpose of the report 

1.1. This report presents members of the Audit Panel with a summary of: 

• Internal audit progress with the audit plans for 2012/13 and 2013/14, 

• Implementation of internal audit recommendations, and 

• Performance of the Internal Audit contractor. 

 

2. Recommendations 

2.1. It is recommended that the Audit Panel note the content of this report.  

 

3. Background 

3.1. The Council’s Head of Internal Audit reports to the Executive Director for 
Resources and Regeneration and is supported by an Internal Audit Contract 
Manager.   

3.2. This client side of Internal Audit contracts out the Council’s Internal Audit Service.  
Since 2008, and following a competitive tendering process in 2011, RSM Tenon 
Limited has the provided the service.     

3.3. The contractor is responsible for completing the Internal Audit reviews for the 
Council (non-schools and schools) as directed.  In addition from April 2013, the 
Internal Audit Contract Manager performs the non-core audit and school (where 
required) follow-ups and a limited number of ad-hoc audit reviews with the 
assistance of CIPFA trainees in Finance.    

3.4. Internal Audit reviews are categorised as one of Audit, Advice, or Consultancy.  
Audit and Consultancy work result in a report with agreed recommendations, the 
implementation of which are monitored and reported on.  Advice work are shorter 
pieces of work that result in memo style reports with suggestions for management. 

 

4. Internal audit progress update     

2012/13  

4.1. There are four reports outstanding from the 2012/13 audit plan at the 31 July 
2013.  They are:    

• Early Intervention Grant (CYP), 

• Maintenance of Assets and Premises  (RRE) (draft issued 12/07/13), 

• Payment by Results Pilot (RRE), and 

Agenda Item 5

Page 113



2 

• Income Forecasting v’s Savings Agreed (RRE). 

 

4.2. The Early Intervention Grant and Maintenance of Asset audits were delayed by 
Lewisham management due to timing and scheduling constraints.  The other two 
pieces of work are with the Contractor. 

4.3. Seven reports have been finalised from the 2012/13 audit plan since the last 
meeting. They are: 

 

Dir. Audit  Date of 

Final 

Audit 

Opinion 

Recs. Made 

H M L 

RRE Divisional Risk Registers 10/06/13 Advice 

RRE Procure to Pay (P2P) benefits 05/06/13 Advice 

RRE Croydon Lighting PFI Contract 26/06/13 Satisfactory - 5 1 

CUS 
Client Management of Lewisham 

Homes 
18/06/13 Satisfactory 1 1 - 

COM 
Adult Social Care – Long Term & 

Complex Cases  
28/06/13 Limited 1 11 - 

COM Community Equipment Consortium 30/05/13 Limited  3 6 1 

CYP Special Educational Needs 06/06/13 Satisfactory 2 8 - 

 

2013/14 

4.4. The contractor is responsible for completing all the reviews in the 2013/14 audit 
plan, with the exception of two internal audits:  

• Turnham Primary School – the internal audit was brought forward to July from 
November at the request of the Governors.  Given the short notice and priority 
for the contractor to complete outstanding 2012/13 work and progress 2013/14 
work the in-house team completed this audit.   

• Troubled Families Programme – The Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG) require that internal audit review the framework the 
Council has in place but no formal opinion is required.  Rather than prepare a 
separate engagement the in-house team are doing this review. 

 

4.5. The table below summarises the status of the plan as at 31/07/13.  For a more 
detailed look at the current audit plan please refer to Appendix 1.    

 

Lead 

Dir. 

Original 

Audit 

Plan  

Extra 

Audits 

Dropped 

Audits 

Current 

Audit 

Plan 

Final 

Reports 

Issued 

APS 

Issued 

Audits 

not 

started 

RRE 20 - (1) 19 - 2 17 

CUS 14  (1) 13 1 4 8 

COM 10 1 (2) 9 - 1 8 

Page 114



3 

Lead 

Dir. 

Original 

Audit 

Plan  

Extra 

Audits 

Dropped 

Audits 

Current 

Audit 

Plan 

Final 

Reports 

Issued 

APS 

Issued 

Audits 

not 

started 

CYP 7 2 - 9 1 4 4 

Sub  51 3 (4) 50 2 11 37 

SCH 23 - - 23 8 n/a 15 

Total 74 3 (4) 73 10 11 52 

 

4.6. Since the last meeting, there have been two additional audits and two audits 
dropped from the plan.   

4.7. Additional 

• CCTV  – This audit replaced the dropped (see below) Supporting Peoples 
Programme. 

• Troubled Families Programme – The DCLG require that internal audit approve 
the framework for programme.     

4.8. Dropped audits 

• NNDR Parameters – The legislation changes to the collection of NNDR did not 
require any significant changes to the parameters, so there was nothing to 
audit.  

• Supporting People Programme – This is now in the 2014/15 audit plan, as the 
follow-up of the previous audit was on completed late in 2012/13.  

     

4.9. The ten audits from the 2013/14 plan in the table below have been finalised since 
the last Audit Panel meeting.   

 

Dir. Audit  Date of 

Final 

Audit 

Opinion 

Recs. Made 

H M L 

CUS 
Housing and Council Tax Benefit - 

IT parameters (Part 1) 
22/07/13 Substantial - - - 

CYP Fostering and residential orders  22/07/13 Substantial - 2 1 

SCH Dalmain JMI 19/07/13 Substantial - - 4 

SCH Good Shepherd JMI 10/06/13 Substantial - 1 3 

SCH Horniman JMI 30/07/13 Substantial - - 1 

SCH John Stainer JMI 20/06/13 Substantial - 1 1 

SCH Lee Manor JM 31/05/13 Substantial - - 2 

SCH Rangefield JMI 04/07/13 Substantial - - 2 

SCH Rushey Green JMI 22/07/13 Substantial - 1 1 

SCH Turnham Primary (In-house) 31/07/13 No Assurance 7 15 4 

 

Page 115



4 

5. Limited and No Assurance reports 

5.1. Since the last Audit Panel meeting, the ‘Limited’, ‘No Assurance’ and 
‘Consultancy’ reports issued were:  

• Adult Social Care  (COM) (12/13) – Limited, 

• Community Equipment Consortium (COM) (12/13) – Limited, and 

• Turnham Primary School (SCH) (13/14) – No Assurance. 

 

5.2. The executive summaries for these reports are provided at Appendix 4.  The 
issues raised in each report are different with no common themes identified. 

5.3. In addition to the above, the Divisional Risk Registers review became an advice 
piece of work. It made suggestions in relation to: 

• Ensuring service risks are recorded and assessed, 

• Service risks align to business plans and Directorate risk registers, and 

• Consider additional risk management awareness and training. 

 

6. High or Medium recommendations not agreed 

6.1. Since the last Audit Panel meeting, there has been one medium internal audit 
recommendation made and not agreed by management. 

6.2. The recommendation was made in the review of contract management 
arrangements in place for the Council’s joint street lighting PFI with the London 
Borough of Croydon.  It concerns formalising the arrangements for sharing audit 
reports. 

6.3. In line with the agreed protocol for escalating such matters, the Internal Control 
Board have been asked to assess the risk and decide on the desired level of 
control required.     

     

7. Implementation of internal audit recommendations 

Follow-ups 

7.1. Follow-ups are conducted for non-school work and school audits in receipt of a 
negative (Limited or No) assurance opinion.  They should be completed within 
nine months of the final report.  From April 2013 all Follow-ups are completed by 
the client side team with the exception of core (i.e. annual) audits and specialist IT 
reviews.   

7.2. Since the last Audit Panel report, thirteen Follow-up reviews were completed – 
eight in respect of 2011/12 reports and five in respect of 2012/13 reports.  These 
Follow-ups identified 91% of recommendations as implemented, in progress or 
superseded as follows. 

 

Implemented In Progress Superseded Not 
Implemented 

Total Recs  

46 23 2 7 78 

59% 29% 3% 9% 100% 

   

Page 116



5 

7.3. There remain four Follow-up reports outstanding from the 2012/13 plan.  The 
contractor is responsible for completing these outstanding reviews.  The Follow-
ups due for 2013/14 are up to date.   

7.4. Further details of these follow-ups are provided in Appendix 5.  

 

Superseded 

7.5. Since the last Audit Panel meeting two medium recommendations have been 
superseded.  They were: 

• NNDR 2012/13 – recommendation closed down by internal audit, as the same 
recommendation appeared in the 2011/12 review and remains open.     

• Application implementation for HR and Payroll – This is now incorporated in 
the actions arising from the Disaster Recovery for ICT infrastructure audit.  

 

7.6. Details of the two superseded recommendations are in Appendix 2 and the 
tracking of the replacement recommendations are reflected in Appendix 3.  

 

Implementation of recommendations 

7.7. The table below shows the status of high and medium recommendations made by 
Internal Audit as at the 31/07/13.   

 

Lead 

Dir. 

Previou

s No. of 

O/Due 

Recs.  

Current 

No. of 

O/due 

Recs at 

31/07/13 

Current 

No. of 

Recs 

with 2+ 

changes 

 Previou

s No. of 

Open 

Recs at 

30/04/13 

No of 

Recs 

Re-

opened 

since 

30/04/13 

Net no. 

of New 

Recs 

from 

30/04/13 

to 

31/07/13 

Closed 

Recs 

from 

30/04/13 

to 

31/07/13 

Current 

Open 

Recs at 

31/07/13 

RRE 6 13 2  44 10 32 (20) 66 

CUS -  2  5 - 3 (4) 4 

COM - 3 1  2 4 23 (3) 26 

CYP 5 10 3  10 2 8 (3) 17 

Total 

N/S 
11 26 8  61 16 66 (30) 113 

SCH 26 10 12  53 -  3 (31) 25 

Total 

All 
37 36 20  114 16 69 (61) 138 

 

7.8. There were four recommendations from the Generic Contract Review – Schools 
PFI that transferred to RRE from the CYP Directorate following a change of 
responsibility for the actions.  

7.9. Those schools with recommendations which are over one year old that relate to 
obtaining quotes or tendering but which have not incurred the necessary large 
expenditure to evidence these controls are operating have now had these 

Page 117



6 

recommendations closed.  These schools will be audited in no more than two 
years when internal audit will be able to check again.   

7.10. There are six non-school audits and four school audits with overdue 
recommendations.  There are also six non-school and six school audits with 
recommendations that have two or more date changes to agreed 
recommendations.    

7.11. Details of those recommendations that are either overdue and/or with two or more 
implementation date changes are presented in Appendix 3.    

 

8. Performance of the contractor 

2012/13 

8.1. As noted above, there remain four audits and four follow-ups outstanding from the 
2012/13 audit plan. 

 

2013/14 

8.2. One of the ways that the performance of the contractor is measured is by agreed 
Performance Indicators (PIs).   The table below show the results for the 2013/14 
audit plan to the end of July.     

 

Performance Indictor  No. of 

survey 

Target YTD Actual YTD 

to 31/07/13 

Variance 

(+/-) 

Met 

(Y/N

) 

% No. % No. % No.  

1 
All finals reports issued 

against plan 
 4% 3/73 13% 9/73 9% 6 Y 

2 
Non-SCH final reports 

issued against plan  
 6% 3/50 4% 2/50 -2% -1 N 

3 
SCH final reports 

issued against plan   
 0% 0/23 32% 7/23 32% 7 Y 

4 
Follow up reviews 

issued against plan 
 24% 4/17 24% 4/17 0% 0 Y 

5 
Level of satisfaction for 

individual reviews 

N-S 1/2 

S 1/8 
3.0 3.9 0.9 Y 

 

8.3. The following key performance indicator was not met:   

• PI 2 – at the end of July, the non-school (N/S) audit plan missed its target by 
2%.  The original target at the beginning of the year was six reports up to the 
end of July.  Due to audits being either delayed or cancelled by Lewisham, this 
was reduced to three reports up to the end of July.     

 

9. Update for August 

9.1. Despatch dates required the full report to be prepared up to the end of July.  
However, it is possible to give an overview of progress in August.   

Page 118



7 

9.2. In August two non-school reports were issued against a plan for four to be 
finalised.  This means PI 2 is now showing the target as missed by 8%.  They 
were: 

• ISS Facilities Management (RRE) – Limited, and  

• Adoption & Guardianship payments (CYP) – Satisfactory. 

 

9.3. In August no school reports were issued against a plan for two to be finalised.  
This is not significant as the school audit plan is already ahead of target – see 
above.  

9.4. Looking forward, delivery of the non-school work significantly steps up from 
September with five reports due in September, six in October and eight in 
November.   

 

10. Legal Implications 

10.1. There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 

 

11. Financial Implications 

11.1. There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. 

 

12. Equalities Implications 

12.1. There are no equality implications arising directly from this report. 

 

13. Crime and Disorder Implications 

13.1. There are no crime and disorder implications arising directly from this report. 

 

14. Environmental Implications 

14.1. There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. 

 

15. Background Papers  

15.1. There are no background papers.  

If there are any queries on this report, please contact David Austin, Interim Head 
of Audit and Risk, on 020 8314 9114 or email him at 
david.austin@lewisham.gov.uk  

 

Page 119



Appendix 1 - Progress on the 2013/14 Audit Plan 

1 

Lead 

Dir. 

Name of Audit Scope Date 

APS 

Issued 

Date 

Audit 

Finalised 

Opinion 

RRE Property Asset Management Review of the operation and process for managing property asset. (Assurance) Cancelled 

RRE ISS Cleaning Contract Review of Clienting arrangements for the Facilities Contract. (Assurance) 14/05/13   

RRE Transport (Highways) Contract 
Review of the Clienting arrangements for the transport contract (highways 

maintenance) particularly valid in light of staff restructure. (Assurance) 
27/06/13 

 
 

RRE SharePoint 2010 Review security access, project management of SP2010. (Assurance)    

RRE Capita - IT Contract Management To review the contract management process (Assurance)    

RRE VAT To review the process of input and output tax. (Assurance)    

RRE Review Data Scanning and Storage Review new contract for off site storage and retrieval (Assurance)    

RRE Project Management 
Review of project management across the council to include PRG and Training. 

(Assurance) 
 

 
 

RRE Pensions System Implementation 

Review of the new pensions system.  To include: security, controls, transfer of 

data from old system  and the normal implementation testing that is expected of 

a new system. (Assurance) 

 

 

 

RRE Forefront Identity Manager (FIM) 

Review of the management processes for user network access.  Forefront 

Identity 

Manager will replace SMAL system. (Assurance) 

 

 

 

RRE Oracle 

Review of there new oracle upgrade to ensure that it is fit for purpose.  Review 

how maintenance and upgrades to the system are managed, security of data 

and governance. (Assurance) 

 

 

 

RRE Budget Control and Monitoring Key Controls (Assurance)    

RRE Non Current Assets Key Controls (Assurance)    

RRE Payroll Key Controls (Assurance)    

RRE 
Capital Programme, Monitoring and 

Expenditure 
Key Controls (Assurance)  

 
 

RRE Treasury Management Key Controls (Assurance)    

RRE Accounts Payable Key Controls (Assurance)    

P
age 120



Appendix 1 - Progress on the 2013/14 Audit Plan 

2 

Lead 

Dir. 

Name of Audit Scope Date 

APS 

Issued 

Date 

Audit 

Finalised 

Opinion 

RRE Main Accounting Key Controls (Assurance)    

RRE Pensions Key Controls - to include new automatic enrolment. (Assurance)    

RRE Continuous Auditing To run and provide quarterly reports (Assurance)    

 

 

Lead 

Dir. 

Name of Audit  Scope  Date 

APS 

Issued 

Date 

Audit 

Finalised 

Opinion 

CUS NNDR - IT parameters Review initial controls, parameters prior to Key audit. (Assurance) Cancelled 

CUS 
Housing and Council Tax Benefit - IT 

parameters (part 1) 
Review initial controls, parameters prior to Key audit. (Assurance) 22/06/13 22/07/13 Substantial 

CUS 
Housing and Council Tax Benefit - IT 

parameters (part 2) 
Review initial controls, parameters prior to Key audit. (Assurance) 22/06/13 

 
 

CUS Web Payments 
Review the security and resilience of the online payment systems that has taken 

over from the cash office (Assurance) 
27/07/13 

 
 

CUS NNDR - Key controls To include parameters and new regs etc. (Assurance)    

CUS Trade waste  - contract review 
Review the Clienting arrangement for trade waste (not dry recycling). 

(Assurance) 
 

 
 

CUS Payment Centres 
Review of the new payment centres in terms of role allocation and automation. 

(Assurance) 
 

 
 

CUS Parking Contract 

Review the monitoring of the new contract, including payments, recovery, KPI 

and partnership working.  To include how personal information is shared 

between parties. (Assurance) 

 

 

 

CUS Housing Options Centre 
Review of the decision making process, management of service, meeting of 

objectives and application process. (Assurance) 
 

 
 

CUS Enforcement  To review the efficiency & productivity of the team. (Assurance)    

CUS Banking Key Controls (Assurance)    

P
age 121



Appendix 1 - Progress on the 2013/14 Audit Plan 

3 

Lead 

Dir. 

Name of Audit  Scope  Date 

APS 

Issued 

Date 

Audit 

Finalised 

Opinion 

CUS Council Tax Key Controls (Assurance)    

CUS Accounts Receivable Key Controls (Assurance)    

CUS Housing and Council Tax Benefit -  Key Controls (Assurance)    

 

 

Lead 

Dir. 

Name of Audit  Scope  Date 

APS 

Issued 

Date 

Audit 

Finalised 

Opinion 

COM South London and Maudsley (SLAM)  
Review the governance and operational management in respect of  LBL interest 

in relation to SLAM (Assurance) 
Cancelled 

COM Supporting People Programmes  
To review the objectives and outcomes.  Including working with the Penrose 

organisations. (Assurance) 
Cancelled 

COM Block Nursing Contract 
Review the block nursing contract monitoring and outcomes / savings 

(Assurance) 
28/06/13 

 
 

COM Safeguarding (Adults) 
Review the structure and process of the new Safeguarding Adults team.  

(Assurance) 
 

 
 

COM Fusion Leisure Contract 
Review the monitoring of the contracts, KPIs and H&S, and benefits of 

outcomes.   
 

 
 

COM 
Personal  Budgets. Individual Budgets 

and Direct Payments  

To review all three areas - including, assessing,  monitoring, allocation and 

outcomes (Assurance) 
 

 
 

COM 
Adult Social Care  - new ways of 

working  
To be advised.   

 
 

COM Youth Offending Team  To review the objectives and outcomes of the service.  (Assurance)    

COM 
Client Contributions for Residential & 

Domiciliary Care 
Key controls  (Assurance)  

 
 

COM 
Payments to Residential and 

Domiciliary Care 
Key controls  (Assurance)   

 
 

 

P
age 122



Appendix 1 - Progress on the 2013/14 Audit Plan 

4 

Lead 

Dir. 

Name of Audit Scope Date 

APS 

Issued 

Date 

Audit 

Finalised 

Opinion 

CYP Fostering and residential orders  
Individual reviews process and payment reviews to be performed on a 3 year 

rolling basis  (Assurance).  Adoption now separated from this review.  
09/05/13 22/07/13 Substantial 

CYP Adoption (Additional review) 

Review the process and payment of Adoption. (Assurance). Additional audit as 

original Fostering, Adoption and Residential Orders review is split in to two 

reviews.  

21/05/13 

 

 

CYP 

NEETs Targets and outcomes 

(previously Re-organisation of Youth 

Service 

Review of the targets set and outcomes in relation to NEET (Not in Education, 

Employment or Training). (Assurance) 
12/06/13 

 

 

CYP Troubled Families Programme Review the framework of the programme as required by the DCLG. (LBL) 24/06/13   

CYP Estates management  
In light of the reorganisation, review of estates management  and their statutory 

maintenance procedures in line with agreed SLA with schools  (Assurance) 
 

 
 

CYP Childrens' Disability Payments 
Review of the process for the administration, application, assessment & 

payment. (Assurance) 
 

 
 

CYP Pathfinder SEND 
Review of the process for the administration, application, assessment & 

payment relating to SEND. (Assurance) 
 

 
 

CYP 
Looked after Children Payments to 

Providers  
Key controls (Assurance)  

 
 

CYP Leaving Care  
Review the objectives and outcomes of the support of children leaving care. 

(Assurance) 
 

 
 

 

 

Lead 

Dir. 

Name of Audit Scope Mth 

F/W 

Started 

Date 

Audit 

Finalised 

 

SCH Good Shepherd Catholic Primary. Standard School Testing Programme May 13 10/06/13 Substantial 

SCH Lee Manor Primary. Standard School Testing Programme May 13 31/05/13 Substantial 

SCH Rangefield Primary. Standard School Testing Programme Jun 13 04/07/13 Substantial 

SCH John Stainer Primary. Standard School Testing Programme Jun 13 20/06/13 Substantial 

P
age 123



Appendix 1 - Progress on the 2013/14 Audit Plan 

5 

Lead 

Dir. 

Name of Audit Scope Mth 

F/W 

Started 

Date 

Audit 

Finalised 

 

SCH Rushey Green Jnr. Standard School Testing Programme Jul 13 22/07/13 Substantial 

SCH Dalmain Primary  Standard School Testing Programme Jul 13 19/07/13 Substantial 

SCH Horniman Primary. Standard School Testing Programme Jul 13 20/07/13 Substantial 

SCH Turnham Primary  Standard School Testing Programme (LBL) Jul 13 31/07/13 
No 

Assurance 

SCH Brindishe Green Primary. Standard School Testing Programme    

SCH Deptford Park Primary. Standard School Testing Programme    

SCH Holy Cross Catholic Primary. Standard School Testing Programme    

SCH Lucas Vale Primary Standard School Testing Programme    

SCH Marvels Lane Primary Standard School Testing Programme    

SCH Myatt Garden Primary. Standard School Testing Programme    

SCH Rathfern Primary. Standard School Testing Programme    

SCH Sandhurst Junior Standard School Testing Programme    

SCH St Augustine’s Catholic Primary Standard School Testing Programme    

SCH St Marys CE Primary Standard School Testing Programme    

SCH Stillness Infant. Standard School Testing Programme    

SCH Stillness Junior. Standard School Testing Programme    

SCH Torridon Infant. Standard School Testing Programme    

SCH Torridon Junior. Standard School Testing Programme    

SCH Drumbeat School (Spec) Standard School Testing Programme    

 

P
age 124



Appendix 2 -  Superseded internal audit recommendations  

1 

 

 

 

Audit Opinion Recommendation superseded Level Comment 

NNDR 12 -13 

CUS09 

Substantial Office procedures and guidance notes should be 

reviewed to ensure that they fully reflect current 

service delivery requirements. The procedures and 

guidance notes will also need to reflect the role of 

the Systems & Property Team and the 

interrelationship with NNDR. 

 

Medium 17/07/13 - Superseded. IA comment - This rec was 

previously made in 11/12.  As such closed this rec 

down and any updates need to be made to 1.1 for the 

NNDR 11/12 review 

 

Application 

implementation 

for HR and 

Payroll 

No 

Assurance 

IT Disaster Recovery (DR) - Disaster Recovery 

arrangements for ResourceLink should be 

established and proven 

 

Medium 12/06/13 - follow up conducted by internal audit.  see 

report attached.  Confirmed superseded.  Closed 

down rec. 

16/04/13 - Update - Michelle Ouzman - This action will 

be incorporated into the BC/DR audit and the IM&T 

Strategy Roadmap. 

Gap analysis currently being undertaken 

19/02/13 - target date changed from 31/01/13 to 

03/06/13 - Roger Fowles - Work is jointly underway 

with Capita to review Departmental Business 

Continuity plans to determine the expectations of a 

Corporate ICT DR plan 

P
age 125



Appendix 3  - Recommendations overdue and with multiple changes.  

1 

 

 

Dir. Name of Audit  Final Report 
Date 

H 

O/D 

M 

O/D 

2+ 

chgs 

Comment 

RRE Disaster Recovery for ICT Infrastructure 19/04/13 1 6  Update provided but no new due date.  

RRE 
Generic Contract Review – Group School 
PFI 

12/04/12  4 2 
Target date changed 2 times. Changed from 
CYP to RRE due to restructure.  

RRE ONEOracle Project Management  19/04/13  1   

RRE Treasury Management  05/02/13  1   

COM Community Equipment Consortium 30/05/13  3  Updates provided but no new due dates 

CYP Special Educational Needs  06/06/13 3 7   

SCH Clyde Nursery  13/05/12  2 2 Target changed 2 times 

SCH Kender Primary School  18/01/13 1 3  F/up due in Oct 13. Not chasing sch until after.  

SCH Rushey Green Primary School 22/07/13  1  
(due date 11/7 – not indicated implemented in 
the audit report) 

SCH St Michael’s Primary School 09/10/12  3   

Not overdue but with multiple changes of date. 

CUS Brockley Housing PFI Contract 03/02/12   1 Target date changed 7 times  

CUS NNDR 2011/12 16/04/12   1 
Reopened as 2012/13 report had same 
recommendation. 

COM Community Libraries Contracts 28/09/12   1 Target date changed 2 times 

CYP Payments for Looked After Children  2010/11   1 Target date changed 3 times 

CYP School Data Handling Controls 2011/12   2 Target date changed 2 times 

P
age 126



Appendix 3  - Recommendations overdue and with multiple changes.  

2 

Dir. Name of Audit  Final Report 
Date 

H 

O/D 

M 

O/D 

2+ 

chgs 

Comment 

SCH Adamsrill Primary School 04/10/12   1 Target changed 3 times. 

SCH Athelney Primary School  28/06/12   1 Target date changed 2 times 

SCH Fairlawn Primary School 14/11/12   4 Target date changed 2 times 

SCH Grinling Gibbons Primary School 11/02/12   1 Target date changed 4 times 

SCH Holbeach Primary School 27/09/12   2 Target date changed 2 times 

SCH Trinity CE Secondary School 23/11/12   1 Target date changed 2 times 

Total 5 31 20  

 

 P
age 127



Appendix 4  - No Assurance, Limited and Consultancy reviews.  

1 

 

Explanations for Assurance Opinion and Design of Controls and Comply with Controls.  

Each internal audit assurance review gives an opinion on the controls in place based on the fieldwork conducted.  We also define whether the 

recommendations made will help with the design of the control or help with compliance with the control.  See table below to explaining these 

opinions. 

  Level Design of Controls      Framework Comply  with Controls Framework 

Substantial Assurance 

� 

Robust framework of controls ensures objectives are likely to be 

achieved. 

Controls are applied continuously or with minor 

lapses. 

Satisfactory Assurance 

� 

Sufficient framework or key controls for objectives to be achieved 

but could be stronger. 

Controls are applied with some lapses. 

Limited Assurance 

� 

Risk of objectives not being achieved due to the absence of key 

internal controls. 

Significant breakdown in the application of 

controls. 

No Assurance 

� 

System of control not in place.  Absence of basic controls resulting 

in inability to meet objectives. 

Fundamental controls are not complied with. 

 

 

Definition of Category of Recommendation 

We also rate each recommendation made.  This gives management an indication of the importance of the recommendation and urgency for 

action.  Implementing recommendation can mitigate risks to the achievement of their service objectives.  

High 
Action is imperative to ensure that the objective for the area under review is met.  The recommendation must, where 

possible, be implemented immediately and, if the timeframe is longer than three months, an explanation should be 

provided.     

Medium 
Requires action to avoid exposure to significant risk in achieving the objective for the area under review.  The 

recommendation should be implemented as soon as possible and if the timeframe is longer than six months an 

explanation should be  provided. 

Low 
Action is advised to enhance control or improve operational efficiency.  This is a recommendation that would enhance 

control within the service and therefore should be considered for implementation within six months. 

 

P
age 128



Appendix 4  - No Assurance, Limited and Consultancy reviews.  

2 

P
age 129



Appendix 4  - No Assurance, Limited and Consultancy reviews.  

3 

 
 

P
age 130



Appendix 4  - No Assurance, Limited and Consultancy reviews.  

4 

P
age 131



Appendix 5 – Follow-up reviews conducted since the last audit panel meeting.   
 

1 

 

Dir. Audit Name Original 
Audit 

Opinion 

Final Rpt 
date 

F/up Rpt 
Date 

Rec 

Cat. 

Implemented In Progress Superseded Not 
Implemented

Total 
Recs 

RRE Cyber Security Limited 23/07/12 31/05/13 
H  1   

7 
M 2 3  1 

RRE 
Implementation of HR 
and Payroll System 
(ResourceLink) 

No 
Assurance 

06/09/12 11/06/13 
H     

8 
M 5 1 1 1 

RRE 
Information Governance 
Control Framework 

Satisfactory 03/08/12 11/06/13 
H     

3 
M 3    

RRE 
Counter Fraud Policies 
and Procedures 

Consultancy 14/06/12 12/06/13 
H     

2 
M 1 1   

RRE 
Members Allowances 
and Expenses 

Substantial 19/10/12 24/06/13 
H     

2 
M 2    

RRE Gifts and Hospitality  Limited 15/10/12 27/06/13 
H  3  1 

7 
M    3 

RRE Major Grants  Satisfactory 30/05/12 12/06/13 
H     

3 
M 3    

CUS 
NNDR – Application 
Implementation 

Limited 17/08/12 28/05/13 
H     

1 
M   1  

COM 
Community Libraries 
Contract  

Satisfactory 28/09/12 12/06/13 
H 1 1   

2 
M     

COM 
Monitoring of Small 
Grants  

Consultancy 05/10/12 16/07/13 
H     

4 
M 2 2   

COM 
Personal and Individual 
Budgets 

Consultancy 05/10/12 16/07/13 
H     

6 
M 4 2   

P
age 132



Appendix 5 – Follow-up reviews conducted since the last audit panel meeting.   
 

2 

Dir. Audit Name Original 
Audit 

Opinion 

Final Rpt 
date 

F/up Rpt 
Date 

Rec 

Cat. 

Implemented In Progress Superseded Not 
Implemented

Total 
Recs 

CYP 
Looked After Children 
Payment 11-12 

Substantial 30/05/12 12/06/13 
H     

2 
M 1 1   

CYP 
Data Handling Controls 
in Schools 

Limited 14/05/12 26/06/13 
H  1   

9 
M 7 1   

SCH 
Holbeach Primary 
School 2012/13 

Limited  27/09/12 01/07/13 
H  1   

6 
M 4 1   

SCH 
Fairlawn Primary School 
2012/13 

No 
Assurance 

14/11/12  04/07/13 
H 4 1  1 

16 
M 7 3   

     46 23 2 7 78 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 133



 

 

1. Purpose of the Report 

1.1. The purpose of this report is to present the Audit Panel with a review of the work of 

the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Team (A-FACT) in the last period.   

 

2. Recommendations 

2.1. It is recommended that the Audit Panel note this report for information. 

 

3. Special Investigations 

3.1. Details of work and comparative figures for the same period in the prior year are 

shown below, along with the previous two full year figures for reference. 

 

Summary of special 
investigations work 

2013/14 2012/13 Change 2012/13 2011/12 

P4 YTD  P4 YTD Number % FY FY 

b/f 41 32 9 28% 32* 84 

New 28 32 -4 -13% 103 61 

Closed (29) (18) 11 61% -94 -115 

c/f 40 44 -6 -13% 41 30 

Of which             

E’ee cases 8 11 -3 -27% 35 53 

- resulting in action 4 2 2 100% 21 20 

Other cases 21 7 14 200% 59 62 

- resulting in action 4 0 4 400% 13 10 

 * corrected figure (two added)  

 

3.2. The majority of the cases classified as “Other” relate to enquiries to assist other 

organisations or Boroughs with their investigations. The four which resulted in action 

for Lewisham included: 

• Prosecution for the fraudulent use of a Blue Parking Badge resulting in a £200 

fine, £200 costs and a £20 victim surcharge payment.  It is estimated by the 

National Fraud Authority that a Blue badge has a notional value of £825 per year. 

• Action against the daughter of a Lewisham Pensioner who had failed to inform 

the Council that her mother had died.  A-FACT was able to prove that the 

Lewisham Pensioner had died earlier than the daughter claimed but due to the 

daughters age and poor health the case was not deemed suitable for 

prosecution.  She will however have to repay the overpaid pension. 

AUDIT PANEL 

Report Title ANTI FRAUD AND CORRUPTION TEAM (A-FACT) UPDATE  

Key Decision NO  Item No. 6 

Ward ALL 

Contributors 
Interim Head of Audit & Risk 

A-FACT Group Manager 

Class Part 1 Date: 12 September 2013  

Agenda Item 6

Page 134



 

3.3. The increased focus on those cases likely to obtain results has continued to improve 

the teams success rate. 

 

Employee Related cases 

3.4. Of the 29 cases closed 8 concerned employees.  Of these employee cases 4 

concluded with action being taken.  The form that action took is detailed below: 

 

Analysis of 
employee fraud 

2013/14 2012/13 Change 2012/13 2011/12 

P4 YTD P4 YTD Number % FY FY 

Dismiss. & Convicted 0 0 0 0% 2 2 

Convicted & 
recommended 
disciplinary action 

0 0 0 0% 1   

Resigned/Dismissed 1 1 0 0% 5 9 

Other disciplinary 2 1 1 100% 3 8 

Monies repaid 0 0 0 0% 1 0 

Management action 1 0 1 100% 6 1 

Identity issue cleared 0 0 0 0% 3 0 

Total 4 2 2 100% 21 20 

 

3.5. The four cases where action was taken included: 

• A senior officer at a school who received an appropriate sanction for a number 

of financial irregularities. 

• An employee who misused a Blue Badge to park in the Laurence House car 

park received an appropriate sanction.   

 

3.6. Quarterly reports continue to be issued to each Executive Director with a summary of 

all cases being dealt with by Special Investigations in their Directorate.  This ensures 

that the risk of fraud is considered in the context of the demands of the service, 

priorities are agreed, and progress on investigations communicated.  

 

Lewisham Homes 

3.7. A-FACT continues to undertake investigation work on behalf of Lewisham Homes 

under a Service Level Agreement.  This equates to just under one full time equivalent 

member of staff and a proportion of the police officer’s time.  The outcome of these 

investigations is reported by Lewisham Homes to their Audit Committee. 

 

Pre-employment Checks 

3.8. A-FACT support Human Resources by undertaking part of the Council’s recruitment 

checks.  Each potential employee of the Council is required to complete a pre-

employment check focusing on any issues relating to benefits, council tax, rent and 

personal business interests which may cast doubt on the individual’s integrity or 

potential conflicts for their work going forward.   

 

 

 

Page 135



  

3.9. In the three cases where action was required to confirm the declarations made all 

were subsequently resolved satisfactorily.  

 

4  Benefit Investigations 

4.1  Details of work and comparative figures for the same period in the prior year are 

shown below, along with the previous two full year figures for reference. 

 

Summary of benefit 
investigations work 

2013/14 2012/13 Change 2012/13 2011/12 

P4 YTD P4 YTD Number % FY FY 

b/f 210 349 -139 -40% 349 381 

New 160 100 60 60% 304 264 

Closed 79 230 -151 -66% 443 -296 

c/f 291 219 72 33% 210 349 

Sanctions resulting 22 25 -3 -12% 78 84 

Of which             

Admin penalty 0 3 -3 -100% 7 11 

Caution 13 16 -3 -19% 54 52 

Prosecution 9 6 3 50% 17 21 

Overpayment value £ 225,473 253,873 -28,400 -11% 616,761 640,355 

 

4.2 There have been nine prosecutions in the period April to July.  A-FACT are hoping to 

do a press release on a number of these cases in the near future, subject to 

agreement from Communications.   

4.3 There has been no further update on the formation of the Single Fraud Investigation 

Service which was meant to bring together the work of the DWP, HMRC and Local 

Authority benefit fraud teams.   This was meant to happen from April 2013 originally 

and at present the back stop is the completion of the rollout of Universal Credit in 

2017/18. 

 

5 Housing Investigations 

5.1 Details of work and comparative figures for the same period in the prior year are 

shown below, along with the previous two full year figures for reference. 

 

Summary Housing 
investigation work 

2013/14 2012/13 Change 2012/13 2011/12 

P4 YTD P4 YTD Number % FY FY 

b/f 76 48 28 58% 48 72 

New 19 19 0 0% 105 66 

Closed (68) (28) 40 143% -77 90 

c/f 27 39 -12 -31% 76 48 

Summary of pre-
employment checks 

2013/14 2012/13 Change 2012/13 2011/12 

P4 YTD P4 YTD Number % FY FY 

Checks completed 72 97 -25 -26% 246 334 

Action taken 3 4 -1 -25% 16 21 

Page 136



Summary Housing 
investigation work 

2013/14 2012/13 Change 2012/13 2011/12 

P4 YTD P4 YTD Number % FY FY 

Resulting in action 5 7 -2 -29% 24 18 

 

5.2 The large number of closed cases is due to the near completion of a proactive project 

looking at new applications for housing on the basis of overcrowding.  This involved 

looking at 117 applications for housing on the grounds that the applicants were 

residing in overcrowded accommodation and who had presented for housing 

following Lewisham’s new Housing Allocation policy which came into effect on the 

29th October 2012. The project’s objective was to assist the Housing Register Team 

in a gatekeeper role to prevent those applicants who were not eligible for housing 

being accepted onto Lewisham Housing register. To date 108 of these cases have 

been accepted on to the Lewisham Register with one proven as fraud, and a further 

seven still under investigation. 

5.3 Since the last report, five cases have been successfully concluded.  These relate to 

four fraudulent homelessness applications and one fraudulent Housing register 

application.  

5.4 The Audit Commission have stated that there is a significant value associated with 

recovering tenancies and preventing fraudulent applicants from being housed.  They 

estimate that the average cost of temporary accommodation for a family for a year is 

£18,000.  On this basis A-FACT have either recovered or prevented tenancies being 

wrongly allocated in five cases, representing a saving of £90,000. 

 

6 DCLG Housing Bid funding 

6.1 Since January 2012, using DCLG funding A-FACT have an additional investigator to 

work with local housing partners to tackle fraud related to social housing.  Work is 

being directed by Strategic Housing (Customer Services) and delivered by A-FACT 

working in Lewisham and with the South East London Housing Partnership (SELHP).   

6.2 In the last period five properties were recovered following work with L&Q and 

Regenter B3/Pinnacle.  Importantly, from this work Lewisham also earns the 

nomination rights on these properties.   There are also a number of cases due to be 

completed in the coming months, once eviction notices are served etc.. 

6.3 On the basis of the Audit Commission figures for the value of social housing, as 

detailed in para 5.3, the recovery of five tenancies equates to £90,000. 

6.4 Following the successful work noted above, the London Borough of Lewisham has 

secured funding of £100k annually from the DCLG to continue this project in 2013/14 

and 2014/15.  A-FACT have worked with SELHP and are currently in the early stages 

of agreeing to work with Family Mosaic and Hexagon Housing to tackle subletting 

across the region. 

 

7 Publicity 

7.1 A-FACT has not issued any press releases in this period.  However, they have been 

filming for the forthcoming Saint & Scroungers TV series.  This builds on the positive 

feedback from participation in a previous series. 

 

8 Fraud Awareness Training 

8.1 Although A-FACT have not delivered any training sessions in this period they have a 

number of sessions scheduled over the summer and early autumn.  These include 

general Fraud Awareness session for new employees at their induction event and 

Page 137



more training for our housing partners, at the request of SELHP and delivered on a 

chargeable basis.   

 

9 Metropolitan Police Secondee 

9.1 Detective Constable Norris is on secondment to A-FACT from the Metropolitan 

Police.   

9.2 As Lewisham A-FACT have become more proficient in securing prosecutions, we 

have started to uncover more sophisticated frauds which require the powers of arrest 

and search in order to be addressed effectively.  The Police Secondee continues to 

enable the team to deal with cases that we wouldn’t otherwise be able to progress.   

 

10 Legal Implications 

10.1 There are no legal implications arising directly from this report.  

 

11 Financial Implications 

11.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report.  

 

12 Equalities Implication 

12.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising directly from this report.  
 

13 Crime and Disorder Implications 

13.1 There are no crime or disorder implications arising directly from this report 

 

14 Environmental Implications 

14.1 There are no specific environmental implications arising directly from this report.  

 

15 Background Papers 

15.1 There are no background papers reported. 

 

If there are any queries on this report, please contact  

David Austin at david.austin@lewisham.gov.uk or on 020 8314 9114, or 

Carol Owen at carol.owen@lewisham.gov.uk  or on 020 8314 7909  

Page 138


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	2 Declarations of Interests
	3 Grant Thornton's External Audit Reports on the 2012/13 Accounts
	Audit Findings for LBL
	Letter of Representation -Financial Statement
	Audit Findings for LBL Pension Fund
	Letter of Representation for LBL Pension Fund
	Review of LBL Arrangements for Financial Resilience

	4 External Auditor's Reports on the 2012/13 Accounts
	5 Internal Audit Update Report
	6 Anti Fraud & Corruption Team (A-FACT) Update

